
MICROFILM DIVIDER 
OMB/RECORDS MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

SFN 2053 (2/85) 5M 

DESCRIPTION 



2005 HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES 

HB 1172 

---



2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1172 

House Human Services 

□ Conference Committee 

Hearing Date 1/18/05 

Tape Number 
2 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Side A 
X 

Chairman Price: Opened discussion on HB 1172. 
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0--7.3 

Meter# 

Representative Porter: Regarding the question asked prior, that amount cannot be taken off 

first because we have a law in the state that all payments go through the SOU to make sure that 

court orders are changed appropriately and that the account balances are changed appropriately. 

Chairman Price: Do you remember the phone call you could hear from my desk? 

Representative Porter: Parts of it. 

Chairman Price: I spoke to an attorney who represented a Texas child support agency and they 

said that there are a difference between TANIF cases and IVD cases. They said they don't do 

T ANIF cases but do IVD cases. I said we have some cases that have other obligations to the 

state that are IVD cases, and they said we don't collect anything that goes to the state. I said well 

you do IVD cases and they said but we don't do TANIF cases. His proposed amendments here 

Mr. Schmidt and contract information you had to hold the phone three feet away from your ear. 
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There may be some issues on how some of these outside ones are collecting, they may need some 

clarification in the law as to what is a government owed obligation. So that don't think that 

TANIF is the only thing we have first claim to. 

Representative Porter: I think that if we keep the bill the way that it is that is a non issue 

because everything then goes through the SDU and those cases where there is payments owed 

back to the state prior to being disbursed that money is taken out if there isn't the money is just 

sent to the individual and at that point they would own that collection agency money. The 

problem that the collection agencies have is they want the money to run to them first and they 

want to subtract their percentage and then mail it to the individual, and then they want the 

individual then to call the state and say they got their money. It is against a court order so you 

can't do that in reverse against the court order. It needs to go through the procedure that we have 

set up in the state. I don't know how other states handle it like Texas. All I know is that the way 

we have it written is that every dollar goes first to the SDU so that they can disburse it properly. 

On page 3, line 24, after the word "efforts" we are replacing "and is appropriated on a continuing 

basis" with "any funds retained by the public authority under this subsection must be deposited in 

the established subsection 50-09-15. I not withstanding 50-09-15. I any funds that have been 

retained and deposited under this subsection may be used by the public authorities to promote 

public awareness of consequences of out of wedlock births and the costs of supporting minor 

children". That goes back to our unclaimed property provisions so that the department still has 

the ability to access that money and use it as a promotion but there is also a responsibility that if 

someone comes forward and claims that money five years from now, they still have a claim to 

that money. On page 4, we remove Section 8 and page 5 we remove line 1-5, which is the rest of 
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Section 8. On page 6, we remove Section 12. That also takes care of a lot of the fiscal ???? 

There is still some computer things, but the department will have to redo the fiscal note. 

Chairman Price: (3.5) Do they think they will be under the amount for appropriations? 

Representative Porter: That is $5,000. It still has to go to appropriations? 

Jim Fleming: The revenue lost to the unclaimed property fund and the increase expected under 

the bill to the department would exceed $5,000. So we believe the revised fiscal note to reflect 

these amendments, if adopted, would still ???? The components of the fiscal note having to do 

with the unclaimed property fund would still be about a $30,000 impact. 

Representative Porter: That is the amendment from the subcommittee, and I would move for 

the amendment. 

Chairman Price: Do I hear a second? 

Representative Kaldor: Second 

Chairman Price: Is there any discussion? 

Representative Potter: Can you explain to me on Page 2, line 3 and 4, you said to delete those 

a little bit more about the kind of consensus from what I understand that it would be good to 

delete that because I was kind ofliking that myself. It seemed like almost a usury as to what 

some of the collection agencies are charging, so can you help me with that? 

Representative Porter: I guess as we looked at it, it was I think beyond the scope of the 

legislature to find out what business expenses that any particular business would have in 

determining what fee they needed to charge in order to collect a particular debt or not. The way 

it is written with a 25% cap is unusual in other collection areas of the law because the collection 

agencies have a willing consumer that wants them to collect the debt. If they have a lot of 
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utilization they may get a lower rate, if they have a little utilization they get a higher rate, if they 

have to use other vehicles like small claims court or other leans than there are more expenses to 

collecting that debt. It was felt that by removing it, by our knowledge of what they do in their 

business is very limited and that it is a willing consumer is what they are dealing with. If they 

want to negotiate that rate, they are more than welcome to. 

Representative Kaldor: (6.0) Just to agree with Representative Porter indicated. It is really 

difficult for us to establish what the percentage should be because of a custodial parent may agree 

to take less than 75% in some situations. Probably more importantly that this is the other 

portions of the bill are still going to make it very difficult, if not impossible for some of these 

agencies to operate in North Dakota. They are not likely to because of the way they have to 

collect their money. If there was a way to limit what they could assess, we probably eliminated it 

pretty significantly by the process we have forced them to go through. 

Representative Potter: I tend to agree that I don't like to tell businesses what they are going to 

do, or to mandate to cities or counties or anyone else what should be done, but it does rub me a 

bit the wrong way on the thought of these people that tend to sign up with some of these agencies 

that they would be fairly desperate people. Talking about for your agency coming out after your 

car or your other possessions you might owe money on - that is different than your kids. That 

just puts it in a different ballpark to me. So when they have these contracts that we looked at and 

all the rest of it I just wonder how much they consider the percentage they are agreeing to. Are 

they just so desperate to get anything that they sometimes will just sign. That is just a concern of 

mine. 
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Representative Porter: I guess in my own business that we have about a 27% of uncollectible, I 

have a pretty good first hand knowledge of working with collection agencies. There is not a 

single collection agency that we work with that would do the work that we ask them to do for 

25%. We are upfront willing to give away 33 l /3% of the amount owed just for them to start 

working on it, plus any additional expenses that come up later. I guess the other thing I would 

relate it to to try and help you understand as to why we shouldn't be setting these percentages is 

in the sales of real estate. When I want to sell a piece of property, I might call four or five real 

estate agencies to see what kind of percentage they are taking, and find a low listing service that 

does it for half of that and make my determination based on the market. When I am all said and 

done I probably didn't sell my house using the low level service and have to list with one of the 

higher percentages, but that is my right as a consumer of those products to do that investigation 

work. By putting that cap at 25% it is not going to help anyone either, because it still is going to 

matter that someone is willing to even take the business. 

Representative Kreidt: It is probably better to have a source out there that is charging a larger 

percent that not having anyone out there available, and that way they would not get any of their 

money. This way they still have options. 

Chairman Price: All those in favor say I. Opposed? We have an amended bill - what are your 

wishes. How long do you think it would take for a fiscal note? 

Jim Flemini: We provided the amendments to our fiscal analyst, would check with him and I 

hope it would be two days of not sooner. I think it is numbers he has crunched already. 

Chairman Price: If the impact is under 50, I don't have to send it, but there is no continuing 

appropriation is there? 
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Jim Fleming: That is right, there is no continuing appropriation. 

Chairman Price: What are your wishes on the bill? 

Representative Porter: I move for a DO PASS on HB 1172 as amended with re- referral to 

appropriations. 

Representative Kaldor: I SECOND the motion on HB 1172. 

Chairman Price: Discussion on the bill? 

Motion carried. VOTE: 11-YES 1-NO. 

Representative Porter will carry bill on the floor. 
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Amendment to: Reengrossed 
HB 1172 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04115/2005 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $20,695 

Expenditures $10,661 $20,695 

Appropriations $10,661 $20,695 

1 B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision. 
2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to 
your analysis. 

The bill: 1) would allow for contempt hearings to be used more selectively, 2) authorizes the Department to redefine 
the meaning of "reasonable cost" for health insurance, 3) establishes guidance for the distribution of child support 
collections when the recipient has died, 4) provides access to confidential information to ensure pension benefits are 
not exempt from child support collections, and 5) would allow for the Department to continue to be able to be a service 
provider to the tribes and regional offices. 

The bill also allows the Department to establish an amnesty program and compromise assigned and unassigned 
interest as a part of the amnesty program. 

The bill creates an "arrears registry" to consolidate the trigger points for liens, executions, license suspensions, and 
public disclosure so all four tools become available at the same time. The bill also creates a new tool known as a 
Financial Institution Deduction Order (FIDO) 

This bill will enhance child support collections. The amount of the increased collections is undeterminable. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1 A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The 2005-07 other funds revenues consists of federal funds of $20,695 for the system changes required to provide for 
the changes related to this bill. 

8. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detali, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The 2005-07 general fund expenditures consist of $10,661 needed to provide the match for the federal funds of 
$20,695 for the system changes required to implement the changes of this bill. The 2005-07 other funds expenditures 
consist of the previously mentioned federal funds of $20,695 . 
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C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. 

The 2005-07 general fund appropriation will need to be increased by $10,661 to provide the match for the federal 
funds of $20,695 for the system changes needed to implement the changes of this bill. The 2005-07 other funds 
appropriation will need to be increased to provide the appropriation authority lo spend the above mentioned federal 
funds of $20,695. 

!
Name: 
Phone Number: 

Brenda M. Weisz 
328-2397 

~gency: 
!Date Prepared: 

OHS 
04/15/2005 
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Amendment to: Reengrossed 
HB 1172 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0311712005 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $2,640 

Expenditures $1,360 $2,640 

Appropriations $1,360 $2,640 

1 B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision. 
2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 

School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to 
your analysis. 

The bill: 1) would allow for contempt hearings to be used more selectively, 2) authorizes the Department to redefine 
the meaning of "reasonable cost" for health insurance, 3) establishes guidance for the distribution of child support 
collections when the recipient has died, 4) provides access to confidential information to ensure pension benefits are 
not exempt from child support collections, and 5) would allow for the Department to continue to be able to be a service 
provider to the tribes and regional offices. 

The bill also allows the Department to establish an amnesty program and compromise assigned and unassigned 
interest as a part of the amnesty program. 

This bill will enhance child support collections. The amount of the increased collections is undeterminable. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state ~seal effect in 1A, please: 
A Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The 2005-07 other funds revenues consists of federal funds of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for 
the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon the death of the recipient. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The 2005-07 general fund expenditures consist of $1,360 needed to provide the match for the federal funds of $2,640 
for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon 
the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds expenditures consist of the previously mentioned federal funds of 
$2,640. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
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budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations . 

The 2005-07 general fund appropriation will need to be increased by $1,360 to provide the match for the federal funds 
of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the 
distribution upon the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to 
provide the appropriation authority to spend the above mentioned federal funds of $2,640. 

!
Name: 
Phone Number: 

Brenda M. Weisz 
328-2397 

~gency: 
jDate Prepared: 

OHS 
03/18/2005 
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Amendment to: Engrossed 
HB 1172 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211412005 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $14,594 $6,515 

Expenditures $1,360 $45,382 $23,294 

Appropriations $1,360 $45,382 $23,294 

1 B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision. 
2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 

School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to 
your analysis. 

The bill: 1) would allow for contempt hearings to be used more selectively, 2) authorizes the Department to redefine 
the meaning of "reasonable cost" for health insurance, 3) establishes guidance for the distribution of child support 
collections when the recipient has died, 4) provides access to confidential information to ensure pension benefits are 
not exempt from child support collections, and 5) would allow for the Department to continue to be able to be a service 
provider to the tribes and regional offices. 

The bill also provides for collections remaining undistributed after 3 years to remain with Child Support rather then 
being transferred to unclaimed property. The funds would then be available, subject to legislative appropriation, for 
public information campaigns. 

The bill also allows the Department to establish an amnesty program and compromise assigned and unassigned 
interest as a part of the amnesty program. 

This bill will enhance child support collections. The amount of the increased collections is undeterminable. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The 2005-07 other funds revenues consists of federal funds of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for 
the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon the death of the recipient, $30,788 of transfers 
to the new fund from undistributed child support collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed 
Property Division of $30,788), and additional federal funds of $11,954 related to the undistributed child support 
collections transferred to the new fund. 

The 2007-09 other funds revenues consists of $16,779 of transfers to the new fund from undistributed child support 
collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed Property Division of $16,779) and additional 
federal funds of $6,515 related to the undistributed child support collections transferred to the new fund. 
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B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The 2005-07 general fund expenditures consist of $1,360 needed to provide the match for the federal funds of $2,640 
for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon 
the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds expenditures consist of the previously mentioned federal funds of 
$2,640 and $42,742 of federal and other funds ($30,788 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and 
$11,954 of the matching federal funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

The 2007-09 other funds expenditures consist of $23,294 ($16,779 of transfers from undistributed child support 
collections and $6,515 of the matching federal funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. 

The 2005-07 general fund appropriation will need to be increased by $1,360 to provide the match for the federal funds 
of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the 
distribution upon the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to 
provide the appropriation authority to spend the above mentioned federal funds of $2,640 and the $42,742 of federal 
and other funds ($30,788 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and $11,954 of the matching federal 
funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

The 2007-09 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to provide the appropriation authority to spend the 
$23,294 ($16,779 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and $6,515 of the matching federal funds 
this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

I

Name: 
Phone Number: 

Brenda M. Weisz 
328-2397 

\Agency: 
!Date Prepared: 

OHS 
0211412005 



Amendment to: HB 1172 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/24/2005 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $14,594 $6,515 

Expenditures $1,360 $45,382 $23,294 

Appropriations $1,360 $45,382 $23,294 

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision. 
2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 

School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to 
your analysis. 

The bill: 1) would allow for contempt hearings to be used more selectively, 2) authorizes the Department to redefine 
the meaning of "reasonable cost" for health insurance, 3) establishes guidance for the distribution of child support 
collections when the recipient has died, 4) provides access to confidential information to ensure pension benefits are 
not exempt from child support collections, and 5) would allow for the Department to continue to be able to be a service 
provider to the tribes and regional offices. 

The bill also provides for collections remaining undistributed after 3 years to remain with Child Support rather then 
being transferred to unclaimed property. The funds would then be available, subject to legislative appropriation, for 
public information campaigns. 

The bill also allows the Department to establish an amnesty program and compromise assigned and unassigned 
interest as a part of the amnesty program. 

This bill will enhance child support collections. The amount of the increased collections is undeterminable. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The 2005-07 other funds revenues consists of federal funds of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for 
the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon the death of the recipient, $30,788 of transfers 
to the new fund from undistributed child support collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed 
Property Division of $30,788), and additional federal funds of $11,954 related to the undistributed child support 
collections transferred to the new fund. 

The 2007-09 other funds revenues consists of $16,779 of transfers to the new fund from undistributed child support 
collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed Property Division of $16,779) and additional 
federal funds of $6,515 related to the undistributed child support collections transferred to the new fund. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 



item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The 2005-07 general fund expenditures consist of $1,360 needed to provide the match for the federal funds of $2,640 
for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon 
the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds expenditures consist of the previously mentioned federal funds of 
$2,640 and $42,742 of federal and other funds ($30,788 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and 
$11,954 of the matching federal funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

The 2007-09 other funds expenditures consist of $23,294 ($16,779 of transfers from undistributed child support 
collections and $6,515 of the matching federal funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. 

The 2005-07 general fund appropriation will need to be increased by $1,360 to provide the match for the federal funds 
of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the 
distribution upon the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to 
provide the appropriation authority to spend the above mentioned federal funds of $2,640 and the $42,742 of federal 
and other funds ($30,788 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and $11,954 of the matching federal 
funds this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

The 2007-09 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to provide the appropriation authority to spend the 
$23,294 ($16,779 of transfers from undistributed child support collections and $6,515 of the matching federal funds 
this will generate) for public information campaigns. 

A !Name: W' Phone Number: 
Brenda M. Weisz 
328-2397 

jAgency: 
!Date Prepared: 

OHS 
01/26/2005 



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1172 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/03/2005 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $239,594 $56,515 

Expenditures $1,360 $270,382 $73,294 

Appropriations $1,360 $2,640 

1 B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision. 
2003-2005 Biennium 2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 

School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts Counties Cities 

School 
Districts 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant to 
your analysis. 

The bill: 1 )provides for a cap on fees charged by private collection agencies of 25% on the collection of past due child 
support, 2)would allow for comtempt hearings to be used more selectively, 3)authorizes the Department to redefine 
the meaning of "reasonable cost" for health insurance, 4)changes the judgment interest rate from a fixed rate of 12% 
to a variable rate, 5)establishes guidance for the distribution of child support collections when the recipient has died, 
6)provides access to confidential information to ensure pension benefits are not exempt from child support 
collections, 7)would allow for the Department to continue to be able to be a service provider to the tribes and regional 
offices. 
The bill also provides for collections remaining undistributed after 3 years to remain with Child Support rather then 
being transferred to unclaimed property. The funds would then be appropriated on a continuing basis for public 
information campaigns. Because 91 % of all collections are now distributed electronically the biennial amount 
expected to be available for this is less than $3,000. 
The bill also allows the Department to establish an amnesty program and compromise assigned and unassigned 
interest as a part of the amnesty program. 
The bill creates a revolving fund from Bank of North Dakota earnings to be used to pay for uncollectible recovery 
accounts. The bill would transfer $25,000 of Bank earnings to the fund as an initial deposit. 
This bill will enhance child support collections. The amount of the increased collections is undeterminable. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The 2005-07 other funds revenues consists of federal funds of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for 
the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon the death of the recipient, $30,788 of transfers 
to the new fund from undistributal child support collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed 
Property Division of $30,788), additional federal funds of $11,954 related to the undistributal child support collections 
transferred to the new fund, and $225,000 of Bank of North Dakota earnings to be transferred to the newly created 
revolving fund to pay for uncollectible recovery accounts. 
The 2007-09 other funds revenues consists of $16,779 of transfers to the new fund from undistributal child support 
collections (this is offset by a reduction in other income to Unclaimed Property Division of $16,779), additional federal 



funds of $6,515 related to the undistributal child support collections transferred to the new fund, and $50,000 of Bank 
of North Dakota earnings to be transferred to the newly created revolving fund to pay for uncollectible recovery 
accounts. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The 2005-07 general fund expenditures consist of $1,360 needed to provide the match for the federal funds of $2,640 
for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the distribution upon 
the death of the recipient The 2005-07 other funds expenditures consist of the previously mentioned federal funds of 
$2,640, $42,742 ($30,788 of transfers from undistributal child support collections and $11,954 of the matching federal 
funds this will generate) for public information campaigns, and $225,000 of Bank of North Dakota earnings to be 
transferred to the newly created revolving fund to pay for uncollectible recovery accounts. 
The 2007-09 other funds expenditures consist of $23,294 ($16,779 of transfers from undistributal child support 
collections and $6,515 of the matching federal funds this will generate) for public information campaigns, and $50,000 
of Bank of North Dakota earnings to be transferred to the newly created revolving fund to pay for uncollectible 
recovery accounts. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. 

The 2005-07 general fund appropriation will need to be increased by $1,360 to provide the match for the federal funds 
of $2,640 for the system changes required to provide for the changes related to the contempt hearings and the 
distribution upon the death of the recipient. The 2005-07 other funds appropriation will need to be increased to 
provide the appropriation authority to spend the above mentioned federal funds of $2,640. 
None of the expenditures related to the special funds created for public information campaigns and to pay for 
uncollectible recovery accounts are reflected because they are through continuing appropriations and fall outside of 
the agency's budget and appropriation. 
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Date: 1/ .l I)/ o..,5 Roll Call Vote#: / 

2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB / / 1 ")> 

House Human Services 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

ActionTaken l)~-J7/U-/ a_,,, {1,m,1.., ;ela( ~~ 
MotionMadeBy ~ 'r~ Seconded By li::q:;~ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman C.S.Price X Rep.L. Kaldor X 

V Chrm.G. Kreidt X Rep.L. Potter X 

Rep. V. Pietsch X Rep.S. Sandvig X 

Rep.J.O. Nelson X 

Rep.W.R. Devlin • y 
Rep.T. Porter X 

Rep.G. Uglem X 

Rep C. Damschen X 

Rep.R. Weisz X 

Total ( ) JI No J 

Absent ,--J 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
January 21, 2005 8:21 a.m. 

Module No: HR-14-0822 
Carrier: Porter 

Insert LC: 58217.0101 Title: .0200 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1172: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS and 
BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (11 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
AND NOT VOTING). HB 1172 was rereferred to the Appropriations Committee. 

Page 1, line 3, remove "a new section to chapter 50-06.3," 

Page 1, line 6, remove "section 28-20-34," 

Page 1, line 8, remove "judgment interest," 

Page 1, line 15, replace "A" with "Notwithstandina section 13-05-02. a" 

Page 1, line 24, after the underscored semicolon insert "or" 

Page 2, line 2, replace": or" with an underscored period 

Page 2, remove lines 3 and 4 

Page 3, line 24, replace "and is appropriated on a continuina basis" with ". Any funds retained 
by the public authority under this subsection must be deposited in the account 
established under section 50-09-15.1. Notwithstanding section 50-09-15.1. any funds 
that have been retained and deposited under this subsection may be used by" 

Page 3, line 25, remove the first "to" 

Page 3, line 26, after the underscored period insert "Subject to available appropriations. any 
claim by an obliaee for funds that have been retained under this subsection must be 
paid out of the account established under section 50-09-15.1." 

Page 4, remove lines 21 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 5 

Page 6, remove lines 4 through 15 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-14-0822 



• 

• 

2005 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 

HB 1172 



• 

• 

2005 HOUSE ST ANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILIJRESOLUTION NO. HB 1172 

House Appropriations Committee 
Human Resources Division 

Hearing Date: 2-2-05 Wednesday p.m. 

Tape Number 
Ill 

Side A 
X 

Side B 

Committee Clerk Signature c;a~ f'/ 0~­

Minutes: 

Chairman Delzer called the meeting to order on HB 1172 . 

Meter# 
4.8 - 18.3 

Rep. Todd Porter, District 34 Mandan: I am here from the Human Services Committee to 

explain the re-referral of HB 1172. Section one: collection agencies without licensure are 

collecting arrearages since Code does not specify they be licensed. This can mean court cases, so 

we put in a new section for Code describing collection agencies that are collecting arrearages. 

But payments need to be run through the disbursement unit like the department's child 

collections before it goes to the obligor so it can be properly credited, and finally to the collection 

agency. Some people prefer working with private agencies. 

Section two: the process of serving and how it works; Section three: a change in federal statute 

dealing with insurance requirements for the obligor; Section five: a new provision for the 

Department to use unassigned payments to support a campaign against out-of-wedlock births. 

Chairman Delzer: Did you leave that as a continuing appropriation? 
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Page2 
Human Resources Division 
Bill/Resolution Number 1172 
Hearing Date 2-2-05 

Rep. Porter: Yes. 

Chairman Delzer: How does it become unclaimed property? 

Rep. Porter: Payment is made to State without a SDU. After third year, it is turned over to the 

Unclaimed Property Division. If unclaimed after five years, it goes into the Common Schools 

Trust Fund. 

Section six: Allows the Department to set up collections with an amnesty program. This informs 

people who owe that if they pay today, the interest will be waived. (Rep. Metcalf came in at 3:30; 

and Rep. Kerzman) Should be constitutional. Section seven: clarifies the paternity side of child 

support enforcement. Section eight: deleted in the amendment as it was unbelievably 

complicated. 

Chairman Delzer: That is probably enough of an overview. If we change the appropriation to 

some degree, would you as bill carrier still be comfortable carrying it to the floor? 

Rep. Porter: Yes. 

Chairman Delzer: We will ask the department to be here tomorrow . 
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2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. 1172 

House Appropriations Committee 
Human Resources Division 

Hearing Date: 2-3-05 Thursday a.m. 

I 
II 

Tape Number Side A 

X 

Side B 
X 

Committee Clerk Signatun;C) ~ :I:{~-----­
Minutes: Chairman Delzer called the meeting to order. 

Meter# 
12.8 
2.2 

James Fleming, Deputy Director of the Child Support Enforcement Agency, provided an 

overview of HB 1172. 

Chairman Delzer: Reading through the fiscal note and engrossed bill, you have a continuing 

appropriation. 

Fleming: That is for agreements with tribes and regional transport units. It would not include 

unclaimed property funds. 

Chairman Delzer: Why not go through the Commons School Trust Fund? 

Fleming: The amounts deposited in that fund are considered income to the State from running a 

child support program. The feds want 66 cents back. That is coming out of the operating of the 

appropriation for the child support division. We might as well roll it back into the program rather 

than bear that expense. 

Chairman Delzer: How much are we talking about? 
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Page 2 
Human Resources Division 
Bill/Resolution Number 1172 
Hearing Date: 2-3-05 

Fleming: It is a pool of money that will dry up in three years. These are unclaimed checks and 

only eight percent of caseloads are paid by check. The rest come electronically. There will be a 

drastic drop in the unclaimed property deposits. We anticipate $30,788 in the 07 biennium in 

unclaimed property, some of which can have a federal match. Let me explain how you get to the 

total $45,382 on the fiscal note. Four thousand is what we estimate in making changes in the bill 

regarding distributions of when the custodial parent dies, and for the contempt process. It is not 

built into the budget. 

Allen/LC: It will not show up on the summary. Only if you amend it, Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Delzer: Let us go through the bill. 

Fleming: The engrossed version section one deals with private agencies or unregistered 

collections agencies. We want to partner with these entities. Child support is not owed to the 

custodial parents, but to the kids. You will see contracts by private agencies who get to keep 50% 

of every payment that goes to the family. The problem is that by State law and federal mandate, 

the first dollars received is to go to the kids. It is not to pay the outstanding unpaid child support. 

What the contracts do is reverse that saying the payments on the old stuff comes first. So instead 

of going to the kids current food and rent needs, it is applied to past due stuff. 

Chairman Delzer: What happens when there are arrears out there and the kids are over 18. Does 

it go to them? Or does it go to the obligee? 

Chairman Delzer: The money would go to the obligee unless the court order says something 

else. 

Chairman Delzer: You are kidding! 
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Page 3 
Human Resources Division 
Bill/Resolution Number 1172 
Hearing Date: 2-3-05 

Fleming: No, sir, I am not! In overdue arrearages over one month, the law looks first to the 

custodial parents, who have already covered the kid's expenses and unpaid support, as the first 

party to restore. There would still be a claim from the adult children for that money. Another part 

of the bill deals with the obligee who dies, leaving who is responsible for the arrears and who has 

rights to collect. This bill says the kids get the money. 

Chairman Delzer: Is this going to shut down collection agencies? 

Fleming: It does not set a fee cap on the custodial parents arrears. We are making sure the State 

gets its share of the arrears. Currently we are unfair to the obligor and we do not know if the 

money is ever collected. As long as they're working off the arrears, the collection agency and 

family can do whatever they want. We want the kids to get the support first. We would like it all 

to go through the SD by court order first to avoid that choice . 

Chairman Delzer: What were the changes the standing committee made? 

Fleming: It removed the fee cap of 25%. Section two: If obligor is one month behind in arrears, a 

contempt hearing is scheduled or a notice of arrears is sent. But we are finding a lot of time is 

spent on the contempt process. This bill would give clerks discretion to give another month. 

Section three: Revises reasonable cost of health insurance; section four: Gives us one year 

instead of six months to pursue flexibility with employers; section five: Unclaimed property is 

turned back after three years. The money would be deposited and collect interest and used for 

outreach activities only. There is no legal reason for that. We expect three years from now, the 

rate of increase will drop to $1600 per biennium including federal match. 

Chairman Delzer: Allen (LC), are there places in the Code that locks this? This looks like the 

Legislature could not use it for other places like child support. I would like to see language that 
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says the Legislature has final say on how the money is used, and that the department can only 

state its preference. 

Fleming: Section six: This has two different subsections, including amnesty which is the 

judgment interest is accruing at up to 8%. It passed in the Senate. 

Chairman Delzer: Why wasn't this all put into one bill? 

Fleming: In past sessions, it was an omnibus bill. 

Chairman Delzer: Housekeeping rules is not bad to group, but policy issues are. 

Fleming: The amnesty period excites us. All interest is going to be negotiated. In lines 11-18 we 

are proposing distribution solution when custodial person dies. Sections seven and ten: relate to 

confidentiality requirements and usage; section eight: Public (government) pensions are currently 

unattachable. We will be able to contact PERS; section nine: Deals with penalties assessed for 

untimely reporting for new employees; section 11: completes the process of section eight; section 

twelve: We see great potential of becoming a service provider to regions and tribes. 

Collaboration between all is necessary to become more efficient. 

Chairman Delzer: Why does it need to be a continuing appropriation? 

Fleming: Regions and tribes are not looking to use this because it would change or stop after 

two years. 

Chairman Delzer: I don't like that. Allen (LC), draw an amendment to sunset this again. This 

should come before the Legislature's attention every two years. (Tape II Side A starts) 

Mike Schwindt, Child Support Enforcement Director with the Department of Human 

Services: We do not want to hold onto the money any longer than we have to. We want to find 

the people to collect. We do not want black eyes for everyone. 
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Fleming: On continuing appropriation, $800,000 in tribal authority is not needed if this is in 

place. 

Chairman Delzer: No need to do it twice . 
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2005 HOUSE ST ANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. 1172 

House Appropriations Committee 
Human Resources Division 

Hearing Date: 2-7-05 Monday a.m. 

Tape Number 
I 

Side A 
X 

Side B 

Committee Clerk Signature ~~ -:1J/. 0~ ---

Meter# 
33.4 - 42.6 

Minutes: Chairman Delzer opened the discussion of HB 1172 (see one-page proposed 

amendment 58217 .020 I) regarding the child support collection services. The amendment to the 

engrossed bill sunsets the appropriation another two years. 

Rep. Bellew: It says "provide an expiration date." Do we provide that date? 

Chairman Delzer: See page six line seven of engrossed bill. It changes it from 2005 to 2007. 

Vice Chair Pollert: I move that the amendment 58217.0201 of the engrossed HB 1172 be 

approved. 

Rep. Wieland: I second it. 

Rep. Kerzman: I resist the amendment. It is a small continuing appropriation and we need it to 

keep on going. 

Chairman Delzer: I would like to keep it sunsetted to keep it coming before us so we know if 

the federal money has been used. 

Chairman Delzer: With voice vote, motion carries 4-2 . 
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Vice Chair Pollert: I move for a Do Pass As Amended on HB 1172. 

Rep. Wieland: I second it. 

Rep. Bellew: If we pass it or kill it in here, it still has to go to full committee, right? 

Chairman Delzer: Right. Clerk will take roll call. Motion carries 4-2. 

Vice Chair Pollert will carry the bill to full committee and Rep. Porter will carry it to the floor. 
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2005 HOUSE ST ANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. HB 11172 

House Appropriations Full Committee 

□ Conference Committee 

Hearing Date February 9, 2005 

Tape Number 
I 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Side A 
X 

Child Support 

Side B 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman opened the discussion on HB 1172. 

Meter# 
#20.2 - #31.0 

Rep. Chet Pollert explained that this bill deals with the licensing of private collection agencies 

and the problem with out of state collections. There is a part dealing with unclaimed property 

after three years and there is an amnesty program in this bill. We did not look at the policy of 

this bill as much as with the appropriations. The amendment #0201 added a sunset clause for 

June 2007 to make sure that they had to come before us again as there are federal funds involved. 

Rep. Mike Timm, Vice Chairman asked about the continuing appropriation language in the 

standing committee's amendments. 

Rep. Chet Pollert answered that the standing committee took off the sunset clause and our 

committee put in a clause for June 2007 back in so they would have to come back before the 

legislature to explain the moneys. 
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House Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1172 
Hearing Date February 9, 2005 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman clarified that the Human Service Committee removed the June 

2005 language and our committee removed the overstrike and added June 2007 language so that 

in two years they would have to come back and report what happened here. 

Rep. Chet Pollert answered that this was correct. 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman asked Rep Poller! to review the fiscal notes for the bill. 

Rep. Chet Pollert commented that $4000 in computer programing costs which would have to 

be done to update their program, was made up of $1360 general funds and $2640 is federal 

funds. $42,742 is revenue generated by depositing the child support payments that go unclaimed 

for three years. 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman asked about the sources of the other funds listed here 

Rep. Jeff Delzer answered that these would be child support collection funds. The fiscal note is 

included but they are not requesting any money because they think they can find it in their 

budget. This is true of the next bill, HBll73, as well. We put the sunset back in on the 

continuing appropriation. 

Rep. Chet Polle rt moved to adopt amendment #0201 to HB 1172. 

Rep. Jeff Delzer seconded. (meter Tape #1, side A, #25.9) 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman called for a voice vote to adopt amendment #0201 to HB1172. 

Motion carried. 

Rep. Chet Pollert moved a Do Pass As Amended motion to HB 1172. 

Rep. Alon C. Wieland seconded. 

Rep. Jeff Delzer commented that HB 1172 and HB 1173 came out of the Human Services 

Committee. There are some complex changes. Section 1 puts collection agencies under the 
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House Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1172 
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control of the department because the single parent would set their own contracts. Section 2 has 

to do with waiving interest if the deal is made with the obligor. Section 3 has to do with how 

much they expect the obligor to contribute to the health care of the child. Second 4 makes it a 

year in stead of 180 days for time that you would have to go to the courts for some of this. 

Section 5 through 7 have to do with child support collected and they can't find the obligee. So 

they hold on to the money for 5 years in case someone claims it, but they would like to spend 

some of it if they can too. So this is complicated and the standing committee will have to explain 

it further on the floor. (meter Tape #I, side A, #26.8) 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman clarified that for our purposes here the subcommittee has looked 

at the financial impact of this and the department thinks they can find this within their budget. It 

does set the continuing appropriation for this but you have set it so that we can have a look at it 

again in two years. 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman called for a roll call vote on the Do Pass As Amended motion on 

HBl 172. Motion carried with a vote of 21 yeas, l nea and 0 absences. Rep Porter will carry the 

bill to the house floor. 

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman closed the discussion on HB 1172. 



58217.0201 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Delzer 

February 3, 2005 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1172. 

Page 1, line 9, remove "and" and after 'date" insert •; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 6, line 7, remove the overstrike over "(Effootiv<: through June 30,", after "288§" insert 
"2007", and remove the overstrike over the overstruck closing parenthesis 

Renumber accordingly 

I"• 

Page No. 1 58217.0201 



Date: J./7/__0'J 110"· "·"". 

Roll Call Vote#: ~(D -

2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. / / 7~ 

House Appropriations - Human Resources 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By 

Representatives 
Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Vice Chairman Chet Pollert 
Rep. Larry Bellew 
Rep. Alon C. Wieland 

Total (Yes) f 
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

Seconded By 

Yes No Representatives 
✓ Rep. James Kerzman 

v Rep. Ralph Metcalf 

No 2_ 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

-p;..v;Jes" 5v"H1 c./AvS'( with the co,J,',,J'.'j 4 ff" 0 f "'"t:on 
5 .. it h .. s -ro c•Mf before th< t..e3i,/1.t,ut '" '0'7, 

Yes No 
✓ 

v 
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Date: Februarv 9, 2005 

Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB1172 

House Appropriations - Full Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken DO PASS AS AMENDED 

58217.0201 

Motion Made By Rep Pollert Seconded By Rep Weiland 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman X Rep. Bob Skarphol 
Rep. Mike Timm, Vice Chairman X Rep. David Monson 
Rep. Bob Martinson X Rep. Eliot Glassheim 
Rep. Tom Brusegaard X Rep. Jeff Delzer 
Rep. Earl Rennerfeldt X Rep. Chet Poller! 
Rep. Francis J. Wald X Rep. Larry Bellew 
Rep. Ole Aarsvold X Rep. Alon C. Wieland 
Rep. Pam Gulleson X Rep. James Kerzman 
Rep. Ron Carlisle X Rep. Ralph Metcalf 
Rep. Keith Kempenich X 
Rep. Blair Thoreson X 
Rep. Joe Kroeber X 
Rep. Clark Williams X 
Rep. AI Carlson X 

Total Yes No 2 

Absent 0 

Floor Assignment Rep Porter (Human Services) 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 
X 
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Date: February 9, 2005 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2005 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB1172 

House Appropriations - Full Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken DO PASS AS AMENDED 

Motion Made By Rep Pollert 

58217.0201 

Seconded By Rep Weiland 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman X Rep. Bob Skarphol 

Rep. Mike Timm, Vice Chairman X Rep. David Monson 

Rep. Bob Martinson X Rep. Eliot Glassheim 

Rep. Tom Brusegaard X Rep. Jeff Delzer 

Rep. Earl Rennerfeldt X Rep. Chet Pollert 

Rep. Francis J. Wald X Rep. Larry Bellew 

Rep. Ole Aarsvold X Rep. Alon C. Wieland 

Rep. Pam Gulleson X Rep. James Kerzman 

Rep. Ron Carlisle X Rep. Ralph Metcalf 

Rep. Keith Kempenich X 

Rep. Blair Thoreson X 

Rep. Joe Kroeber X 

Rep. Clark Williams X 

Rep. Al Carlson X 

Total Yes 21 No 2 

Absent 0 

Floor Assignment Rep Porter (Human Services) 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 
X 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 1 o, 2005 10:22 a.m. 

Module No: HR-27-2388 
Carrier: Porter 

Insert LC: 58217.0201 Title: .0300 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1172, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (21 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1172 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 9, remove "and" and after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 6, line 7, remove the overstrike over "(Elfcotivc through June 30,", after "2005" insert 
"2007", and remove the overstrike over the boldfaced overstruck closing parenthesis 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK. (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-27-2388 
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2005 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1172 

Senate Human Services Committee 

□ Conference Committee 

Hearing Date February 28, 2005 

Tape Number 
1 
1 
2 
2 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Side A 
X 

X 

SideB 

X 

X 

Meter# 
00-end 
00-883 
2934-end 
00-1420 

Chairman Lee opened the public hearing on HB 1172. All members were present. 

This bill relates to judgment interest and the collection and disbursement of child support. It also 

relates to judgment interest, reporting of new hires, enforcement of medical support, and the 

collection and disbursement of child support; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to 

provide an effective date. 

Testimony in favor of the bill 

James Fleming, Deputy Director and General Counsel of the State Child Support 

Enforcement Division of the Department of Human Services. See written testimony 

(Attachment 1) 

Sen. Brown: Who's hiring the collection agencies? 
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Fleming: The custodial parent. These companies can help the custodian parent collect what's 

owed to them. 

Sen. Brown: They should be under contract to you. 

Fleming: No, we're not looking for them to be under contract to us, we just want to make sure 

our efforts are compatible and not clashing heads. That is a problem in this area because, right 

now, they're not regulated by anything. Sometimes they're keeping the money (as referenced in 

written testimony) even though the judgments says all payments are supposed to go through the 

SDU. 

Sen. Lyson: Wouldn't the same thing happen if the person went to the state's attorney and got a 

complaint against him for failing to act on the court order? It is a court order isn't it for every 

child support that they have to go through. 

Fleming: Right, every court order does provide that. If an obligor does complain to a court, then 

I would question how that court was going to obtain jurisdiction over the collection agency. It's 

likely the obligor would have to file a motion in court and serve the private collection agency in 

another state and ask that they be joined. It's a difficult court driven process for something that's 

really quite simple. The PCAjust needs to pay the money to the SDU. 

Sen. Lyson: I would think that they would follow the court order, but I'll hold off right now. 

Sen. Brown: What do they charge? 

Fleming: About 50%. 

Sen. Warner: How can they justify paying 50% of the child support when, as a matter of public 

policy, that the child support belongs to the child, that parent cannot confer and it's all going into 
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the pot of money. Presumably they're going after of them because they're short on money to 

begin with. 

Fleming: That's the reason we think you should enact this section of the bill. There's a hole in 

the legislation right now that needs to be filled so kids will be protected. 

Mr. Fleming went back to his written testimony. 

Vice Chairman Dever: This company is licensed in Arizona, are they licensed to do business in 

North Dakota? 

Fleming: No, this was noted on the House side. The industry responded to a legislator 

explaining why they weren't. It is not a frivolous argument, but it is a very hard and technical 

reading of the statutes that they're making to avoid the licensing issue . 

Vice Chairman Dever: We're talking about an out-of-state national company and I would hope 

that our North Dakota companies wouldn't be so unscrupulous. 

Fleming: We have not heard any nightmares or horror stories about North Dakota companies. I 

would hope that the contract from that network is one that their own industry would condernn--in 

terms of prohibiting people from profit. But that's why you regulate industries, you don't 

regulate for the good ones, you regulate to make sure there aren't any bad ones. 

Sen. Brown: Will this legislation do that? 

Fleming: Yes. This will allow the child support program and the agencies to work together. It 

will make obligors get full credit for what they're paying and it allow the PCAs to collect this 

money from the custodial parent for payments on arrears. It doesn't say they can't do business, it 

requires them to reexamine how they get a portion of current support and readjust their 

percentages to say 'we're going to see what percentage we need to charge of the payments on 
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arrears to meet our expenses. This bill lets them do this. But it does ensure the current gets to 

the family, it does ensure the payment records stay accurate, it does ensure that they're licensed 

so when they engage in illegal or unscrupulous activity, Mr. Entringer's office is allowed to bring 

disciplinary action against them and regulate them. 

Sen. Brown: Minus the 35% fee. 

Fleming: Correct, although, on the House side we originally proposed a fee cap, but the House 

felt that if the other protections were in place, at least for the time being, the market could run its 

course and see what type of fees would bear. There was a reason we had a fee cap, but we still 

like what the House has left in. 

Vice Chairman Dever: I would think someone would enter into this type of agreement because 

there was a certain amount of money in arrearage that your department has been unsuccessful in 

collecting. Then they would contract with this agency, they would collect whatever dollars they 

could but if the obligor, was to pay that arrearage to you, then the obligee would still be 

responsible for paying them the fee on that amount of money collected. 

Fleming: That's how the contract is set up in this example. We would presumable pay it out to 

the custodial parent, so there's money for the agency to pay them. But the custodial parents of 

each contract, if they don't turn the portion of the money over to the PCA. 

Vice Chairman Dever asked Mr. Fleming to recap the amendments the House did and also to 

explain the fiscal notes, which he did. 

Sen. Brown: Is there any chance that this might keep some collection agencies out of here? 

Fleming: It's possible, the industry has not had the chance to work in the jurisdiction that has 

imposed these requirements so I suspect, initially, that their going to complain to you that this 
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will drive them out of the state. If you pass it anyway, I suspect that they will come back and 

figure what kind of percentage they need to take on arrears to do business here, and they'll do it. 

Some of them might not bother, we don't do business with all of them right now. 

Sen. Brown: But one of them sold somebody in Bowman already. 

Fleming: The intent of this bill, is not to drive them away. The intent of this bill is to make sure 

our efforts are compatible and the SDU records do not lead us to the situation where we have to 

give the obligor, for payments we didn't get, or deny the obligor credit for payments he/she 

actually made. Neither of those is a fair outcome. 

Sen. Dever: Are there North Dakota agencies that collect child support? 

Fleming: We're not aware of any . 

Sen. Dever: If an agency submitted dollars to you, minus the 35%, has the obligor satisfied that 

portion of the debt, or does he still owe that 3 5%. 

Fleming: We feel the obligor still owes that 35%. The judgment says this much shall be paid 

through the SDU and it has not happened. 

Sen. Brown: Under that example, how would you account that? Would the 35% that was 

withheld be counted towards the arrears or would that... 

Fleming: It would be difficult to handle those other than an case by case basis. If it's the first 

time an agency has done business with a North Dakota customer and didn't know our law, we 

may use that as an education opportunity. 

A lot of the correspondence we've had from these agencies talk about, when the government's 

not working already, why take this tool away from people? You are dealing with a desperate 

population that will enlist any help they can to get child support paid, and that's understandable. 
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But what they don't tell you is that this national income withholding form that they require us to 

use can also be used by these PC As. You 're not talking only situations where we've already 

struck out and they're stepping in to do something we couldn't. 

Senator Lyson asked for a definition of PCA. Mr. Fleming said PCA is private collection 

agency, and SDU is state disbursement unit in our office that processes payments. 

The private collection agencies talk about being there to help when we strike out, but they're 

allowed to use this national form. So if the private collection agency finds out about an employer 

of the obligor, when we get notice of a new employer, within two day, we're mailing a new 

income withholding order. But it is possible, and does happen, that the private collection agency 

finds out about the new employer before we do. They send out an income withholding order . 

They will beat ours in the mail by a matter of days, but theirs go in first--there's is the one the 

employer will honor. So you a great paying case there, where 35-50% of the amount withheld is 

going to be kept by the collection agency, and the balance paid to the family. Where, if theirs 

had gotten lost in the mail or delayed for just two days, our order would have gotten there first, 

would have been the one the employer honored and I 00% of the money would have gone to the 

family. So when they're talking about how they're only helping in cases where we struck out, 

that's not true. They're making their money on cases where they've gotten the withholding order 

in place before we do. 

Sen. Dever: If this bill passes, how will you look at that? 

Fleming: If the fee is set up as in this sample contract, where it's a percentage of current 

support, that is prohibited. What will happen in that situation, is the private collection agency 

would be required to turn over 100% of the collection to us, we will pay 100% of that, minus any 
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state assigned arrears, to the family. Then the PCA and the family can sort out their own 

· contracts. The custodial parent may have to pay a fee to the agency, but we have enough to do to 

without being the collection agency for a collection agency. 

Mr. Fleming went on with the written testimony beginning with section 2. (tape I side a meter 

#3100-5440). 

Neutral Testimony 

Todd Kranda, Attorney at the Keltsch Law Firm. Lobbyist on behalf of the North Dakota 

Collectors Association. I had not initially intended to speak. We did have our day in front of 

the House and had our amendments adopted, generally. The objectionable portions were taken 

out, however, because of some of the testimony and the questions that came out, I felt a need to 

at least explain that to you and say that I am the local collector agencies in North Dakota. There 

are 20 plus difference licensed agencies and those are members of our association. We do not 

oppose the bill and appreciate the opportunity to speak neutrally on the bill and the changes that 

were made were supported by us from the House. Our member do not collect the obligations that 

this bill affects, the current support obligations. The only arrangement that I'm aware of is 

collection of NSF checks that may have been paid for the obligations, and that is under contract 

with.the state. My local agency collectors do not effectuate or contract to collect current child 

support arrearages or current child support. The impression was left that all collection agencies 

in North Dakota are running under these contracts that were presented to you as recognized by 

the committee. Those are out of state agencies, for the most part. Those are issues about 

licensure. We support being licensed and we are regulated by the department of financial 

institutions . 
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Sen. Warner: Is there a cap on the amount of money you retain from a collection of a check? 

Kranda: I'm not sure what the contract is with the state or how they pursue that. There are NSF 

check fees, a $25 per check penalty, a civil penalty, 3 times the instrument or maybe $100 is the 

current statutory limits, but other than that in terms of what the fee or compensation is, that is 

negotiated between the person assigning or using the services and the collection agency. So there 

isn't a cap. We don't support that there should be because they're all different and amounts vary 

depending on the difficulty of pursing it, whether it needs to go to a judgment or whether this 

person is a deadbeat and how you will effectuate the recovery. 

Sen. Dever: Where there other changes your organization wanted to see in the bill? 

Kranda: Generally, the changes that have been made are acceptable, in fact, that's the reason I 

mentioned Mr. Fleming that I'm just here to monitor but with some of the initial representations 

these agencies are bad actors, I want to make sure you understand that our collection agencies are 

unaffected by this, we don't oppose the bill, that we are licensed, we are regulated and we do 

operate under the laws and we're not the ones you're focusing on with this legislation. 

Testimony in opposition to bill 

Paul Sanderson, representing SupportKids, Inc. See written testimony (Attachment 2). 

Mr. Sanderson emphasized that this bill was anti-competition and just because there were a few 

bad apples in the industry, we should not eliminate every business from this market. 

Vice Chairman Dever: Are your only objections to section I? 

Sanderson: Yes. And we will have some amendments next week when representatives from 

SupportK.ids are allowed to testify further next week. 

Sen. Dever: Will they have suggestions? 



• 

• 

Page 9 
Senate Human Services Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1172 
Hearing Date February 28, 2005 

Sanderson: We did. That contract in there is egregious, that is not the standard SupportKids 

contract they use and not the practices they apply by. These companies serve a valuable purpose 

and all you need to do is ask certain parents that have used this service and they will tell you that 

percentage of something is better than all of nothing. These companies are only used when the 

state agency has failed. And we're not up here attacking the North Dakota department, the North 

Dakota department is at the top of the nation with their collection activities. Also, their recent 

stats show that is between 60-70% they fully collect. Which means there is still 30-45% of cases 

every year that they do not full collect on. There's a market in North Dakota for these people. 

Sen. Lyson: We would have to change our law if we're talking about what you're talking about 

because there is no arrears unless the current is paid. Are you saying that you're going to come 

in here and say that we should change it so that we have a date, firm, that anything before that 

time is in arrears and they can collect that? 

Sanderson: No, that's not what we're going to hear. We agreed, when the money goes to the 

state disbursement unit, which we will forward to them, they can apply whatever percentage to 

current and the other percentage to arrears. When they send the money back to us, we take our 

fee out and send the rest to the custodial parent. What the department has said, is that the parents 

have the right to spend this money how they want. If they give it to the parent, and the parent 

writes us a check, they understand that can happen. But the problem is that sometimes they 

won't and the businesses aren't going to do business like that. They won't come in here, 

especially when the parents make the choice that the money should be forwarded directly to the 

private company. We don't disagree with the current support/arrears and how it should be 

provided, but we also contend, contrary to the position by the department, that a custodial parent 



• 

• 

• 

Page 10 
Senate Human Services Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1172 
Hearing Date February 28, 2005 

has the right to determine how they spend that support. And if they choose to spend that current 

support to obtain the services of a private company to obtain money for their child and they deem 

that's in their child's best interest, they should be allowed to do that. That's our position here 

today. 

There was no further testimony on this bill. Vice Chairman Dever closed the public hearing. 

Chairman Lee reopened discussion. 

Sen. Lyson: I have a problem with Section 5. 

Sen. Warner: I have a problem with creating exemption. There are a lot of agencies that could 

make a similar claim. If we just retained that money and the agency ... 

Sen. Lyson: I wouldn't mind, after 10 years is it, when it goes back into the general fund? 

Sen. Warner: No, I think it stays in there forever. 

Chairman Lee: Last week in GV A we were talking about unclaimed property. 

Sen. Brown: I listened more about the disbursements from unclaimed property. You can't get it 

out of there without good documentation. 

Sen. Dever: Sounds like a money grab to me. And it does say that-later if they came to claim it, 

they say it's subject to appropriation. 

Sen. Warner: Some ofus were alarmed with the invasivness of the federal regulations in 

banking. 

Sen. Brown: Only the matches are saved. 

Sen. Dever: If you're behind in your child support and you have money in your account, they c 

an sweep your account. 

Chairman Lee: That's federal law? 
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Sen. Lyson: That's what he (Jim Fleming) said and I think there probably is some federal law in 

there, according to the banker I talked to. 

Sen. Brown: The only data that is saved are the matches. 

Chairman Lee: The information is red flagged. 

Sen. Lyson: They would then get an execution and it would be served on the bank to freeze that 

account. 

Chairman Lee: So the child support unit is the one that ends up with the red flag? 

Sen. Lyson: Correct. They (department) gets the execution and the sheriff serves it to the bank 

and that freezes that account. The other part of that is they want permission now to do their own 

levies and draw the money out of the bank. Right now the only people that can do that is the 

sheriff, and I'm not sure, it might be constitutionally done (the constitution says the sheriff has to 

do it). 

Sen. Brown: Section 1 has to do with collection agencies--there are collection agencies around 

the country, it hasn't hit here yet, are approaching those that are supposed to get child support but 

aren't getting it. They're signing them up, and going after the money, and you've got Fleming's 

testimony--in there are samples of two different contracts, one calls for 50% cost and the other 

35% cost. This to me is outrageous. 

Sen. Lyson: I don't care about the cost, I didn't like the things in the contract. 

Chairman Lee: Well no payment of current support, while there's any balance remaining on 

arrears? This is true no matter what payment is called by the NCC judge court clerk (reading 

from the contract) . 
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Sen. Lyson: I don't think that contract would stand up in North Dakota because there are several 

things in there that are against the law here. 

Sen. Brown: The way Section 1 is written, it would pretty much eliminate these companies 

from doing business in North Dakota. Go to the last page (of Jim Fleming's testimony) and 

there's a copy of an envelope from this group that wants to come and see us. It shows the social 

security number in the window. 

Chairman Lee: I forgot to ask Mr. Fleming how much of the $200 million arrearage is interest. 

Sen. Brown: He did say that the interest was adding up way too much. 

Sen. Warner: He said $2 million a month was adding up. 

Sen. Dever: Half of that is owed to the state . 

Chairman Lee: The child winds up getting state aid because the obligor isn't paying regularly 

to keep up the family. 

Sen. Dever: So that arrearage, would that go to the state or the family? 

Chairman Lee: It goes to the state because the state has paid the family already. 

Sen. Dever: Todd was here and said that North Dakota agencies don't get involved unless 

someone writes a bad check. 

Sen. Brown: The bill has some plusses. 

Chairman Lee suggested that the committee work their way through the rest of it and see what 

other things are redeemable. There are several questions we need to check on. 

Sen. Dever: There are probably some legitimate companies doing this and some really terrible 

ones . 
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Chairman Lee: I have a concern about them .. .I think the child care enforcement unit does need 

to know when money is being paid, and for them to be left out of the loop, which in essence, they 

are, is a concern to me. If these private outfits are contracting directly with the obligee and then 

money winds up going back to them so they can get their fee, the child support enforcement unit 

doesn't get to lay first claim to that. The state doesn't get the first dollar, which is what we 

always thought was appropriate for those families that have received state assistance. 

Sen. Dever: The agencies charge 3 5 to 50%. So does the child support consider that to be full 

payment? As far as the obligor is concerned it, he's paid it. 

Sen. Lyson: He said that child support does not. 

Chairman Lee: With the strengthened tools that the child enforcement unit now has, which 

ticks off any obligor who's behind anyway, do we see that much benefit from permitting those 

private collection offices to come in? 

Sen. Lyson: If the collection agency actually collects some of the arrears for a family and stays 

on his butt and he stays current, is it our business to tell that obligee that they can't give any 

money away, because it's their money now. 

Sen. Warner: It's their children's money actually. This is vindictive behavior, going after them 

at any cost. They're willing to throw away half of the children's inheritance, just to punish the 

other parent. 

Chairman Lee: It is a vulnerable population that will be solicited by these agencies. They're 

desperate for the money and feel that something is better than nothing. There are some 

opportunists out there that are suggesting to people they can't get the money owed to them 

without their help . 
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Sen. Lyson: I'd leave this portion in the bill if we had something to say 'with the agreement of 

the department.' That the money goes directly to the department first. 

Chairman Lee: Then the private agency wouldn't be able to take its fee out first? 

Sen. Lyson: But then I think they'd say it was okay, because the department would pay its 

money back to them. That's what the argument is, if the client gets it, they'll never pay us. 

Sen. Warner: The department says it will not pay the fees, all the money goes to the family. 

Sen. Lyson: But ifwe allowed this thing, I guessing that, we're the policy makers here, ifwe 

make this thing so it says, ' with the authority of the department' and they agree with this 

contract, they will pay the private company. 

Chairman Lee: With the tools that state has available to it now, why is SupportK.ids or any 

other outfit going to be more successful at collecting that the state child support enforcement unit 

might be when they are the ones that can suspend drivers licenses and hunting licenses and other 

things. 

Sen. Lyson: Evidently, they're not doing it. 

Sen. Dever: It's not that no one is doing anything, but they're not having success at it. That 

court case he gave us a copy of had to do with SupportK.ids, too. 

Sen. Lyson: Right now, we don't allow an obligor to pay directly, they have to go through the 

department. So why would we allow anyone to make a contract? They should have to make a 

contract with the department. 

Chairman Lee: It would have to be a three-way contract? They would have to sign off as well? 

I can't imagine they'd be crazy about that, but they'll do whatever we tell them . 
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Sen. Warner: I can't imagine them ever doing it voluntarily. I feel comfortable with mandating 

that they have to. 

Sen. Lyson: I don't think we have to mandate, but just say they 'may'. If they've got a deadbeat 

they haven't been able to find for years, and the collection agency finds him and gets some 

money, that's better that nothing. 

Sen. Brown: But it's coming at great cost. 

Sen. Lyson: But we weren't getting anything before. 

Sen. Dever: Why doesn't the state contract with them? 

Chairman Lee: Good question. Maybe we should enable the state to contract with them. 

Sen. Lyson: That's what I'm saying . 

Sen. Warner: If the state would contract directly, who would pay that? Would the state be 

deducting fees from the obligation, or is an additional appropriation needed to deduct from the 

general fund? 

Sen. Lyson: That's why you would need permission from the obligee to go into this thing 

because if would come out of the funds collected. 

There was further discussion on the remaining sections of the bill. 

Chairman Lee ended discussion on this bill. No action was taken . 
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Chairman Lee opened the meeting on HB 1172. All Senators were present. 

Paul Sanderson, representing Supportkids appeared before the committee, and introduced 

Sarah Anderson. 

Sarah Anderson explained her situation with Supportkids to the committee. Her ex-husband in 

Indiana refused to pay child support. In 2000, she moved up to North Dakota, her husband was 

$86,000 behind in child support payments. He failed to show up to court and make his 

payments. When North Dakota prosecutors could not help her, since her husband was in another 

state, collections could not be enforced. Supportkids helped her out greatly, private investigators 

tracked her ex-husband down and are making sure he pays child support. 

Chairman Lee- Are private collection agencies illegal in Indiana? 

Sarah- No, they aren't. 
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Senator Dever- Have you had child support collections since moving to North Dakota? Did 

North Dakota Child Support help you out? 

Sarah- Not until I hired Supportkids a little over a year ago. My youngest child is now 20. North 

Dakota child support told me there was nothing they could do to assist me since the divorce took 

place in Indiana, North Dakota can't enforce Indiana laws. 

Senator Lyson- What year was your divorce? 

Sarah- 1985. 

Senator Lyson- The amount that the courts ordered at that time are much lower than what the 

federal standards are at this time. Did you go back to court in Indiana in 2000 to get reinstated 

for child support? 

Sarah- I had an attorney go back, but my ex-husband would not show up for court. I was left 

with nothing. 

Eric Rosenkoetter, Executive Counsel for Supportkids, appeared in support of the bill. See 

written testimony. 

Chairman Lee- So, are the only amendments you have to offer are those mentioned in the 

conclusion of your written testimony? 

Eric- Correct. 

Senator Dever- I am surprised the opposition party is not here. Is that the general sense of the 

industry? Are their agencies we need to be more concerned about? 

Eric- We are an active member of the child support enforcement council, which is our industry 

trade group. I am not aware of any agencies who go to the extreme on this issue. I can provide 
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you with a list of the members of the trade group later on. We charge at 34%, while the national 

average is 29%. 

Chairman Lee- The concern was raised by the Attorney General's office, that it is our 

responsibility to see if private collections agencies play a role, and how to protect people that 

need all of the money. They obviously are not able to keep a third of it. 

Eric- By the time people are willing to pay a fee to a private agency, they have been through the 

state Child Support program for quite a long time. If a fiscal note was added to this bill, I would 

suggest a regulatory system similar to what we have in Texas. There are certain restrictions in 

the contracts, that need to be reviewed by an attorney. That is the only way to ensure consumer 

protection. 

Senator Dever- If a obligor pays $100, and you take $34 out of it, the obligor is only credited for 

paying $66? 

Eric- No. He would get full credit for the entire amount. It goes straight from the employer to 

the state disbursement unit, then to our agency. The obligors credit goes through before we take 

out our portion. 

Senator Lyson- If we go by what the unit wants, you have to take it out. If this bill goes 

through, you would take your fee out before sending it to the state? 

Eric- No. There has been poor communication between our agency and the ND Child Support 

office. I've tried for 2 years and had no success with that. 

Chairman Lee- Your organization is in all 50 states, and operates the same way in each one? 

Eric- There are three states that we collect in, but don't take fines in. Those states have 

restrictive statutes and fee caps in place. 
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Chairman Lee- Could you go into those states after non-compliant obligors? 

Eric- Yes, ifwe are licensed there. We don't accept clients in states that mandate us to only 

charge 15-20%, that is below our break even percentage. 

Chairman Lee- How are you licensed? Is it done by a board? 

Eric- We are licensed in sixteen states, by the Fair Debt Collections Practices Act. 

Chairman Lee- Who do you report to? 

Eric- Most states have a regulatory Debt Collections Board, that we report to. 

Senator Lyson- In section 5, with the money we are not able to disburse, where should the funds 

go? 

Senator Warner- Whether its an electronic transfer or a check, there is a balance on an account 

somewhere that is not being retained. Does it go in the unclaimed property division? 

Jim Fleming, representing the Department of Human Services appeared before the 

committee. In section 5, if the desire is to continue sending the money in the unclaimed 

properties division, that would be fine. We don't want to make money off of our clientele, and 

sometimes it appears that way to some people. 

Senator Warner- What happens to un-allocated resources once the electronic transfer is 

complete. If it goes to a bank account or debit card account, then those agencies tum the money 

back to unclaimed properties. After 3 years, it heads over to unclaimed properties. If they close 

their account, then the bank would need to keep track of how long its been unclaimed and tum it 

over to unclaimed property division. The money doesn't reside in our department. 

Senator Lee- A question for Eric- you talked about deleting all of section I, does that include 

subsection I? 
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Eric- That is an option, we have a small amount of clients up here, and that doesn't really justify 

us getting licensed here at this time. 

Chairman Lee- In subsection 3, you are mentioning the payment going to the Dept. of Human 

Services rather than your agency? 

Eric- Yes. 

Chairman Lee asked for clarification on the proposed amendments for the bill from Eric, who 

went on to explain. 

Carlee McLeod, committee intern explained duties of obligor, and collection practices from 

her research. 

Jim Fleming- The plan we have now is working, its an established practice. Sometimes we find 

out late regarding debt, and its not commercially reasonable. If a person wants to attach pension 

benefits, you obtain a copy of their form, and is referred to as a qualified pension order. Public 

pensions generally follow the same rules as private pensions. The provisions have been reviewed 

by PERS & TFFR, and they are comfortable with it. There are several pension sections 

throughout the bill. 

He stated that Mike Schwindt has an open line of communication, and that they met with 

Supportkids to discuss this issue. Supportkids have not bothered to change their amendments 

since January. ND law says that in every child support case, that the SOU pays the obligee 

personally. There is no federal or state law requirement that we honor the customer's request to 

send them money to their agent. Child support payments can't be garnished. The most important 

thing is the child support check gets to the family that needs it. 

Senator Lyson- At least they get 66 cents on the dollar, they do get some money. 
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Jim- You are correct. We are not trying to prevent this tool from being available to families. We 

do not want to be known as the collection agent for these agencies. 

Senator Lyson- If the collection agency collects the money, and holds out their amount and 

sends you the rest, the obligor only gets credit for what they sent you. 

Jim- Correct. That is very much unfair to the obligor. Anything that comes to the SDU, we 

apply dollar for dollar to that debt. The SDU is the first step for those payments. The obligor 

gets credit for every dollar passed through the SDU. 

Chairman Lee- If the statute were changed so the custodial parent could designate to whom the 

check was sent, that would mean any judgement issued by the court would have to include that 

provision? 

Jim- Legally the payment would be to the custodial parent by paying their agency. We would be 

distributing to the obligee through their agent. If the committee was entertaining an amendment 

that would require us to redirect the money, we would ask that you remove section I from the 

bill. 

Chairman Lee- If we were interested in permitting private collection agencies to do business in 

ND, but wanted the money to go to Child Support enforcement first, and then it would move on 

to the designee. Tell me how we need to amend the bill in your view to make that happen. 

Jim- We do not feel comfortable redirecting because we are aware of the industry standard. If 

you change the law to redirect, we will honor that. As a result the private collection agencies will 

have to pay the SDU 100% of what they collect. 

Senator Lyson- The argument to me, is if they are not getting anything, what are they losing? 
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Jim- The clientele of the companies are not limited to people who are not getting their payments. 

The custodial parent has for the duration of the obligation, giving away a percentage of the kids' 

current support, when if it would have went through us, they would have got I 00%. 

Chairman Lee- Is there an interest on the committee with private agencies operating in the 

state? I would like some direction on this issue. 

Senator Brown- It is more expensive than its worth. 

Senator Lyson- Its the right of the custodial parent to be able to use the services, if they so 

desire. 

Senator Warner- It is expensive, but we should not forbid these companies from doing business 

in our state. The only problem is who gets the check first, and what amount they receive . 

Jim- If you do not pass section I of the bill, any of the agencies wanting to do business in the 

state would be required to be licensed. Section I is not necessary, there will be some protection 

in place. We would continue to pay the obligees and let them and their companies handle the 

contracts. It would be helpful to get a legislative decision on whether or not payments are 

redirected to private collection agencies .. 

Chairman Lee- Eric, do you have any states that the checks do not go to you, but instead go to 

the obligee? 

Eric- It goes to our agency first. 

Senator Lyson- I think the amendments need some more work done, before we take action. I 

don't see how we can take the rights away of people in this case. 

Eric-The dollars are credited when they are sent to the state disbursement unit. 

Senator Dever- Are most of your customers seriously past due? 
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Eric- Out of our 40,000 customers, the average length of time is 6 years, and more than $60,000 

behind in child support. 

Jim- In North Dakota, it is not only the 4D cases that go through the SDU, all cases go through. 

We keep track of everything, all payments need to go through us for the state's official records. 

Eric- Under the scenario that Mr. Fleming has proposed today, we would be unlikely to do 

business in the state. We would not be likely to collect our fees and figure out the contract 

balances. 

Chairman Lee- We will wait on the amendments for the re-engrossed bill. (She briefly ran 

through each section of the bill) The main section of the bill that we need to focus on is Section 

1. 

Jim explained where commas needed to be inserted in various sections of the bill. 

Chairman Lee closed the meeting on HB 1172. No action was taken . 
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Chairman Lee reopened discussion on HB 1172. All members were present. 

Sen. Warner: I think ifwe don't do anything, then we have a hard time forbidding them from 

practicing at all in the state. They could still operate from another state couldn't they? 

Chairman Lee: They are already. 

Sen. Lyson: Ifwe kill the bill they can operate right now. I have a little heart burn with that. I 

think we should have some sort of restrictions on them. 

Chairman Lee: I agree. 

Vice Chairman Dever: I think they should be allowed to but with some controls. 

Sen. Lyson: I don't agree with Jim's conditions because he was making it so it's impossible for 

them. There has to be a way to do this properly. 

Attachment I was passed out. 
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Chairman Lee: On the new amendment, they really wanted section 1 deleted and they didn't put 

that in the amendment. Any thoughts on that? 

Sen. Brown: Who wanted section 1 out? 

Chairman Lee: SupportKids. 

Sen. Brown: That's a good reason to leave it in. 

Sen. Lyson: Carlee says that private child support collection agencies have no obligation to be 

licensed if either the custodial parent or non-custodial parent resides in North Dakota. But we 

have to have them licensed. Right now, the way the law is written, they don't even have to be 

licensed. 

Sen. Brown: That's what section 1 does -- must be licensed? 

Chairman Lee: And because they're collecting, financial institutions will develop the rules and 

we don't have to be too specific about what the rules oflicensure would be because that's who 

would be developing the rules. Because it is a collection agency. 

Vice Chairman Dever: We should check with the Secretary of State to make sure SupportK.ids 

has a corporate license. 

Sen. Lyson: If they have a corporate license, they are probably bonded, right? 

Sen. Brown: I don't think so, and I don't know if they'd be registered necessarily, if they're 

headquarters out of Texas. 

Chairman Lee asked the intern (sub), Peggy, to check ifSupportKids was registered with the 

Secretary of State or with the Department of Financial Institutions. 

There was some general discussion on registration and licensure. They started looking at the 

information provided by Carlee (Research Points: HB 1172) 
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Chairman Lee reminded the committee that they had letters from the Child Support 

Enforcement council, David Conder and Mary Anne Best who are opposed to the bill. These 

documents were reviewed and discussed. They also discussed the proposed amendments. 

Senator Brown moved DO PASS an amendment (attachment 3), seconded by Senator Warner 

VOTE: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent 

Senator Brown moved DO PASS the amended bill and rerefer to Appropriations, seconded by 

Senator Warner 

VOTE: 5 yeas, 0 nays O absent Carrier: Senator Warner 

Chairman Lee reopened discussion on the bill. Peggy had the information that Chairman Lee 

requested earlier. 

Peggy: I called the Secretary of State and the department of financial institutions. The Secretary 

of State's office said that SupportKids is not registered in North Dakota. And at the department 

of financial institutions, and they said that SupportKids did not have a collection agency license 

in North Dakota. 

Chairman Lee: So why do I have notes about the department of financial institutions would 

implement rules? I wrote that down when we discussed this bill. 

Sen. Lyson: I remember when you brought that up and wrote it down. 

There was further discussion on licensing and lawyers and the person who testified who used 

SupportKids to collect child support for her . 
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Chairman Holmberg called the hearing to order on HB 1172 . 

Meter# 
-4,958 

Jim Flemming, Director, Child Support Office, testified in support of HB 1172, indicated that 

this bill and HB 1173 are on child support enforcement. This bill has a fiscal note of $4,000 for 

minor computer projects. 

Chairman Holmberg indicated this bill comes with a minimal amount of money and that 

Senator Judy Lee has additional information on HB 1173. He indicated that both bills will go to 

subcommittee. 

Ralph Reimers, citizen, Grand Forks, testified on HB 1172, indicating he had some suggested 

changes, some of which are an infringement on rules of civil procedure. Areas of concern are 

Section 2, page 2, paragraph 3 is an infringement on rules of civil procedure; page 3 section 3 

deals with reasonable health insurance the words in place of should be included; bottom of page 

3, in event of a former spouse becoming deceased, the support should go to something other then 
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the estate of; and concerns on page 4, civil penalties to employers who don't respond should be 

struck out. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1172 . 
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Chairman Holmberg called the discussion to order on HB 1172. 
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Jim Fleming, Division of Human Services, testified on HB 1172, presenting a quick overview 

of the fiscal impact, indicating that most of the changes affected policy. The purpose of the bill 

is to protect consumers from private child support collectors. 

Discussion ensued about tribes taking over child support collections and the involvement of 

Division of Human Services. 

Senator Tallackson moved a DO PASS, Senator Fischer seconded. A roll call vote was 

taken resulting in 12 yes, 2 no and 1 absent. The motion carried. Senator Warner will 

carry the bill. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the discussion on HB 1172 . 
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REP. PORTER. CHAIRMAN Called the conference committee to order. 

Meter# 
0 

REP. PORTER Stated that after last Friday's meeting the Independent Community Bankers 

and the department got together regarding the area of the lien in section 4, which was the item of 

contention as we adjourned last meeting. That language has been addressed by the Independent 

Bankers and the e-mail that I received is that everyone is 0.K. with the language in Section 4 

now. The other area which was addressed, was already changed in Section 8, subsection 1, 

where the arrears registry is still at $2,000 for two months, and to be listed now requires $10,000. 

SEN. LEE Asked if there was any concerns with the amendments. 

SEN. LYSON Asked what happens when the bank receives a judgement from the IRS. 

REP. PORTER He thought the language in Section 4, is what this bill left the House with. We 

could ask Mr. Flemming to address the order with which this section will work. 

JIM FLEMMING There is a section in current law that is not being amended in the bill, that I 
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believe answers the question. Referred to new subsection 4, former subsection 3. A lien under 

this section is perfected when the financial institution is served with notice of the lien. There is a 

section in existing code that is not in the bill before you. Went on to read the section. If the IRS 

lien is perfected first, it has priority. 

SEN. LYSON If the state's lien is perfected first, we could supercede a lien from the IRS? 

JIM FLEMMING I am not sure what type of overall global, priority, a federal IRS lien is 

going to have. 

REP. PORTER Stated the major changes were in section 4, and in 2b, it also changed section 

8. 

MIKE SCHWINDT Spoke from the sidelines, stating there is an add-on in Section 3 . 

JIM FLEMMING Stated without the new language in there, because we are looking at this as 

a third party wants to buy an asset subject to a lien, they are not looking to the lien, to know how 

much is owed, they are just looking to the lien, saying I better check with child support because 

there is a lien on the property. When they call child support, the language originally in the bill 

would have said, the notice oflien, or the lien automatically grows when there is a new months 

arrears. It would tie up the whole asset. That is the reason for the exception. Mr. Flemming 

gave different scenarios of examples. 

SEN. LEE Made a motion that the Senate recede from their amendments and that we amend 

Version Two B along with the other amendments which came from the Senate. 

SEN. WARNER Second the motion. Motion carried by voice vote. 

JIM FLEMMING Explained the next set of amendments for Version One. 
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REP. KALDOR Asked, aren't we talking about what they owe, but what can be used for the 

lien. 

JIM FLEMMING Let's assume that we have attached an account that is exempt from process, 

we didn't know the exemption applied, but under protest, it was pointed out that that is true. We 

have to leave the account alone, but the obligore is still sitting out there with arrearage. 

REP. KALDOR It would be one thing if the individual won under the protest period, they still 

had the arrearage, and interest is still accumulating on the arrearage, if they lost and gave up that 

asset, then the interest rate shouldn't have accumulated during the protest period. 

SEN.WARNER TO MR. FLEMMING None of these fees paid for these different 

transactions along the way, none of these fees are coming from money owed to the obligee. 

JIM FLEMMING Let's assume the account has one thousand dollars in it, and our lien is two 

thousand dollars, the bank would give us nine hundred ninety seven and we would mark the lien 

partially satisfied with the tune of nine hundred ninety seven dollars. Likewise, with the 

proceeds of an execution, the fees are deducted from the proceeds of the sale of the asset, only 

the balance turned over as a disbursement to us. The obligee is not charged for those fees or 

charges, they are taken off the top. 

SEN:WARNER Was concerned that, if there was a federal componant, the money was coming 

out of department to the federal government, and the collection of those fees were not being 

diverted to the sheriffs and other officials. 

JIM FLEMMING No, it is traditional judgement collection is that the judgement debtor is 

responsible for the amount of the debt plus the fee on top of it. 

REP. KALDOR Asked what an example of an exemption is. 
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JIM FLEMMING With child support, there is not a lot that is exempt. Read several 

exemptions. With regard to the accounts, if you have insurance benefits, of any of the items he 

read off, that would be exempt. 

SEN. LYSON Stated he still had a problem with the Attorney General's Office stating that 

these meet the minimum standards of due process. He wasn't sure he wanted a state agency to 

meet the minimum standards. 

SEN. LEE stated it is a special challenge to collect child support from those individuals who 

are self-employed or who work for cash. We are trying to equalize all of those folks. The 

Attorney General's Office has assured us that the criteria has been met. I am trying to figure out 

what we can do to make this better so you are satisfied with it. There isn't any ladder of 

standards for us to work with. 

SEN. LYSON There is no way this will be completely acceptable to me. I believe state 

agencies should meet more than minimum standards of doing anything that we do. I don't 

believe what this thing does, will bring more dollars into Workmen's Comp. It may create a little 

less work but will not bring one penny more in. Along with that, I think, some place along the 

line, we are going to have to start looking at who all gets hurt. All we looked at is the child 

support, and get the money. Some place along the line we are going to have to start looking at 

causes of what is causing all of these arrears in child support. Until we start doing that, it will go 

from 169 million to 209 million, like last time. He related to a personal experience with 

someone he knows. 

SEN. LEE Would you be willing to include Section B of this, if you find Section A 

unacceptable? 
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SEN. LYSON My biggest problem with the way this is happening, is that, the child support due 

process in North Dakota has never been done right. The problem is coming from the Attorney 

General's Office. There is a reason we have due process in civil actions, that's what this is. 

Everybody has to be treated fairly. 

REP. PORTER Which section do you have the biggest problem with, Section A, Section B 

SEN. LYSON Section B, there is nothing wrong with that. With Section A, Section B is an 

absolute necessity. Without Section A, Section B doesn't even have to be there. 

SEN. LEE Asked Jim Flemming and Mike Schwindt what needs to be done if they exclude 

Section A. 

JIM FLEMMING Stated his understanding of the current execution process is that when a 

sheriff executes the writ, the debtor has ten days to claim the exemption. I am thinking, 

provision B, alone, even without A, would give the obligore another twenty days longer then is in 

the existing execution process. It is governed as much by custom of counties, then by the letter 

of the law. Right now, we are geared up, as soon as the money comes in the door, we spit it out. 

There is really no precedent here in terms of execution, for hanging onto the money, pending the 

protest. 

REP. PORTER Asked how Section A changes how things are currently done. 

JIM FLEMMING Section A, takes the existing execution process and removes the docketing, 

and also removes the involvement of the sheriff. Instead of a writ of execution, handed to the 

sheriff, it says, please execute on this account, and the sheriff goes to the bank and takes the 

money out, we would be dealing with the bank directly. 

SEN. LYSON There is no challenge after the sheriff has served the execution. 
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REP. KALDOR I am trying to detennine the difference between what is being attempted here 

and the current terms of the level of due process. As it is being described, I am not seeing the 

distinction, whether or not this meets minimum due process, but the does the current model meet 

minimum due process as well. 

SEN. LYSON Stated the Attorney General's Office went through many court cases to come up 

with that wordage. There is one thing that is for sure, if people are going to execute and levy on 

a checking account, without going through the steps of civil process, that we do now, I think, 

personally, that is the problem, there is no third party there, one place is doing it all. 

REP. KALDOR With the sheriff being the third party role, does the sheriff have any discretion 

in their actions, if they believe that somehow, what the department is moving to do, is either an 

injustice or an over reach of their authority? 

SEN. LYSON No, not at all. If the execution is issued and turned over to the sheriff, he must 

execute. 

SEN. WARNER Since we have spoken with the Attorney General, we have added language 

which would take ten days, they have extended the period of review by the courts which would 

take thirty days, this seems to be a much more involved and evolved due process proceeding. I 

have a concern that since it has become so much longer then it was under current law, if the 

judgement is held against the obligore, I honestly believe, they should not be charged interest. 

I would be more comfortable if, in the case where they lost, that the interest would be forgiven. 

REP. PORTER Asked Mike Schwindt, in Section B, the third line, should the word "consider" 

be changed to "dispersed", would that cover Sen. Warner's concern? 
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MIKE SCHWINDT Stated they would not charge interest , he thought they had the authority to 

do that. 

SEN. LEE Stated, I think we all want due process for these people, but we all need to be 

comfortable, or as much as possible, with whether or not we will go forward with the Section A 

portion. In response to Rep. Kaldor's question, that the sheriff doesn't have any latitude, I guess I 

have a question for Sen. Lyson and Mr. Schwindt. If the sheriff has to do it, what do we have to 

do to get the benefits that come from the ob Ii gore in Section A, if the sheriff doesn't have any 

latitude anyway, are we giving up something if we give up all of Section A? 

SEN. LYSON The third party that comes in to do the execution and levy by due process, that I 

believe is so important, rather then having one agency doing everything, I think that is where it is 

at. These other things in here, strictly make it sound good, but it is all in that one area. That is 

where all of the problems come in. If they tie up your bank account and issue an execution, and 

the sheriff executes on that execution, with a levy, and takes out the money, they would get when 

they are served everything, they wouldn't get anything more, all of these things would be gone. 

They have had their due process by getting served and getting their information. 

REP. PORTER What part, with the first class, which part is the problem? 

SEN. LYSON First class mail has been pretty standard for some time. The due process for the 

judgement, is what they are talking about. They can still do the judgement like that. The sheriff 

would execute personally, when they serve. 

REP. PORTER What are the costs for the Clerk of Court to do the docketing and then the 

sheriff to do the serving in the existing system? 
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SEN. LYSON That has changed since I got out. One thing you might think about doing, the 

sheriff's have an in-service training on a yearly basis on the civil process, to say that the 

executions and levies are done differently in the counties, is not true. The execution charge for 

the sheriff is set by statute. 

JIM FLEMMING Stated he thought the sheriff's fee was twenty five dollars and there are 

additional fees, such as mileage and publication, etc. The docketing is no charge. 

Mr. Flemming gave examples of situations that arise. 

SEN. LEE Asked if it would be acceptable if the sheriff is involved with the levy. 

Committee members had discussion back and forth relating to ideas that would make the process 

acceptable to everyone . 

The conference committee will meet at another time . 
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Rep. Porter: Called the meeting to order. Attendance was taken. Everybody received an 

e-mail, and there were copies here if you didn't get one of the new version. Right now we're 

going to be discussing IA and IB, and just so everybody is aware, after our discussions 

yesterday, IB was changed, and it was changed on line 3, where the word disburses is there now, 

was yesterday had the word consider in there, and now it's disburse, and then the last sentence, 

where it starts ''that interest does not accrue under section 28.20-34, after the funds are received 

by the state agency'' was add.ed after our discussion yesterday. So that, if during that protest 

period, once the money is in the hands of the State Disbursement Unit, then the interest clock is 

off until the protest period expires, is what the discussion was yesterday in regards to that. Just 

so that everybody is aware of the changes. We will start back again with IA. 

Sen. Lee: May I have a copy of that, please. I've got the A part, I just need the B part . 
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Rep. Porter: I guess I would open it up for discussion on either IA or lB, whichever the 

committee wants to start with. Based on our discussion yesterday, I asked the Department to 

update that language so that the word "consider" was replaced with "disbursed" and that the last 

sentence was added so that once the State is holding the money, and the protest period, that the 

interest clock is turned off. 

Sen. Warner: Whether or not the ultimate judgment was for the obligor or the obligee. 

Rep. Porter: Correct. 

Sen. Warner: That sounds reasonable. 

Rep. Porter: No, and you're talking 30 days or less. 

Sen. Lee: I think that we've certainly improved on what we had at the beginning, and for the 

purposes of moving on here, I would move that we adopt version IA, dated April 11, 2005. 

Sen. Warner: Seconded. 

Rep. Porter: Motion made by Sen. Lee and seconded by Sen. Warner, for version IA dated 

April 11, 2005. Discussion. Hearing none, motion carried. We have Version IA attached to the 

bill. All that is left is the protest period of Version I B. 

Rep. Nelson: I would move Version IB, dated 4/11/05. 

Rep. Kaldor: Seconded. 

Rep. Porter: Motion made by Rep. Nelson and seconded by Rep. Kaldor, for version lB dated 

4/11/05. Discussion. Hearing none, motion carried. We have Version lB attached to the bill. 

Yesterday's motion was a technical motion that 2B + the Senate had brought, and then these 

amendments, and I guess now, just so that we have a motion, recorded roll call motion to take to 

the Floor with the Conference Committee report is what we would need. 
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mediator that the obligor could come to and say, I'm still not getting my visitation, when I do get 

my visitation she won't give me any clothes to take home with me, and be able to try and have a 

mediator try to work these out between the two. I think right now, every time we turn around, 

we're hurting the children that we're trying to deal with here. I honestly believe that we're just 

creating more of a problem than we're solving. I think we have children hating their father, 

hating their mother and hating the system. When the children start to hate the system, we've got 

mothers-in-law and fathers-in-law, and grandparents that hate the State too; and we've created a 

monster here and we better start looking at it. 

Rep. Porter: I can't disagree with that, Sen. I think that in these proceedings, we try to once 

remove ourselves, but there is always a certain level of animosity that exists in what goes on 

here, and there had to be something that caused two people, who were together and had a child, 

to suddenly not be together, and sometimes that hate and anger is more than we can accomplish. 

If a mediator system, or social services involvement or something helps to remove some of that 

animosity, I think that I would be all for it. You're right, I think that in the end, when those 

situations happen where that animosity goes down to the children, that we just end of making 

angry children, and children don't deserve to be angry. I don't disagree with that. I definitely 

appreciate everybody's time and effort on this, these are always tough issues to deal with from 

sitting up here in this particular place and trying to get these passed so they work for the best of 

the children. We are adjourned. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1172 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1344 of the House Journal 
and page 847 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1172 be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, line 3, after the first comma insert "three new sections to chapter 50-09," 

Page 1, line 6, replace "subsection 5 of section 14-09-25" with "section 14-09-09.10, 
subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2" and remove "and" · 

Page 1, line 7, after the first comma insert "35-34-02, 35-34-05, 35-34-09, and", after the 
second .comma insert "subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6, subsection 1 of section 
50-09-32,", and after "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 8, after the first comma insert "account liens,• 

Page 3, replace lines 13 through 29 with: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 14-09-09.10 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

14-09-09.10. Definitions. For the purposes of this chapter, unless the context 
or subject matter otherwise requires: 

1. Arrears reqistry" means the reqistry maintained under section 16 of this 
Act. 

2. "Business day" means every day that is not a Saturday or legal holiday. 

2-. 3. "Child support" means payments for the support of children and combined 
payments for the support of children and spouses or former spouses, 
however denominated, if the payment is required by the order of a court or 
other governmental agency having authority to issue such orders. 

& 4. "Child support agency" means the county social service board, any 
combination of county social service boards, or any entity created by a 
county social service board or any combination of county social service 
boards, in execution of the county social service board's duties under 
subsection 5 of section 50-09-03. 

+. 5. "Delinquent" means a situation which occurs on the first working day after 
the day upon which a child support payment was identified as due and 
unpaid, and the total amount of unpaid child support is at least equal to the 
amount of child support payable in one month. 

5-: 6. "Disposable income" means gross income less deductions required by law 
fortaxes and social security. · 

6, 7. "Employer" means income payer. 
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+, 8. "Health insurance" includes fees for service, health maintenance 
organization, preferred provider organization, comprehensive health 
association plan, accident and health insurance policies, group health 

• 
plans as defined in section 607(1) of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 [Pub. L. 99-272; 100 Stat. 281; 29 U.S.C. 1167(1)], 
and other types of coverage under which major medical coverage may be 
provided in a policy, plan, or contract which may legally be sold or provided 
in this state. 

&- 9. "Income" means any form of payment, regardless of source, owed to an 
obligor, including any earned, unearned, taxable or nontaxable income, 
workforce safety and insurance benefits, disability benefits, unemployment 
compensation benefits, annuity and retirement benefits, but excluding 
public assistance benefits administered under state law. 

9, 1Q,_ "Income payer" means any person, partnership, firm, corporation, limited 
liability company, association, political subdivision, or department or 
agency of the state or federal government owing income to an obligor and 
includes an obligor if the obligor is self-employed. 

11.,_ "Monthlv support obliaation" means an amount of child support ordered bv 
a court or administrative tribunal in a proceedina to establish or modify a 
child support obliaation, including amounts that are deferred for payment at 
a later date. The term is defined without reaard to any amount of child 
support that an obliaor is reauired to pay to avoid beina held in contempt of 
court. If an amount of past-due supoort has been ordered as a lump sum 
rather than determined on a monthlv basis. "monthlv support obliaation" 
means one hundred sixtv-eiaht dollars. 

• 4-9, 12 . "Obligee" means a person, including a state or political subdivision, to 
whom a duty of support is owed. ' 

1. 

~ 13. "Obliger" means any person owing a duty of support. 

~ 14. "Past-due support" means child support that is not paid by the earlier of: 

a. The date a court order or an order of an administrative process 
established under state law requires payment to be made; or 

b. The last day of the month or other period the payment was intended to 
cover. 

43, ~ "Payday" means the day upon which the income payer pays or otherwise 
credits the obligor. 

#. 12,_ "Public authority" means the department of human services in execution of 
its duties pursuant to the state plan submitted under chapter 50-09 in 
conformance with title IV-D of the Social Security Act [Pub. L. 93-647; 88 
Stat. 2351; 42 U.S.C. 651 et seq.]. 

~ .1L. "System implementation date' means the date the public authority certifies 
to the secretary of state and the legislative council that the statewide 
automated data processing system, established under section 50-09-02.1, 
is operating." 

- Page 4, line 2, after "program• insert an underscored comma 

Page 4, line 3, after "plan" insert a underscored comma 
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Page 4, line 18, replace "are" with "is" 

Page 4, after line 23, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the 
North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Notwithstanding the provioion:: of section 28-21-05, if ::i judgment hoc been 
docl<ctcd under ::oction 14 08.1 05 in ::in amount grooter than ::;ix time:: the 
monthly child :;upport obligation ::ind the judgment debtor ic not current in a 
court e::t::iblichcd plan to repay the unpaid child :;upport judgment is listed 
on the arrears reaistrv as defined in section 14-09-09.10, or if the iudament 
debtor meets criteria established by the secretary of the United States 
department of health and human services that apply when a financial 
institution is doina business in two or more states, the department of 
human services may issue an execution, against the property of the 
judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which the property may be 
found. 

2. A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need 
not be docketed and the writ may elftffi 

a-, The ::;cal of the court; 

e: The :;ubr..,oription of the olerl< of that court; 

e, The ::itte:Jt::ition in the 11ume of the judge of the court that entered the 
jl:lelQFF19A1; 

a-: I\ :Jt::itornent of the court:: and oountie:: to which the judgment ha:: 
been tran:;oribcd; and 

e, If the writ i:; i:r.,ucd to a ::hcriff of a county other than the county in 
which the judgment i:; dool<ctcd, ::i date ::ind time of docl<cting in that 
::ihcriff':; county be issued in a form prescribed by the department of 
human services. A writ issued under this section must be 
accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 which has been certified under section 
14-08.1-08." 

Page 5, after line 15, insert: 

. "SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When a pa::t due child :;upport 
obligation ic ::it loo:Jt ::;ix time:: the monthly child :;upport obligation ::ind the an obliger is 
not current in ::i court e:;tabli::hcd plan to repay the pa:,t due :;upport listed on the 
arrears reaistrv as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public authority may establish a 
lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. Except for liens under section 
35-34-05, the amount of a lien under this chapter includes any past-due support that is 
owed when the lien is perfected and anv past-due support that accrues after the lien is 
perfected. 

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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35-34-05. Account lien. 

1. In the case of an account maintained in a financial institution, the public 
authority may establish a lien on the account by serving a notice of lien 
upon the financial institution in the manner provided for service of a 
summons in a civil action or in any other manner aareed to by the financial 
institution. The notice must be in a form prescribed by the public authority 
and contain the name, social security number, or other taxpayer 
identification number and last-known address of the obligor, the amount of 
past-due support for which a lien is claimed, and any other information 
required by the public authority. The notice of lien must state that the child 
support obligation is past due and that a copy of the notice of lien has been 
served on the obligor by first-class mail at the obligor's last-known address. 

2. Upon service of the notice of lien on a financial institution in accordance 
with this section, the lien attaches to accounts of the obligor maintained in 
the financial institution, cxoopt to the extent noococ::iry to and freezes all 
subseauent withdrawals from the account except for funds in excess of the 
amount of past-due support for which a lien is claimed under this section 
and as provided in subsection 3. 

3. Notwithstandina a freeze on an account under subsection 2, the financial 
institution may satisfy any right of setoff which exists in connection with an 
account, payment orders that were made by the obligor before the financial 
institution was served with notice of lien, or other obligations of the obligor 
based upon written agreements or instruments made or issued by the 
obligor before the financial institution was served with notice of lien. 

& 4. A lien under this section is perfected when the financial institution is served 
with notice of the lien . 

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from liability. A person in possession of, or obligated 
with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, surrenders the 
property or diochargc:: the obligation to the publio authority. complies with section 
35-34-12. or otherwise acts in aood faith to comply with the reauirements in this 
chapter. is immune from suit or any liability to the obliger or other por:x>n ::irioing from 
the ourrcndcr or payment under any federal or state law. The court shall award 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any person who commences an action 
that is subsequently dismissed by reason of the immunity granted by this section." 

Page 6, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears reqlstrv. The state case reaistry maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reaistrv of anv obliaor who owes past-due support in 
an amount areater than two times the obliaor's current or most recent monthly support 
obligation as defined in section 14-09-09.10 or two thousand dollars. whichever is less. 
As used in this chapter, "arrears reaistrv" means the reaistrv maintained under this 
section. 

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 

a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply with 
. a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 

b. An obliger who is in orroar::i in child ::;upport in on amount greater than 
three time:; the obliger'::; current or moot recent monthly child ouppcrt 
obligation or five thou:mnd dollar:;, whichever iG lc:x; listed on the 
arrears reaistry; or 

c. An obliger who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan that 
has been negotiated between the obliger and the state agency under 
this section or in exchanae for the state aaencv refrainina from takina 
an enforcement action aaainst the obliaor. 

SECTION 18. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support deduction order. 

1,_ The state aaency. directly or through agents or child support aaencies, mav 
issue an order reauiring an income payer to deduct the amount identified in 
the order from the portion of any lump sum payment to an obliaor that has 
been withheld under section 14-09-09.34. 

2. The state aaency, directly or throuah aaents or child support aaencies. may 
issue an order reauirina a financial institution to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from any account of the obliaor maintained in the 
financial institution . 

3. The state aaency shall serve the order on the income payer or financial 
institution in the manner provided for service of a summons in a civil action 
or in any other manner agreed to by the income payer or financial 
institution. The state agency shall serve a COPY of the order upon the 
obliger by first-class mail to the obliaor's last-known address, alona with a 
notice of the obliaor's riaht to claim that the property is exempt from legal 
process under section 28-22-02, the riaht to reauest an informal review by 
the state aaency within ten days of the date of the notice, and the riaht of 
the obliaor and any other aaarieved person to a review by a court under 
section 50-09-14. If an informal review is reauested under this subsection. 
the time for reauestina a review by a court under section 50-09-14 does not 
expire until thirty days after the informal review is completed. 

4. The income payer or financial institution shall deduct the amount identified 
in the order or the balance of the account, whichever is less. and transmit 
the funds to the state disbursement unit within seven business days of the 
date the order is served. 

5. An order issued under this section has priority over any other leaal process 
· aaainst the same account, except to the extent necessarv to satisfy any 

riaht of setcff which exists in connection with an account, payment orders 
that were made by the obliaor before the financial institution was served 
with the order. or other obliaations of the obliger based upon written 
aareements or instruments made or issued by the obliaor before the 
financial.institution was served with the order . 

6. An income payer or financial institution may also withhold and retain an 
additional sum of three dollars from the obliaor's account or from the 
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amount retained under section 14-09-09.34 to cover expenses involved in 
transmittina pavment. 

7. An income payer or financial institution receivina an order under this 
section is subject to the same duties and liabilities as an income paver 
under section 14-09-09.3 unless the context indicates otherwise and is 
immune from suit or liability for complyina with an order under this section. 

SECTION 19. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Protest period. Except as authorized bv the obliaor. the state aaencv shall 
hold any funds collected under section 28-21-05.2 or section 18 of this Act and may not 
disburse the funds as a collection of child support until the time has expired for 
reauestina a review bv a court under section 50-09-14 or the conclusion of the review, 
whichever is later. Interest does not accrue under section 28-20-34 after the funds are 
received by the state aaency. 

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obligor who is listed on the arrears reaistrv and owes past-due 
child support in an amount greater than i,,.,eR~ li\•e ten thousand dollars, 
including the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, occupation, 
photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and ages of the 
children for whom support is owed, and any other information that would 
assist in locating the person.• 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) 
April 13, 2005 3:21 p.m. 

Module No: HR-68-8066 

Insert LC: 58217.0302 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1172, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Lyson, Warner and 

Reps. Porter, Nelson, Kaldor) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from the 
Senate amendments on HJ page 1344, adopt amendments as follows, and place 
HB 1172 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1344 of the House Journal 
and page 847 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1172 be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, line 3, after the first comma insert "three new sections to chapter 50-09," 

Page 1, line 6, replace "subsection 5 of section 14-09-25" with "section 14-09-09.10, 
subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2" and remove "and" 

Page 1, line 7, after the first comma insert "35-34-02, 35-34-05, 35-34-09, and", after the 
second comma insert "subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6, subsection 1 of section 
50-09-32,", and after "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 8, after the first comma insert "account liens," 

Page 3, replace lines 13 through 29 with: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 14-09-09.10 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

14-09-09.10. Definitions. For the purposes of this chapter, unless the context 
or subject matter otherwise requires: 

1. Arrears registry" means the registrv maintained under section 16 of this 
Act. 

2. "Business day" means every day that is not a Saturday or legal holiday. 

2' 3. "Child support" means payments for the support of children and combined 
payments for the support of children and spouses or former spouses, 
however denominated, if the payment is required by the order of a court or 
other governmental agency having authority to issue such orders. 

&- 4. "Child support agency" means the county social service board, any 
combination of county social service boards, or any entity created by a 
county social service board or any combination of county social service 
boards, in execution of the county social service board's duties under 
subsection 5 of section 50-09-03. 

+. 5. "Delinquent" means a situation which occurs on the first working day after 
the day upon which a child support payment was identified as due and 
unpaid, and the total amount of unpaid child support is at least equal to the 
amount of child support payable in one month. 

e-: 6. 

&, 7. 

7. 8. 

(2) DESK. (2) COMM 

"Disposable income" means gross income less deductions required by law 
for taxes and social security . 

"Employer" means income payer. 

"Health insurance" includes fees for service, health maintenance 
organization, preferred provider organization, comprehensive health 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) 
April 13, 2005 3:21 p.m. 

Module No: HR-68-8066 

Insert LC: 58217.0302 

11,_ 

*- 12..,_ 

44-: ~ 

~ 14. 

association plan, accident and health insurance policies, group health 
plans as defined in section 607(1) of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 [Pub. L. 99-272; 100 Stat. 281; 29 U.S.C. 1167(1)], 
and other types of coverage under which major medical coverage may be 
provided in a policy, plan, or contract which may legally be sold or 
provided in this state. 

"Income" means any form of payment, regardless of source, owed to an 
obligor, including any earned, unearned, taxable or nontaxable income, 
workforce safety and insurance benefits, disability benefits, unemployment 
compensation benefits, annuity and retirement benefits, but excluding 
public assistance benefits administered under state law. 

"Income payer" means any person, partnership, firm, corporation, limited 
liability company, association, political subdivision, or department or 
agency of the state or federal government owing income to an obligor and 
includes an obligor if the obligor is self-employed. 

"Monthly support obligation" means an amount of child support ordered by 
a court or administrative tribunal in a proceeding to establish or modify a 
child support obligation, includina amounts that are deferred for payment 
at a later date. The term is defined without regard to any amount of child 
support that an obligor is reauired to pay to avoid being held in contempt 
of court. If an amount of past-due support has been ordered as a lump 
sum rather than determined on a monthly basis, "monthly support 
obligation" means one hundred sixty-eight dollars . 

"Obligee" means a person, including a state or political subdivision, to 
whom a duty of support is owed. 

"Obligor" means any person owing a duty of support. 

"Past-due support" means child support that is not paid by the earlier of: 

a. The date a court order or an order of an administrative process 
established under state law requires payment to be made; or 

b. The last day of the month or other period the payment was intended 
to cover. 

43: 1Q.,_ "Payday" means the day upon which the income payer pays or otherwise 
credits the obligor. 

44. 1§., "Public authority" means the department of human services in execution of 
its duties pursuant to the state plan submitted under chapter 50-09 in 
conformance with title IV-D of the Social Security Act [Pub. L. 93-647; 88 
Stat. 2351; 42 U.S.C. 651 et seq.]. 

4-e-: 1L "System implementation date" means the date the public authority certifies 
to the secretary of state and the legislative council that the statewide 
automated data processing system, established under section 50-09-02.1, 
is operating." 

Page 4, line 2, after "program" insert an underscored comma 

Page 4, line 3, after "plan" insert a underscored comma 

(2) DESK, (2) COMM Page No. 2 HR-68-8066 
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Page 4, line 18, replace "are" with "is" 

Page 4, after line 23, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the 
North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Notwithstanding tho provioiono of section 28-21-05, ifo. judgment ha::; be-en 
dookotod under section 14 08.1 06 in an amount grootor than :iix time::; the 
monthly child :iupport obligation and the judgment debtor i:i not current in a 
oourt established plan to repay tho unpaid child :iupport judgment is listed 
on the arrears registry as defined in section 14-09-09.1 o. or if the 
judgment debtor meets criteria established by the secretary of the United 
States department of health and human services that apply when a 
financial institution is doing business in two or more states, the department 
of human services may issue an execution, against the property of the 
judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which the property may be 
found. 

2. A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need 
not be docketed and the writ may 6fflffi 

a, The :iool of the court; 

Ir. The :iubooription of the ciorl< of that court; 

&:- Tho attestation in the name of tho judge of the court that entered the 
judgffiont; 

a. A ::;to.tcmcnt of the court:i and oountic:i to which the judgment hac 
boon tranooribed; and 

&:- If the writ kl iooued to a :ihcriff of o. county other than the county in 
which the judgment io doci<oted, o. date and time of doci<cting in that 
:ihcriff's county be issued in a form prescribed by the department of 
human services. A writ issued under this section must be 
accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 which has been certified under section 
14-08.1-08." 

Page 5, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When a paot due child :iupport 
obligation i:i at lcoot six timc:i the monthly child :iupport obligation and the an obliger 
isnot current in o. court c:itabliohed plan to repay the pa::;t due :iupport listed on the 
arrears registrv as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public authority may establish a 
lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. Except for liens under section 
35-34-05, the amount of a lien under this chapter includes any past-due support that is 
owed when the lien is perfected and any past-due support that accrues after the lien is 
perfected. 

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

(2) DESK, (2) COMM Page No. 3 HR-68-8066 
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35-34-05. Account llen. 

1. In the case of an account maintained in a financial institution, the public 
authority may establish a lien on the account by serving a notice of lien 
upon the financial institution in the manner provided for service of a 
summons in a civil action or in any other manner agreed to by the financial 
institution. The notice must be in a form prescribed by the public authority 
and contain the name, social security number, or other taxpayer 
identification number and last-known address of the obliger, the amount of 
past-due support for which a lien is claimed, and any other information 
required by the public authority. The notice of lien must state that the child 
support obligation is past due and that a copy of the notice of lien has 
been served on the obliger by first-class mail at the obliger's last-known 
address. 

2. Upon service of the notice of lien on a financial institution in accordance 
with this section, the lien attaches to accounts of the obliger maintained in 
the financial institution, cxoopt to tho extent ncocx:uy to and freezes all 
subsequent withdrawals from the account except for funds in excess of the 
amount of past-due support for which a lien is claimed under this section 
and as provided in subsection 3. 

3. Notwithstanding a freeze on an account under subsection 2. the financial 
institution may satisfy any right of setoff which exists in connection with an 
account, payment orders that were made by the obliger before the 
financial institution was served with notice of lien, or other obligations of 
the obliger based upon written agreements or instruments made or issued 
by the obliger before the financial institution was served with notice of lien. 

a,. 4. A lien under this section is perfected when the financial institution is 
served with notice of the lien. 

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from llablllty. A person in possession of, or obligated 
with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, surrenders the 
property or diochargo:i the obligation to the public authority. complies with section 
35-34-12. or otherwise acts in good faith to comply with the requirements in this 
chapter. is immune from suit or any liability to the obliger or other pcr:ion arioing from 
tho ourrondor or payment under any federal or state law. The court shall award 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any person who commences an action 
that is subsequently dismissed by reason of the immunity granted by this section." 

Page 6, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears registry. The state case reaistrv maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reaistry of any obliger who owes past-due support in 
an amount greater than two times the obliaor's current or most recent monthly support 
obligation as defined in section 14-09-09.1 O or two thousand dollars, whichever is less. 
As used in this chapter, "arrears reaistry" means the registrv maintained under this 
section. 
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SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 

a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply with 
a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 

b. An obliger who is in arrcaro in child :iupport in an omount grootor thon 
three timc:i the obligor':i current or moct recent monthly child :iupport 
obligotion or five thoucand dollorn, whichever ic lc:io listed on the 
arrears registry; or 

c. An obliger who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan 
that has been negotiated between the obliger and the state agency 
under this section or in exchange for the state agency refrainina from 
takina an enforcement action against the obliger. 

SECTION 18. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support deduction order. 

L The state agency, directly or throuah agents or child support agencies, 
may issue an order requiring an income payer to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from the portion of any lump sum payment to an 
obliger that has been withheld under section 14-09-09.34. 

2. The state agency. directly or through aaents or child support aaencies, 
may issue an order reauiring a financial institution to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from any account of the obliger maintained in the 
financial institution. 

3. The state agency shall serve the order on the income payer or financial 
institution in the manner provided for service of a summons in a civil action 
or in any other manner agreed to by the income payer or financial 
institution. The state agency shall serve a copy of the order upon the 
obliaor by first-class mail to the obligor's last-known address. alona with a 
notice of the obliger's right to claim that the property is exempt from legal 
process under section 28-22-02. the riaht to request an informal review by 
the state agency within ten days of the date of the notice, and the riaht of 
the obliaor and any other aggrieved person to a review by a court under 
section 50-09-14. If an informal review is requested under this subsection, 
the time for requesting a review by a court under section 50-09-14 does 
not expire until thirty days after the informal review is completed. 

4. The income payer or financial institution shall deduct the amount identified 
in the order or the balance of the account, whichever is less, and transmit 
the funds to the state disbursement unit within seven business days of the 
date the order is served. 

5. An order issued under this section has priority over any other leaal 
process against the same account, except to the extent necessary to 
satisfy any riaht of setoff which exists in connection with an account, 
payment orders that were made by the obliger before the financial 
institution was served with the order. or other obligations of the obliger 
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7. 

based upon written agreements or instruments made or issued by the 
obligor before the financial institution was served with the order. 

An income payer or financial institution may also withhold and retain an 
additional sum of three dollars from the obliaor's account or from the 
amount retained under section 14-09-09.34 to cover expenses involved in 
transmitting payment. 

An income payer or financial institution receiving an order under this 
section is subject to the same duties and liabilities as an income payer 
under section 14-09-09.3 unless the context indicates otherwise and is 
immune from suit or liability for complying with an order under this section. 

SECTION 19. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Protest period. Except as authorized by the obliaor. the state aaency shall hold 
any funds collected under section 28-21-05.2 or section 18 of this Act and may not 
disburse the funds as a collection of child support until the time has expired for 
requesting a review by a court under section 50-09-14 or the conclusion of the review. 
whichever is later. Interest does not accrue under section 28-20-34 after the funds are 
received by the state agency. 

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obligor who is listed on the arrears registry and owes past-due 
child support in an amount greater thantweA!y liYe ten thousand dollars, 
including the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, occupation, 
photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and ages of the 
children for whom support is owed, and any other information that would 
assist in locating the person." 

Renumber accordingly 

Reengrossed HB 1172 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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• TESTIMONY 
HOUSE Bill 1172- DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
CLARA SUE PRICE, CHAIRMAN 

JANUARY 11, 2005 

Chairman Price, members of the House Human Services Committee, I am James 

Fleming, Deputy Director and General Counsel of the State Child Support 

Enforcement Division of the Department of Human Services. I am here to ask for 

your favorable consideration of House Bill 1172. 

Section One addresses private collection agencies who attempt to enforce child 

support obligations for a fee charged to the family. As this industry grows, we 

also see a national trend for state legislatures to pass laws ensuring that the 

families are protected. The intent of the proposed new section is not to prohibit 

these companies from operating in North Dakota, but to protect consumers and 

ensure that the private collection agencies' activities do not interfere with the 

• efforts of government child support enforcement programs. 

• 

The proposed section confirms that these agencies are subject to North Dakota 

law just like collection agencies that collect other debts and must obtain a license 

from the Department of Financial Institutions. In addition, due to the uniqueness 

of child support debts and the fact that the child support enforcement program is 

frequently enforcing the same debt at the same time, some additional provisions 

are proposed. 

In legislative hearings for many years, the child support enforcement program 

and the Legislative Assembly have discussed that 1) child support payments 

should first be applied to the amount due in the current month before being 

applied to any arrears, 2) the right to current child support belongs to the children 

and cannot be waived or negotiated by the parents, and 3) all child support 

payments must be paid through the State Disbursement Unit (SOU) for proper 

recording and disbursement. 
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As a matter of public policy, attorneys are not allowed to charge contingency fees 

for the collection of a current monthly child support obligation. This bill would 

apply that policy consistently to private collection agencies as well. To avoid this 

public policy and state laws requiring that current child support be paid before 

arrears, we are aware that some agencies' contracts with families specifically 

provide that any collections received will first be applied to arrears. This denies 

children the current support they need and violates the distribution priority 

established by the Legislature. The bill would make it even more clear that such 

a practice is prohibited. 

The bill would also ensure that all payments are properly processed through the 

SDU. Right now, we know that many private collection agencies do not inform us 

of payments that have been received and, as a result, the state's official payment 

records continue to show the obligor as delinquent even when money has been 

collected from the obligor or the obligor's employer by the private collection 

agency. In those cases, either the obligor is denied credit because the payment 

was not made through the SDU as required by state law and the court order, or 

else a worker in the SDU has to spend hours to "fix" the payment records to 

reflect a payment that was received by the private collection agency but not 

processed through the SDU. This situation can be avoided easily if the private 

collection agency turns over all collections to the SDU for proper recording and 

disbursement. If a collection agency does not comply with the new section, the 

obligor is not entitled to credit for the collection but has a claim against the 

agency for three times the amount withheld by the agency. 

Some private collection agencies regularly ask us to redirect child support 

disbursements to the agency instead of sending the money directly to the family. 

Unless this bill is passed, we can't do that because we know that many standard 

contracts allow the agency to retain a percentage of a current child support 

• payment. To redirect the disbursement to the agency on behalf of the family 
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• would assist in the distribution of child support that is contrary to state law. If we 

are able to program our system in the future to disburse payments of current 

child support to the families and unassigned arrears to a private collection 

agency, this bill gives the Department discretion to adopt rules allowing for 

payments to be redirected. This ensures that the children receive the current 

support they need, that any child support collections on assigned arrears are 

properly retained by the State rather than paid to the private collection agency, 

and that the State's payment records are accurate. In the meantime, the private 

collection agencies are free to collect their fees from the family. 

Finally, we are aware that some agencies' standard contracts make it very 

difficult for a family to terminate its contract with the agency. The bill would 

protect families by allowing them to terminate an agreement on thirty days' notice 

without a cancellation fee. 

• We are offering an amendment to this section at the suggestion of the 

Department of Financial Institutions to clarify the interaction of the new section 

with existing state law. 

• 

Section Two proposes to make the mailing of notices of arrears or scheduling of 

contempt hearings optional rather than mandatory for the clerks of court. Under 

current law, whenever one payment is missed, the clerk is required to mail a 

notice of arrears or schedule a contempt hearing. The fact that one payment is 

missed does not necessarily mean an obligor is deliberately violating the court 

order. For example, an obligor may change jobs and assume that the new 

employer's payroll cycle will "take care of it," when in fact the payment is not 

withheld by the employer and paid through the SDU until the next month. 

Because current law requires the clerk to act even when one payment is missed, 

a lot of time on the part of judges, clerks, state's attorneys, and parents is spent 

on contempt hearings that are unnecessary. When hearings for 20 or 30 obligors 

are scheduled at one time, it is difficult to separate those who are truly in 
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• contempt of court from those who have simply been careless in making sure their 

payments are made on time. This law will give the clerks of court the discretion 

to refrain from taking any action unless requested by the family or the child 

support enforcement program. It is our hope that making contempt proceedings 

more selective will also make those proceedings more effective. 

Section Three amends current law in anticipation of a possible amendment to the 

federal regulations that define "reasonable cost" for health insurance. Currently, 

unless insurance coverage is available to the family for no or nominal cost, an 

obligor is required to carry insurance if insurance is available on a group basis or 

through the obligor's employer or union even if the coverage costs several 

hundred dollars per month. If the federal regulation is changed, this amendment 

will allow the Department of Human Services to establish a different definition by 

administrative rule rather than wait to implement any new definition until 2007. 

• Section Four proposes to extend the deadline for bringing contempt of court 

proceedings against an income payer from one hundred and eighty days to one 

year. This would give the child support enforcement program more time to 

complete settlement negotiations with an income payer. 

• 

Section Five creates a new fund in the state treasury for child support collections 

that we are unable to disburse within three years. Currently, these payments are 

deposited with the Unclaimed Property Division. At that point, the deposits in 

IV-D cases are considered by the federal government to be revenue to the State 

from operation of the child support enforcement program and the federal 

government wants its share of those deposits from the reimbursement it provides 

for our program's operations. For example, if total of $30,000 in payments in IV-D 

cases is deposited with the Unclaimed Property Division, there is a $19,800 

deduction from the federal funds received by the Department of Human Services. 

This provision does not involve a lot of money, and as the fiscal note indicates, 

the amount that is deposited in this fund would get smaller and smaller now that 
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we have gone to almost exclusively an electronic payment process . 

Nevertheless, if the Department is going to incur the cost of these unclaimed 

payments, we propose that the funds be used for outreach projects, a process 

Massachusetts enacted with the concurrence of custodial parents, that might not 

otherwise be a funding priority rather than deposited with the Unclaimed Property 

Division. 

Section Six is one of two provisions in this bill regarding judgment interest and 

pertains to arrears management. As a result of legislation that was passed in the 

last two legislative sessions, the official payment records that we maintain are 

much more accurate regarding the judgment interest that is owed in each case. 

Unfortunately, with judgment interest at 12% per year on over $200 million in 

child support arrears owed in North Dakota, another $2 million in interest is 

added to that balance every month. This makes it even more important that we 

take a practical and realistic approach to how we manage this arrears balance . 

Now that our payment records contain more accurate information, the next step 

is to look at ways to use the accrual of judgment interest as an incentive for 

obligors to pay their child support arrears. This provision will give the child 

support enforcement program the ability to initiate an amnesty program and enter 

into payment plans with obligors that suspend the accrual of judgment interest as 

long as the obligor makes the payments required in the payment plan. In short, 

we would have additional ability to work with obligors, if they are willing to work 

with us. 

The second part of Section Six provides guidance on distribution of child support 

payments when the custodial parent is deceased. Our program has existed for 

long enough that we are dealing with more parents, both obligors and obligees, 

who have died. This proposed new subsection would allow the state's payment 

records to be updated to reflect a new payee without requiring the obligee's 

family or heirs to go back to court, unless one of the children is a minor. 
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• Sections Seven, Nine, Eleven, Thirteen, and Fifteen resolve inconsistencies in 

current law regarding the interaction between the child support enforcement 

program and public retirement plans. Federal law requires that our program 

attach "public and private retirement funds" to satisfy a child support obligation. 

Again, as our program ages, more and more obligors are reaching retirement age 

and receive retirement benefits instead of other income. The first step in 

attaching retirement funds is to know who the retirees are. Sections seven, 

eleven, and fifteen amend current law to clarify that public retirement 'plans, like 

other government agencies and private retirement plans, should respond to the 

child support enforcement program's requests for information about retirees. 

Section nine, as the next step, resolves a conflict in state law and reiterates that 

public retirement funds may be attached through income withholding or other 

legal process for collection of child support. Finally, section fifteen authorizes 

the child support enforcement program to issue domestic relations orders 

• (QDROs) to private and public retirement funds. We have worked with the 

agencies that operate these public retirement plans and understand that they do 

• 

not object to these provisions. 

Section Eight is the second provision on judgment interest. In previous 

legislative sessions, legislators have commented that the current judgment 

interest rate may be too high. This bill would replace the current fixed rate of 12% 

per annum, which has not been changed since 1981, with a variable rate that is 

set at four points above the current Bank of North Dakota prime interest rate. As 

of Monday, January 10, 2005, the current BND interest rate is 5.25%, so the 

judgment interest rate as of July 1, 2005, under this bill would be reduced from 

12% to 9.25%. This rate would be adjusted every two years based on the interest 

rate in effect at that time. The bill would not change the interest rate on any 

existing judgments, except for child support judgments that are generally 

adjusted from time to time as payments are made and as new arrears become due 

and unpaid. 
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• Section Ten identifies the proper court in which to pursue penalties for failing to 

report a newly hired employee when none of the employees has a current child 

support order. 

Section Twelve would address overpayments and disbursements made to 

families in error. By statute, these disbursements are not a gift and must be 

repaid. However, there are times when the debt is simply uncollectible, either 

because the family is not able to pay the money back or because the amount due 

is too small to be cost-effective to pursue beyond an initial demand letter. Since 

proposing this section, discussion has continued on ways to address this issue. 

At this time, the Department requests that Section 12 be removed from the bill. 

Section Fourteen proposes to remove the sunset on the current statute allowing 

the state child support enforcement program to enter into cooperative 

• agreements to be a service provider to the regional child support enforcement 

units or an Indian tribe. This section was enacted last session as a way to 

improve the delivery of child support enforcement services through centralization 

of functions and also to improve the services provided to tribal children. 

However, no such agreements have been entered up to this point, which we 

believe is due in part to the fact that the expiration date on the current statute 

makes it difficult to plan for the long term. 

• 

Madame Chairman, this concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer 

any questions the committee may have . 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

1/11/05 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL 1172 

Page 1, line 3, remove "a new section to chapter 50-06.3," 

Page 1, line 15, replace "/:-,," with "Notwithstanding section 13-05-02, a" 

Page 6, remove lines 4 through 15 

Renumber Accordingly 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

1/12/05 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1172 

Page 1, line 3, remove "a new section to chapter 50-06.3," 

Page 1, line 6, remove "section 28-20-34," 

Page 1, line 8, remove "judgment interest," 

Page 1, line 15, replace "6." with "Notwithstanding section 13-05-02, a" 

Page 4, remove lines 21 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 5 

Page 6, remove lines 4 through 15 

Renumber Accordingly 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

1/13/05 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1172 

Page 1, line 3, remove "a new section to chapter 50-06.3," 

Page 1, line 6, remove "section 28-20-34," 

Page 1, line 8, remove "judgment interest," 

Page 1, line 15, replace "6" with "Notwithstandinq section 13-05-02, a" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 and 4 

Page 3, line 24, after "efforts" insert a period and replace "and is appropriated on a 
continuinq basis" with "Any funds retained by the public authority under this 
subsection must be deposited in the account established under section 
50-09-15.1. Notwithstandinq section 50-09-15.1, any funds that have been 
retained and deposited under this subsection may be used by" 

Page 3, line 25, remove the first "to" 

Page 3, line 26, after the underscored period, insert "Subject to available appropriations, 
any claim by an obliqee for funds that have been retained under this subsection 
must be paid out of the account established under section 50-09-15.1." 

Page 4, remove lines 21 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 5 

Page 6, remove lines 4 through 15 

Renumber accordingly 
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HOUSE BILL 1172 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 13-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

created and enacted as follows: 

Child support collection aqencies. 

1. A collection aqency attemptinq in any manner to collect child support as defined in 

section 14-09-09.10 must be licensed under this chapter if either the child support 

debtor or creditor reside within this state. 

2. A collection aqency licensed under this section may not impose a fee or charqe for 

any child support collected primarily throuqh the efforts of a qovernmental aqencv. 

3. If the child support debt arises under an order issued by a court of this state. or if a 

record of the child support debt is beinq maintained on the statewide automated data 

processinq system under section 50-09-02.1, all child support payments collected by 

a collection aqency must be paid to the department of human services within five 

business days of disbursement under section 14-09-25. Child support payments 

disbursed under 14-09-25 shall be redirected to a collection aqency upon written 

request of the obliqee, and the obliqee may revoke the request for redirection of 

payments at any time. 

4. A collection aqency failinq to direct child support payments to the department of 

human services as required in this section is liable to the child support debtor for the 

amount improperly withheld by the collection aqency, in addition to any other remedy 

or damaqes permitted by law, except in instances of bona fide error. The department 

of human services is not required to qive credit for payments withheld by a collection 

aqency in violation of this section. 

5. Any person contractinq for services with a collection aqency for the collection of child 

support may cancel the contract without a fee or charqe: 

a. Within 15 days of siqninq the contract: 

b. After twelve consecutive months in which the collection aqency fails to make a 

collection: or 

c. If the qovernment child support aqency beqins collectinq on behalf of the child 

support creditor, provided such collections are primarily the result of the 

qovernment aqency's efforts . 
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Testimony by: 

HOUSE BILL 
No. 1172 

Bryan R. Dvimak, Pres. 
Collection Center Inc. 
Bismarck, North Dakota 

Human Services Committee 

Dear Chairwoman, Clara Sue Price, Vice-Chairman, Dick Dever and members of the 

House Human Services Committee. My name is Bryan Dvimak and I am President of 

Collection Center Inc. Thank you for allowing me to come before the Human Services 

Committee this morning. 

Collection Center Inc. currently provides collection services to the State of North 

Dakota's Human Services, including the State's eight Human Service Centers and the 

State's Child Support Division of the Department of Human Services. As such, I am 

sensitive to my remarks, the NDDHS and HB 1172. 

I 

I became aware of HB 1172 late yesterday afternoon, and as a result have not had the 

Opportunity to have our trade association, The North Dakota Collectors Association, nor 

Our Attorney review the bill. Late Monday evening I had the opportunity to briefly 
,· 

I 
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discuss the bill with the Department of Human Services attorney, Mr. Mike Schmidt and 

share some of Collection Center Inc.'s concerns with the bill. By the time I had the 

conversation with Mr. Schmidt last nite, most of my written testimony had already been 

prepared, which I have provided to you. Some of my written testimony was clarified and 

concerns put to rest in my telephone conversation with Mr. Schmidt. ·some of my 

concerns remain. I am submitting my testimony to you today to place my questions for 

clarification and concerns on record. 

Mr. Schmidt indicated that the intent of the bill is to primarily address collection agencies 

located outside the State of North Dakota. Not having the opportunity to discuss the 

proposed bill with our Trade Association or our legal counsel or research the North 

Dakota Statutes, we are not in a position, to determine that the bill only would affect 

collection agencies located outside the State of North Dakota doing business in North 

Dakota. If it can be shown that HB 1172 only affects collection agencies located outside 

of North Dakota doing business in North Dakota, then our concerns are a mute point. .I 

must also point out that, after reviewing the bill, a number of sections to the bill are not 

clear and raise questions. 

Having said that, Collection Center Inc. raises the following items for clarification and 

concerns on HB U 72: 

I. Clarifications required: 

Section I Sub-paragraph 2a, 2b, & 2C 
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2a is not clear & does not delineate on accounts that have been placed with the 

collection agency for servicing, but alludes to the collection agency not being able 

"to impose a fee or charge" if child support money was "collected primarily 

through the efforts of a governmental agency". Once an account is placed with 

the collection agency for servicing, the collection agency has put time, effort and 

expense into the collection of the account and should be entitled to its contin­

gency fee. What is meant by "primarily through the efforts of a governmental 

agency"? 

2b is not clear and addresses the collection agency not being able to "impose a fee 

or charge for collection of a current child support payment". What is meant by 

"current child support payment"? Again, if an account was placed with a 

collection agency, they should be entitled to their contingency fee-but just on the 

account that was placed for servicing. 

2c needs clarification on current child support. 

II Opposition: 

Section 1 Sub-paragraph 2d 
Sub-paragraph 3 
Sub-paragraµh 4 

Section 6 

Section 8 

Restriction on contingency fee to 25%. 
Require 5 day remittance to DHS 
Penalty for failure to remit to DHS of 3 times the 
amount due or $500 whichever is larger. 

Waive judgment interest on arrearages as part of an 
amnesty program. 
Changing of interest rate on judgments. 

Section 1 Sub-paragraph 2d. Collection Center Inc.'s current contract with the 
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Department of Human Services, including the Child Support Division is a 

contingency fee based contract and may violate HB 1172. 

Collection Center Inc.'s contract with the NDDHS differentiates between 

Regular Collection Accounts (those,not requiring legal action) and Legal 
... 

Collection Accounts (those accoudts where the debtor refuses to pay but it has 

been determined through a due diligence process that he/she has the ability to pay 

but legal action is required). The contingency for Legal Collection Accounts is 

always higher and is used as an "offset" to allow the collection agency to recover 

a portion of the legal fees it incurs in pursing accounts legally. 

Secondly, outside of Collection Center Inc.'s contract with the NDDHS, 

restricting the contingency fee to 25.0% suppresses the market place. Let the 

market place dictate price & terms and not let the government determine price and 

terms. 

Section 3. Most collection agencies remit once or twice monthly. The 

Requirement to remit five days after receiving payment could conceivable require 

the collection agency to remit every day, assuming the received payments 

daily. My recommendation is for the committee to consider requiring remittance 

bi-monthly or preferably, monthly. 

Section 4. It would be helpful to understand the justification and rationale for a 

penalty. All collection agencies are required to place funds collected into a trust 
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account and to remit payment to the client. Collection agencies are required to be 

bonded and annually licensed by the North Dakota Department of Financial 

Institutions. 

Section 6. Waiving of judgment interest is not fair to the judgment creditor. 

Interest charged on judgments is away for the judgment creditor to help offset 
' 

some of the costs associated with obtaining the judgment. Allowing the NDDHS 

to waive the judgment interest is not fair to the judgment creditor. Not all costs 

associated with obtaining the judgment can be recovered from the debtor. 

In the collection industry, usually the collection agency typically fronts all of the 

expenses associated with obtaining a judgment, the interest and higher fees 

associated with Legal Collection Accounts, helps offset a portion of collection 

agencies costs associated with bringing legal action. 

Section 8. Of all the sections to HB 1172, section 8 is the one that is most 

troublesome and probably has greatest negative impact to any judgment creditor. 

The proposed change from the current 12.0% fixed interest rate to a variable at 

BND plus 4.0% variable annually will serve only to encoura)!e delinquent debtor 

accounts to not pay their bill! Currently North Dakota Statutes allows 12.0% on a 

judgment, which encourages the debtor to seek alternative financing at cheaper 

interest rates. 

If the delinquent judgment debtor can obtain cheaper financing from a bank, who 

by the way is in the business of renting money, it is an incentive for the judgment 
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debtor to pay the debt they legally incurred. Why encourage the judgment debtor 

to not pay his/her debt by giving them cheap financing via allowing the judgment 

creditor to carry the debt? By reducing the interest rate, the judgment debtor has 

one less incentive to not pay their legally incurred debt obligation. HB 1172 

would reduce the judgment interest rate, and the judgment creditor, be it a 

rancher; farmer; hospital; clinic; financial institution; small business owner; or 

attorney or collection agency collecting on behalf of their client is the one being 

hurt. Why should the judgment creditor, who gets up every day and goes to work; 

be further damaged financially, because the debtor, who has refused to pay his/her 

bill, now has a cheaper source of financing? 

I respectfully submit to the members of this committee that there needs to be 

some protections afforded the judgment creditor who has already been harmed by 

the judgment debtor. I would encourage you to consider leaving the interest rate 

at its current rate of 12.0%. It is a reasonable interest rate under any 

circumstances, encourages the judgment debtor to pay his/her bill, and yet 

protects the judgment creditor who is the one who has been truly damaged. 

12.0% was an attractive rate in the 1980's & 1990's and still is today . 



~ Kreidt, Gary L. 

Fleming, James C . 

• 

From: 
ent: 
o: 

Tuesday, January 18, 2005 2:28 PM 
Porter, Todd K. 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Kreidt, Gary L.; Kaldor, Lee A. 
Re: FW: House Bill 1172 

ND HB1172 -
:tion 1- Propos 

Rep. Porter and members of the subcommittee: 

In general response, as we suspected and expressed to the committee, a key component of 
Mr. Rosenkoetter•s amendments would be to REQUIRE the SDU to redirect payments of current 
child support to the collection agency rather than to the custodian of the children for 
their current needs. If the custodial parent has to choose between feeding the children 
or paying the rent and paying the collection agency, we believe that choice is obvious and 
should not be pre-empted because the law required the SDU to send the current child 
support payments to the agency. 

on the question of whether the child support collection agencies are required to be 
licensed, I have discussed Mr. Rosenkoetter•s legal theory with the attorney for the 
Department of Financial Institutions (DFI). 
There may be an argument that Mr. Rosenkoetter is technically correct, but DFI, which 
promulgated the rule he is relying on, is not sold. In any event, I was advised by DFI's 

-

attorney that DFI was already considering amending the "consumer debt" limitation in its 
urrent rule after the legislative session. I understand Mr. Rosenkoetter•s 

' nterpretation of the current rule will make that amendment even more likely, regardless 
of what happens with HB 1172. The current rule was drafted to exclude commercial debts at 
an arm's length between businesses; the intent of protecting individual debtors from 
unfair debt collection practices applies equally whether the debt arises out of a child 
support judgment or consumer transaction. 

I suspect Mr. Rosenkoetter knows his amendments would not "address everyone's concerns" 
because it would mandate that the sou redirect payments of current support to the 
collection agency rather than to the children who need that support in full. His latest 
response openly admits that the reason for the redirect provision is so the collection 
agency gets paid for collecting current support. 

I'm sure we'll discuss this more today, but here are the points we would make in response: 

The fee cap is removed from the bill under the amendments we provided to 
the subcommittee, allowing the collection agency to set whatever 
percentage it needs to from collections of unassigned arrears to cover 
its expenses and make money. 
The bill does not tell parents they cannot hire a collection agency, 
even for the collection of current support; it simply says that a fee 
cannot be deducted from the children's money for current support to pay 
for it. 
The bill does not prevent a collection agency for getting paid for the 
work it has done as of the date the contract is terminated; it only 
prohibits a fee or charge for terminating a contract. 

James C. Fleming 
Deputy Director/General Counsel 

--=·State Child Support Office 
01-328-3582 

sojfle@state.nd.us 
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"Porter, Todd K. 11 

• 
<tkporter@state.n 

gkreidt@state.nd.us>, 11 Kaldor, 

James C. 11 

fyi 

d.US> 

01/17/2005 01:09 
PM 

To: 11 Kreidt, Gary L. 11 

Lee A. 11 <lakaldor@state.nd.us>, 

<sojfle@state.nd.us> 
cc: 
Subject: FW: House Bill 1172 

From: Eric Rosenkoetter [mailto:eric.rosenkoetter@supportkids.com] 
Sent: Monday, January 17, 2005 8:01 AM 
To: Porter, Todd K. 
Subject: RE: House Bill 1172 
Importance: High 

Representative Porter: 

No, we are not licensed in North Dakota? but for good reason. 

"Fleming, 

Your licensing statute, like the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act ("FDCPA"), 
does not apply to the collection of child support. Federal courts have declared that 
child support does not arise from a consumer transaction and is therefore not a 11 debt 11 as 
defined in the FDCPA . 

• 
ikewise, the North Dakota act requires entities to be licensed if they are involved in 
ebt collection which is the "collection of claims owed or due or alleged to be owed or 

.._ __ due a creditor by a consumer." "Claim" in your statutes is defined as any obligation or 
alleged obligation out of a consumer transaction." Please see Section 13-04-02-01. 
Your staff attorney can confirm that this is accurate, and as a starting point I would 
recommend they look at the following: Mabe v. GC Servs. Ltd. 
Partnerhship, 32 F3d 86 (4th Cir. 1994); Campbell v. Baldwin, 90 F. Supp. 
2d 754 (ED Tex. 2000); Battye v. Child Support Servs., Inc., 873 F. Supp. 
103, 105 (ND Ill.1994) . 

HOWEVER, BECOMING LICENSED IS NOT AN ISSUE. We have no objection to this bill requiring 
private child support collectors to be licensed if the custodial parent or non-custodial 
parent reside in North Dakota. 
Supportkids is licensed in eleven other states which have broadened their collection 
practices acts to include child support, and we have no objection if North Dakota does 
likewise. 

What I have a problem with is: 
An arbitrary fee cap which is so low nobody will be able to offer 
services in your state; 
Telling parents they can•t hire us to collect current support, if 
that is what they want us to do? particularly when the state child 
support agency is unable to help them collect; 
Allowing clients to terminate their contract at will? thus avoiding 
paying fees after services, which often cost us thousands of dollars, 
have been rendered. 

Those are the provisions I have problems with. I have attached an amendment which I 
believe will address everyone's concerns and I will be very pleased to discuss it with you 

--=-c~t your convenience . 

• hanks for your time and consideration, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
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-----Original Message-----
From: Porter, Todd K. [mailto:tkporter@state.nd.us] 
Sent: Friday, January 14, 2005 12:07 PM 
To: Eric Rosenkoetter 
Subject: RE: House Bill 1172 

Mr. Rosenkoetter: 

Are you currently licensed to collect in North Dakota? 

Thank you, 

Todd 

From: Eric Rosenkoetter [mailto:eric.rosenkoetter@supportkids.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 14, 2005 9:53 AM 
To: tkporter@state.nd.us 
Subject: House Bill 1172 
Dear Representative Porter: 

I would very much like to speak with you about HB1172, which I 
understand has been assigned to your subcommittee. 

This bill contains anti-business provisions which will completely 
eliminate the option of hiring a private agency to collect child 
support in North Dakota, which is an important option for parents 
when the state's child support program's efforts falter. 

Mike Schwindt, your IV-D director, should be aware that the Federal 
Office of Child Support Enforcement has issued policy strongly 
encouraging state programs to cooperate with private agencies. 
Indeed, even the Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement's 
National Strategic Plan states that it is necessary for state IV-D 
programs to 11 collaborate with the private bar and private collection 
agencies to respond to parents 1 choices about how to enforce their 
orders. 11 

This bill, in Section 1, does the complete opposite of these policies 
by, in effect, completely eliminating private agencies. 

We have seen legislation similar to this on occasion? most recently 
with California's SB339, which was vetoed by Governor Schwarzenegger. 
However, in all honesty, our industry has never seen a bill like this 
come out of a committee in a state in which Republicans hold the 
majority. 

I will be on a plane most of the day today and won't get back to 
Austin until this evening. I am hopeful, though, you and I can 
discuss this topic very soon. I will be available on my cell phone 
all weekend, and also next week at my office. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
General Counsel for Intergovernmental Affairs 
Supportkids, Inc. 
(512) 437-6133 (office) 
(512) 914-5696 (cell) (See attached file: ND HB1172 - Section 1-
Proposed 01-12-05.doc) 
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

COUNTY OF BOWMAN 

Darcy Carroll , 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

Supportkids, Inc;, a/k/a 
Supportkids, 

Defendant. 

) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 

IN DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHWEST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

Case No. 02C-37 

In this case, there is pending the defendant, Supportkids, 

Inc.'s, motion to dismiss and plaintiff, Darcy Carroll's, motion 

for discovery. Supportkids seeks a dismissal of Carroll's 

complaint for lack of jurisdiction, or in the alternative for 

inconvenient forum. Carroll resists. The Court denies both 

motions . 

Supportkids is a private child support enforcement company 

incorporated in Texas. Supportkids maintains a Website, an 800 

number, and advertises in the national media. Supportkids does not 

have any agents or representatives physically located in North 

Dakota. 

Initially, Carroll contacted Supportkids through an 800 

telephone number. According to Supportkids records, this was made 
-

on February 5, 1999, and she requested an informational packet, 

which would have included a contract for services. After mailing 

the packet to her, Supportkids followed up with phone calls and 

other mailings in early 1999. She did not sign the contract and 
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there was no further contacts for almost a year. Then, supportkids 

contacted Carroll on March 29, 2000. At that time, she informed 

Support kids she was working · with her governmental agency. On 

October 17, 2000, Carroll requested Supportkids to re-send an 

application to her. On November 29, 2000, she returned the signed 

contract and.was accepted as a new case by Supportkids on December 

18, 2000. 

All times material to this action, Carroll has resided in 

Bowman County, North· Dakota. The Court order that created the 

child support obligation was entered in Shelby County, Memphis, 

Tennessee, and Carroll's former husband is not a North Dakota 

resident. 

North Dakota may exercise personal jurisdiction over a 

corporation who acts directly or by an agent as to any claim for 

relief arising from the corporation having such contact within the 

state that the exercise of personal jurisdiction would not offend 

traditional notions of justice, or fair play, or due process of law 

under the circumstances .set out in N.D.R.Civ.P. 4 which are: 

(A) transacting any business in this state; 
(B) contracting to support or supplying service, goods, 
or other things in this state; 
(CJ committing a tort within or without this state 
causing injury to another person or property within this 
stal;e; 

· (D) committing a tort withiri this state, causing injury 
to another person or property within or without this 
state; 
(E) owning, having any interest in, using, or possessing 
property in this state; 
(F) contracting to insure another person, property, or 
other risk within this state; 
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(G) acting as a director, manager, trustee, or officer of 
a corporation organized under the laws of, or having its 
principal place of business within, this sate; 
(H) enjoying any other legal status or capacity within 
this state; or 
(I) engaging in any other activity, including 
cohabitation or sexual•intercourse, within this state. 

In support of its motion, Supportkids relies on Lumber Mart, 

Inc. v. Haas Intern. Sales & Serv., 269 N.W.2d 83 (N.D. 1978), and 

Hust v. Northern Loq, Inc., 297 N.W.2d 429 (N.D. 1980). 

N.D.R.Civ.P.4 is intended to encompass the exercise of 

personal jurisdiction to the fullest extent permitted by due 

process, but each case· must be decided on its own facts and 

circumstances. In making the determination, the court must resolve 

two questions: It must determine if the requirement of 

N.D.R.Civ.P. Rule 4(b) (2) has been satisfied, and it must determine 

whether the non-resident party has had such contacts with North 

Dakota that the exercise of personal jurisdiction does not offend 

against the traditional notions of justice and fair play under the 

concept of due process. Hust at p. 441. 

In Hust, the Court found no jurisdiction because Northern Log 

did not solicit business in North Dakota through sales persons or 

through advertising reasonably calculated to reach the state, and 

Northel'.Jl Log did not directly serve the North Dakota market. 

Northern Log's activities were not those of a ·corporation 

purposefully availing itself of the privilege of conducting 

activities within North Dakota. Hust at p. 433. 

In Lumber Mart, Inc. , the Ross Brothers alleged faulty repairs 
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took place in Circle, Montana, and Ross Brothers' only contact with 

North Dakota was in trying to settle the dispute and its unrelated 

use of North Dakota highways by its separate trucking business. 

But in Auction Effertz, Ltd. v. Schecher, 2000 ND 109; 611 N.W.2d 

173, contact by telephone or other electronic medium was sufficient 

to give the North Dakota Court personal jurisdiction. 

Although Supportkids did not physically have an office in 

North Dakota, it advertised in the national media, it maintained a 

Website advertising the availability of its services nationwide, it 

maintained. 800 numbers for ease of nationwide access, and its 

contract provides: "Al though Suooortkids enforces child support 

orders nationwide, it·· is a Texas corporatipn. Therefore, this 

agreement is entered into in Travis County, Texas, and shall be 

interpreted according to the laws of the State of Texas." 

[Emphasis added.) In addition, Supportkids utilizes the services 

of the North Dakota Child Support Enforcement Agency in collecting 

it fees and carrying out its services. Thus, Supportkids purports 

to offer its services to North Dakota residents. 

The Court concludes chat exercising personal jurisdiction over 

Supportkids does not offend traditional notions of justice and fair 

play, nor violate due process of law. The Court recognizes it is 

to give the phrase •transacting any business in this state• an 

expansive interpretation; thus, it concludes Supportkids is 

transacting business in North Dakota, and they have contracted to 

supply services in this state . N.D.R.Civ.P. 4(b) (2) and Auction 
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Effertz. Ltd. 

Supportkids amended its motion to include a request to dismiss 

on the grounds of inconvenient forum. N.D.R.Civ.P. (4) (b) (5). 

For the purpose of forum non conveniens, it is assumed the 

Court has jurisdiction. The. question is whether the Court should 

decline jurisdiction because another forum would be more 

convenient. Although the implementation of the doctrine rests 

within the discretion of the Court, it is considered a drastic 

remedy to ·be exercised with caution and restraint. 28 AmJur 2a 

courts § 131. 

In making the determination, the Court may consider the 

amenability of the parties to personal. jurisdiction in another 

venue, the party and witness convenience, conflict of law, and any 

other factors having substantial bearing upon the selection of a 

convenient, reasonable and fair place of tri.al. Commonwealth Land 

Title Insurance Comoany v. Puqh, 555 N.W.2d 567, 579 (N.D. 1996). 

Carroll is a North Dakota resident. Supportkids is a Texas 

corporation offering services nationwide. The party and witness 

convenience is a mixed question. Both parties are amenable to 

personal jurisdiction in North Dakota, but it is not clear Carroll 

would be in Texas. At this time, it would place· a great burden on 

Carroll to proceed with the action in Texas. Since Supportkids 

offers its services nationwide, it should expect to appear in the 

local courts. It is not clear at this time which law would apply. 

If Carroll is seeking rescission, it may be North Dakota. Because 
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of possible inconvenience, the Court expects Carroll to cooperate 

and accommodate Supportkids with reference to any of its witnesses . 

The use of video depositions has proven effective in the past. At 

this time, Bowman County does not· appear to be an inconvenient 

forum. Therefore, the defendant's motion to dismiss is denied. 

In reviewing the motion to compel discovery, most of the 

issues relate to the motion to dismiss. Thus, those requests are 

no longer relevant. Therefore, the motion to compel discovery is 

denied. 

Counsel for Carroll shall prepare a proposed order consistent 

with this memorandum for the Court's review. A copy of the 

proposed order shall be sent to opposing counsel. Opposing counsel 

·. shall have 10 days after receipt to review it and submit any 

comments. 

Dated: December 6, 2002. 

BY THE COURT: 

,/7 T /46' « 
Allan Schmalenberger 
District Judge 

6 



• 
North Dakota Collectors Association 

an association of collection specialists 

House Human Services Committee 
January 11, 2005 

Testimony of Kim Rau 
On behalf of the North Dakota Collector's Association 

In Opposition to House Bill l l 72 

Madam Chair Clara Sue Price and House Human Services Committee members, my name is Kim 
Rau and I am representing the North Dakota Collector's Association (NDCA) today in opposition to 
portions of HB 1172. 

NDCA is in opposition to HB 1172 because there are many sections in this proposed law change 
that need further clarification and other changes that are of great concern to NDCA's members. 

Section I of HB 1172 deals with child support collection agencies and has several provisions that 
are of concern. 

First, the provision at lines 21-23 on page I, under subsection 2(a) of the new section are of 
concern regarding the fee. Once an account is turned over to a collection agency, the agency works 
the account diligently to recover the money for the client. Subsection 2(a) states that the agency 
cannot impose a fee if the collection occurred due to the efforts of a governmental agency. This 
may be hard to prove who actually recovered debt. This issue should be covered in the contract 
between the client and the collection agency rather than made part of the statute. 

Next, at page 2 on lines 3-4, subsection 2( d) discusses the fee that can be charged on the collection 
of the debt. This is another area that should be negotiated in the contract vs. law. 

Also, at page 2 at lines 13-18, section 4 discusses the penalties for failure of the collection agency to. 
remit the payment to the Department of Human Services. Under ND law, collection agencies are 
required to have a trust account to be used for client's monies. Collection agencies are already 
required to have a bond in place. The penalties suggested in this bill are extreme and unnecessary. 

Finally, at page 4 there is a change proposed to Section 28-20-34 NDCC regarding interest rates on 
judgments. NDCA strongly opposes the proposed changes from the current interest rate of 12% per 
annum to a rate of 4% above the Bank of North Dakota prime interest rate per annum, which as of 
December 2004 was reported at 5.25%. This change would affect every money judgment obtained 
in ND. It affects much more than just past due child support. One of the main reasons to charge 
interest is to increase the incentive to pay off a debt as fast as possible. In the case of child support, 
the goal should be to get the money-to the custodial parentas fast as possible. Reducing the interest 
rate will not accomplish this goal. In addition, the bookkeeping on keeping track of the post 
judgment interest rate would be daunting. A fixed rate of interest leaves no doubt and is consistent. 
The interest rate of 12% should remain as it has been for many years. It has worked successfully as 
a deterrent to debtors who refuse to pay their accounts. 

701-224-9439 • Fax 701-224-9529 
P.O. Box 7340 • Bismarck, North Dakota 58507-7340 
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l AGREEMENT TO COf.LECT CHILD SUPPORT 

ThflAgnementftlbetW&en_ cc._:• ~ _ _ 
l"nJd!IOll'_(l/r._y,,a WilltUSlll ____ dJOll I r:11«1/1 

and Ch/Id Support N,d,r;/Orlt, Inc:. ("CSN"). Yau "'91" dlflt (:SN will IHI your udus/Ve agent ~ COiiect 
c:hHdsupportf,o,n t/n>tlOtHllllt~dla/pe,-nt(NCP): 

(Pl•P Plfl1I lllenama of peesu wtie -.I"'" ""PfJOt1J 
• 

' 
.Middle.· 

eontr&i:t Colf,r;t/ott Amount: YA11r,:h/ldwp/lll,twt11 be ~ by CSN 1111d you wt/I bl ad'lllled o1 the 
"Contraot Coll«:tlon Amount" (tOf,11 amount du& to 10f1 and being eol/el:f/ld under dlls Ar,'""'«tfl• 

n,. ,.,_ 0eontnet c;oller:tlon Amount", tnr:lllflM 1111 tlllld support, alimony, epouul .uppart. and 
n,e,;IICf// oppottcon.etad. It also /MIIMIN ,nyothllt kind of auppo,r /Mluded In yo(lf court otdar and •. 
/~,-,endccm. . 

· ( Thlnt Cflt1 be no p11.rm-o1 currant •IIPPorl. 111/J/k th-,. any~ l'D/IJ8fil/ng on your "Conhcl 
Coltec#on Amount"'. TIIJa IS tnl• no m_, wliat Ure P'QfnllJllf Ea aa/led by the NCP, Ju-., Col/IT C/8/'lt, 
$fllf& Dlsbfltsemmt Unit, or ,myother.-g~ . 

<. TemrlnJlf/111 gf AIIIWlll&nt: Th/$ Agrooment,. ~.d llllffl 1118 Contr.lct Col/ar;t/on Amount flU b"911 
OOll.ctMI In full. If tw'llw (1ZJ AHHlf>Ollllve /IIOIIIM go .Dy wlttl no paymfflt IJe""1 made by the NCP you 
n,q twmlnllte this Ag,aemwit by ngtlfv(lrg CM, Iii wrtttng, that~ Wllllt to a/os4' yaur--

Wlm CbJJtl ~-tic AarJ!O To De: CSN asr- co do tfNI lol/owlnr,: 

1. CSN will UIII Its but atronlr lo r:ollat:f th& •Conlnct Cal/ecflon Amo<IM" • 

. .2. CS/ti r,/1/ nor~ your cao "11'1111y plfnc/plll amo11nt ,_ rtm, fha total prlnolpal amount oWlld to 
you. CSN may av,... to accept II perladlo paym,nt or pray,nGltt$ of ftlt prlllaq,,I smc;unt awact to y;u, 
cmt may setlle for,_ tJr.n the ftrll amant !If l'nalrN4 or may WIIMI /m111'#1 In ordarta Aladl a 
$dlffflW. . 

,3. CSN w,IJI •ndyou ....,.1'8p0/111.lfP(ldll(J /nfOffllaf/olr as we believe II Is •-IY, USUl/1y Wat)' 90. 
dtqs..Apay111ant-tto yc,u • conaMlred aJfltUBnpott. 

~ Aotee To po; As your pa,t ollht. A'1'V8111111(. you agrn to do Iha following: 

1. You urea fa ntJtJty CSN of any man,.,, tnodltlt:dot111 or legal ar:tlOM r,g,rr/ing your twppOrt order 
aroJNlngu In oh/Id ~Y, •.so/Id~ "'..•ny nlOtl/lk:atlon to CSN. · 

(Page 1 o14} ~-

, 1'1¢. - t:op)'lfgl,t 1~ CltlldSuppCI! NeltNa• u ~ 72-1-M. 

~ .. 
9l8VS9ct0l: "ON X~3 14tL 

□:) tlNIE!W3d: W□<l3 

cd WdvC::v0 vooc: sc: ·1nr 
9l817S9C:t0L: "ON X~3 

OJ tlNIE!W3d: WO~J 
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( 

!1fJw;allan9RfP,; You and CSN agree. lo tha fOllowing additional fffl,ra; 

1. You.,,,.,., fll11t CSN la not gMng or att,amptlnr, ta g/Ve lflf}III advft:e. You 111'8 em:aun1ged to eontact 
an attorney llf any tint• -¥0",.., you may n_ /rlgll( _,,,_ 

2. C$N Will have ,;omp/8tfl tJilt:nt/on fl7 determine the method$ •nd prruiedutN Uffd In cot/acting ygin' 
ellild iwppo,t. 

3,. Thia Agn,ement wf1I ba elfectJVe w'1111 ,OU and 1111 euthotlad llpr8$fnmf/ve of CSN Bl/pl It 

4. n,,- Ag,,aement 111 en irg,aemant fll pmvlda r:t1llect1on ~ only. Under i,o oJ~ -,,n · 
this Ag""""Mt"- o0llllld8ftld to be«~• 1111 assl'gn,nent of am, .uppo,totderto CSN. 

s. 11114 Agreement doe, ll9f ,..,,,,,,. fhllt CSN tao Kl/on on ,.,..ttvn, lnvohllng CUSfDdJr, vfsltatlon or 
athar mtdfenl unrlllat.fld to f/,o coBecffcn of petlt tlllfl IIIIPPfllt. 

Enflffl Aa~ 711/s Agnwnant cotlta/M lllt antf191111,...,,,,,,, beew-, you and C$N, No othr,r 
n,prenntatlona oras-m1t11tsllhtll be of 111yfon,e Md all'ect unllu In writing. 

Default: If you ,_rw, p,rym.,,c,, ,lfn,ctJy from tlie NCP, #la co/llt 1H' h/11 11f1Y other source, 1111d fd lo 
rMllt the,... dl/9 fll C,N ;;ou w/U lie Ill dllfaultoffhla ,._,.,,,. llyoU do ,nyflllng dlat would In IIIIY 
W41Y 11dvwnly alfet:t tho ebl/Jty of CSN lo t:allffl 10"' pat duo ,wppott, YoU Wf1I be In defllr,Jt ol lhllt 
~ . 

,r you_ ,n llafalllt 01 this AQtH/1}8111 or If you lat/ m tvhmd -,,y O.,.,,,.JIINli')t mad• #11 J'OY by CSN, or H 
you a,. In vfO/dan of any otthe olherlltnn• of lh/11 ~-you tpant permtalon fw C.N to obfa/JJ 
your f:OMumeruedlt ~ &om 11/ty OOMIIIII~ llftJIIICY. ' ' -

gov,m1n11 .t.,w(Attomtv AIN; This ~t .rllall bfl /nttr,.. Ari -Ol'tl/h(J to t!H,181Q "'"'· Staf& . 
of Arimn& In Ulo ownt of lltlfpltlon, tllt pnvalllntl porty .,Yi bo flllflflsd IIO -b/e /lfllOm9y foos and 
court_,., 

µm/MI PonrC!f~ttomu; 

f henby llppDlnt Cllltd Support Natworlr, Im:. M my WIiifui auomey./n-fat:t to Alea the f'o/lowlng llctlOM: 

1, CSN la 11uthOltDdto eofledmy e/lP.d,fU/1POlt, spo--~ """'"1_auppQlf. ~•I 
.uppc,rt, ~-1111 llld'COlfs dw rmderfhe ttllN of my1111uitonhlrordl'lo1A r/OcrN. CSN 16 
autborlntllD nllfe lhe amounta d119 end-h p,,,,,.,,c~. 

2. CSN i$ autholkedm collKt. dtumlnd, ,-,.r119, er:cept 111d depoeft any ch«:k, crnitt, nota or money 
Wllli:11 Clllllf Supp,nt NfllWUdr re~ on my be/lslt. 

a. CSN Ii llllthodzfld fQ obtain lnf'onnllflon from any third patty Which ma, bt u,ett hi ooUectlng my past 
du• auppo,t · · 

4. CSN laauthotlnd to,,,.,_ Qfltl//taf ,aa/ and p-81 prapettyand tD ,:r,oe/n peym_,. 011 my 
· behalHhttt tNUlt frOm 1h11 tlllllg f1f audl /NM. · 

S. CSN la authorized fD file c/olln• In fatale anti fWl/trupt,:y ca,e, an my bthalf. 

0, I $pf1Clf/t:tllly autltotfn 11111:t approve Ibo ,_,_ al any 1111d tlll Information to CSN lly any .stBtll, 
~nty aroth81'ga'lfltnmantal agency, 

(Fbga3of4) {jlM'• 
FORMN0.00/IRS 
REVISED 111-1.qa 

C<,p,,,,,,., 18- Q"'1d Sl,ppo,tMI"'°' 

£d Wdt,C:: t,0 t,002 82 '1 nr 9l8t,S9210l: 'ON Xe!.; OJ c!N18W3d: wo~.; 
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T1flS is A POWER OF ATTORNliY COUPLED WITH Alf INTEREST. IT 1$ NOT RRVOCABLE li!XCl!PT BY 
MUTUAL WFUTTEN AG/fEEMl!NTOF THE PARTIS. 

.,, •IMPORTAHT NOTICES"'• H ••---••-• .. 
11,t, CSN conil'llr:f anticipates that lf1e ,,,,~. pannl may attempt tD •void CSN'• 
1:olloot/011 fdldrts by maJdn(l paymenta dftRtJy ta you or through the i:ourt or :date or county 
r:hlld support enfOl'Cttn8nf dffc& CSN will have eamed Its tau on any money paid aner the 
date tllfs Agreement,_ fllSntd by ~u. . 

P-,ments made dlredy to you lm:luda paym.,,,. nml• thro.,gh the eou,t s)'S(lm or paid by 
or through any other m..,,.. . · 

There c:an be no payment of ourrvnt 1111Pporl. whi1• th9re /If fl"}' &Mance ramlllnlng on ~ur 
"Contnoc:t Codeetlon Amounf'. 11w,. trve na matter what Ille paymlfl1t i. called by the NCP, 
Judge, Court Clerlt, state D1-burffm• Unit, oray otlir-,,.n,:y. · 

....,...:i:v-~ --·· 
Your~ V 

- ~~ --
Your s«:1111 Seelltlt,y Number 

t,d Wdt,2 : t,0 1>002 82 · I n r 

• 

Child Support Networlt, /no. 

T~ FIN/denta On/tr. 

DI/Kl your lnqlllrt• ll:I the Tara "-•ttmtnt of . Sanldnf,' ....... 
Complaints mutt" 1n wrldllfl, 
T-~of Banltln11 
2101 fl, ,._,,,tu; AU8tln, TX 11101 
m-ZTl-ff5,f (Wlfne) 
WWW"..llltnM11g.-....C..ua · 

9L8f>S92,0L: "ON X~~ 
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• 
S11lt AU1110'1utto11 

ThJa dotument 191'1'9 IIS Sult Aulhorllltlon as described In lhe Agreement to COlleet Child Supi,o,t blllwNn you and Chlld 
Support NolWolt<, lhC. ("CSN'), 

IM!lll You.-.,,..., To Do: A>I your part. yau a;rae ID: 

1. All1aln an allorney (lha "AIIDITIOy') rorlh• purpc,aa af anfaralnQ your ccurklRlen,d Child 81/j)flOrl, Thi AltomlY'• ,.. • 
...., .--wUI t. llllvanooel by CIN. You will bit rupantl* fatr.lfflbulSellllnt of tit• -is (lncludln9 flDog 
,-, ■■rvr"" ,._ llld e:uurt NlpOltll,._ fw1 flw dapOlltlona, hHtlnp Uld 111als) to C8H from Ill• ftl'IC 11111n~ 
aall■alacl o,, ,-our-•• 

2. 

3. 

4. 

VOi/ ag- ID 1lllnJllh the Altcmey wilt, 111v documenla end lnlonnallon raquolld by the Attorney In order to procaNd with 
your Qll""l 

You give CSN eicpress pemtlaslon to dilclosa to Ole Allllme)' and his emptoyaee, lnformaUon from yot1r CSN nte deemed 
nece u e•~ by CSN or Iha A!lamey to help collGcl for JIIIU; 

You !Jive lhe AIIDIT18)' e,cpma penn1sston Ill dlacusa any and all part ofyaur ocllectlon oua wtlh CSN, 11o oflloara end 
em~; 

<Yr 5. YIIU .... lhllt osN•• IN Wiil lncniau .. ,.,,,, 11W JIIIIWnt (4"1ij of Iha llfflClllnta call-.!. In lddlll1111, lfOII WIii 
rvlmllllne C8N -• CSN ha adv■noed on your balntlf l'rom the ftm mone,a COIIAClocl on your - JJt• ~ 
of your AGm!Mftt !1,1 Col)lct Clllld SUppc,rt la mended bidetlnhly or l!lllfl WW ban C!IJI~ Iba ■ntllO a,rtncfui 
and lnlllreit balanca due an irour CM!-

e< 
B, 

7. 

You t19NN1 lo advise CSN of any PIYlll8ffl8 made dlredly to l'OU by the non-paying plllUllt or any stala, ccunty or other · 
aovomlTMll!t agency WM! lm!Mdlallly send C8N il8 fee for suc:11 dlrac:t ~mlll!I!; 

You agree that CSH Is yauraxcluatve agency and that y,,u will not uae any llale egeney, Olhar ll0lledlon agenoy, 
caDl!dDr or allomey to oollacl your Clllld s_ ro, lh• lenn ol lhla AQreement. 

What ChllcL8uDDOJUletwottc Aare,ti To Do: CSN 1111ren ~ dQ Iha foitawtnlJ: 

1. U8e lta bast etrorla Ill help you ""'81a and Nllet Iha AIIOrnay; 

2. Advance fees and ooats ta lhe All,n,ay e111 )"''" b•ha~. The dlclsiOn IO advance such fees and easts shall be at 1h11101e 
dlscte11on of CSN. You wl1I not Incur any pel'!Ollal llllblllty for Allomay'e full8 and coats. Howaver, CSN wrn l'lllmlxlrsa 
IIHff !Qr any sqct, fan arid COiia out otthe nm h'l<lnap oo-d on YoUr ca .. , Thia obllollllfon 18 In eddllon lo your 
obllgadon 11> pay CSN's aallecllon fuas Sid fOrth rn Che 0/lglnel A;raoment lo Co11aGI Child $uppo,rt. 

,.,.celfaneour. Nellhar CSN nor the Allomey !IQ 1111C11 1111.Y ~. wananty cir promise regarding the oUlcome 01 )'Our 
eaae or !hat ar,y 1P8Qllla legal remedlGe wlll tie pu-. The legal l'IIIIIGdle& lo be PUtllltd wtll be d.iamu"IICI at the dlsomlon or 
the l\llgmoy, glwlg dus OONlldelallon ta lnlDrmllllcm ""'elved from bGth yc,u and CSN. 

l'rfor Aareom.nl: In al o1her regenll, 1he Agreement lo OClhl<:t a,;1c1 6Upport re....rns ope,r, outatandl~ encl In fuD fome and 
effect. 

Cl!Ba :!Upport Nelwoik, me. 

- - -~·-""""'---- -· - - -

"- --- , .. --- ---• =:..'. 
Print Your Name 

Olla: . -,-.::::.:__ ~• _' ·-- ·~ :' 

SA1-0212 

PO BOJC 40$Ct0, Phoenix AZ lllltlB)'..aaac:, .,,. 
a-t 2 .E!. 0•b- ai,11:a 2"1 o, Plleant,c, AN•on• a■o'1 a 

Phone reoo~as-oaoo Pax (aaa1 a41-1a'la 

£d Wd£2'. : 170 17002'. Sc · Inf 9l817£92'.10L: 'ON xt/j 



~@@~@~@®~-
1 

ft ' .biui Su.eport_F,n,_ or_c_enz_ .• nt- _- . ~ f; 
Child Support Enforcement is a joint state: . The court order:~ 
county, and federal partnership. The purpose of the.· 0 Is issued by-the district court; District court judges•.• 
program is to secure financial support from legally· or judicial referees may conduct hearings. 
responsible parents so that families and children· 0 Establishes medical support and the amount of child~ . 
receive that support, ·and so that the demand on public, support due based upon the child support guidelines-
treasuries is reduced. and the unique fact situations of each case. 

The Child Support Enforcement Division· 
works with two types of cases: 

"-t>° IV-0 caseswhich stem from rc:ferrals from public: 
"'I assistance programs (T ANF, foster care and Medical 

Assistance) or from either custodial or noncustodial· 
parents applying for IV-D services~ 

t.\ t)' NonlV-0 cases which stem from court orders where, 
there is no application or referral to the IV-D·· · 
program or where people choose to close their_ IV-DI• 
case, 

Services Provided:· 
By the eight Regional Child Support Enforcement;, . 

•

,.nits (county entities) through-cooperatfre, . . . .. 
,..eement: . . - . 
IV-D cases: Paternity establishment; establishnie~t,:, · 
and enforcement (including issuing income. · 
withholding orders) of .:hild support and medical·;,;- · 
support orders, review and adjustment of court-;·• · 
orders. local locate when customers need to be•-•· 
found, and customer services. 

' Non!V-D cases: None 
By the Clerks of Court: 
0 IV-D and NonlV-D cases: Initiate contempt,·. 

proceedings, enter civil file information into the.·.: 
automated system, and customer services:.-. 

By the Child Support Enforcement Division:.;. 
0 IV-DCases: Manageanumberofprograms:·. 

including Federal and StateTax Intercept, States,· 
Parent Locale Service; Credit Bureau Reporting;, 
Financial Institution Data Match, Passport Denial. 
State Directory of New Hires, Central Registry; and' 
Federal Case Registry, Also provide customer;'--: 
services and centralized receipting and distribution, .. · 
of payments including Electronic Funds Transfer•· 

0 

• 
(EFT). 
NonIV-D cases: Centralized receipting and­
distribution of paym,mts. issuing income 
withholding orders, customer services. and EFT: 

0 May be amended at the request of either party either· 
through private legal counsel or prose (self 
representation).c 

0 Will be reviewed, on IV-D cases, by RCSEUs; 
generally no more frequently than 35 months since· 
the order was entered or last reviewed: 

0 Is enforced by the courts. Requests for enforcement .. 
may come from Clerks of Court, private attorneys, 
either party or; in IV-D cases, the RCSEUs, 

0
• • Is also enforced, in IV-D cases, by the Child Support. 

Enforcement Division and the RCSEUs through a. 
. variety of administrative actions:,. ·· · 

0 Is also enforced, in nonIV-D cases;by the Child:. 
Support Enforcement Division through•. i · · 
administratively_ issued income. withholding orders, 

Contactsllnformation:c 
Web site: http:!>www.childsuoportnd.com 

. Cuslomen: 
Customer Service l'nit:· 
Email: socscs(<i;;rate.nd us 
Ph: 800.231.4255 Local: 328.5440 F8": 701.328.5425 

Customer Address Changes:. 
Email: sosdu(ii;srate.nd.u, 
Web site: http:/'www.childsupoortndcom 

(select Child Support On-line Services) 

Employers:. 
New Hire Reporting: 
Email: sohitt<a.stare.nd.us 
Web site: http::'www.childsuooortnd.com 

(select Child Support On-Line Services) 
. f8": 701.328.5497-' 

Mike Scb.,-indt, Directoie 
Email: soschrti(<i'.srate.nd.us Ph: 701.328.3582 

Re,•ised February 1003 for the North Drilcota Department of 
Human Ser.ices. Child Support Enforcement Division, P. 0. 
Bo.< i/90. Bismarck .VD 5/1507-7/90. (701) 318-3581, toll free 
:\'D: !,~0IJi 755-8530. TTY: !81Jtli 366-6889 
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Supreme Court 
District Court (7) 

Clerk of Court ( ~9) 

Supervising State's 
Attorney 

(3) 

Grand Forks 
RCSEU 

Attorneys 

Minot 
RCSEU 

Fargo 
RCSEU 

Child Support Enforcement 
SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEM 

January 2004 

County Social 
Services Board 

(53) 

Department of 
Human Services 

Child Support 
Enforcement Divison 

Host County Social 
Services or 

Governing Board 
(5) 

---· ----1 Jil~t ~ 
' t--H ~~~~~n ~ 

r-+---i o~~;~• ~ 
Bismarck l---H1

_: 

RCSEU I : 
t 

Devils ~ 
Lake 

RCSEU 

Jamestown L 
RCSEU r -

RCSEU: Regional Child Support Enforcement Unit 

Board of County 
Commissioners 

(53) 

Clerk of Court L 
(4 ) r-1 

Sheriff 
(53) 

State's ~ 
Attorney 

(53) 
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·: ;{, 
· · DUTIES - Child sArt E~forf,~~nt · 

'..,•, ·. , , •· ·· . · .Janu~004 .... , ... ·.·.,, 
State Office, OHS 

The following services are provided on IV-D 
cases only unless otherwise specified. 

Submit State Plan materials which meet federal 
compliance standards 

Provide financial and statistical information to the 
federal government 

Develop and issue policies, procedures, and 
instructions, as well as training 

Operate the State Disbursement Unit (SOU) which 
receipts and distributes all (IV-D and NonlV-D) 
payments 

Manage the following programs: 
• Federal and State Tax Offset 
• Credit Bureau Reporting 
• F;nancial Institution Data Match (FIDM) 
• State Directory of New Hires (SDNH) 
• Passport Denial 

Develop, operate: and maintain the certified 
statewide computer system (FACSES) 

Operate the State Parent Locate Service (SPLS) 
which provides statewide/national locate services 

Manage the Central Registry of incoming interstate 
cases 

Perform program self-assessment 

Manage the Federal Case Registry (FCR) 

Issue, amend, and terminate income withholding 
orders on NonlV-0 cases 

_ _F'_rovide ~- •stomer service (IV-D and NonlV-D cases) 

Regional Child Support 
Enforcement Units 

The following services are provided on IV-D 
cases only. 

Provide local locate services 

Pursue establishment of paternity 

Pursue establishment of child support and 
medical support orders 

Enforce child support and medical support orders 
• Income withholding . 
• Federal and state tax offset 
• Credit bureau reporting . 
• License and vehicle registration suspension 
• Passport denial 
• Liens on real and personal property 
• Executions on real and personal property 
• Refer for state or criminal prosecution 
• National Medical Support Notice 

Review and pursue adjustments of support orders 

Provide customer service 

--Court 
The-following services are 

provided on NonlV-0 and IV-0 
cases. 

District Court: 
Issue orders to establish paternity I 

Issue orders to establish support 

Preside over contempt 
proceedings 
• Set conditions for purging 

contempt 
• Order incarceration 
• Revoke license 
• Require work activities 

Clerk of Court: 
Enter and maintain court order 
information on FACSES 

Initiate contempt proceedings 

Provide customer service 

-~--! 



• 
Flow Chart of Activities 

IV-D Case 

January 2004 

Referral or Application for Services 
Custodial or noncustodial parent completes application, or 

- Through County Social Service Board, family applies for assistance 
(TANF or Medicaid) or child enters Foster Care, and a referral is made. 

Policy direction and automated system support provided for all services 
State Office. DHS 

~ 
,..Case opened. Necessary services provided by Regional " 
Child Support Enforcement Units: Issue orders 
Locate 
- Local level 
- Referred to State Office, OHS, for State Parent Locator 

Services (SPLS) 
Paternity Establishment 
- Voluntary Paternity Acknowledgment (VPA) 
- Genetic testing 
- Stipulation or motion to court if no VPA 

Establishment (child support and medical support) 
- Gather financial information and calculate guideline amount 
- Stipulation or motion to court 

Review and Adjustment 
- Gather financial information and calculate guideline amount 
- Stipulation or motion to court 

Enforcement 
- Income withholding 
• State and federal tax offset (State Office, OHS, submits cases) 
- Credit bureau reporting (State Office, OHS, submits cases) 
- License and vehicle registration suspension 
- Passport denial (State Office, OHS, submits cases) 
- Liens and executions · 
- Refer for state or criminal prosecution 
- National Medical Support Notice ... 

Payment 

All support payments must be made to the State 
Disbursement Unit (SDU). 
Payment received, entered onto 
FACSES, and distributed within two 
days. (Checks are generated overnight 
and mailed the following day.) 
State Office, DHS 

Preside over 
contempt 
proceedings 
- Set conditions 

for purging 
contempt 

- Order incarceration 
- Revoke license 
- Require work activities 

District Court 

- Enter and maintain 
order information 
onFACSES 

- - Initiate contempt 
proceedings 

Clerk cf Court 

Payment 
to 

family 
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Flow Chart of Activities 

NonlV-0 Case -
January 2004 

Court order established from a divorce or support action taken by 
a custodial parent not receiving IV-0 services.· 

District Court 

~---1 
Information from court order 
entered onto FACSES. 
Clerk of Court 

r . 
If noncustodial parent's 
employer is known, an income 
withholding order is issued. · 

State Office, OHS 

., 

' 

No 
payment 

r ., 

., Payment 

Clerk of Court is 
alerted, by FACSES, 
that a payment is 
missed. 

r ., 
All support payments must be made 
to the Slate Disbursement Unit 
(SOU). 

Payment received, entered 
onto FACSES, and 
distributed within two days. 
{Checks are generated 
overnight and mailed the 
following day.) 

.._Stale Office, OHS 

Payment 
to 

family 

, State Office, OHS ,; 

+ 
Order to Show Cause is 
issued for noncustodial 
parent to appear at a 
contempt hearing to 
explain why payments 
are not being made. 
Contempt hearing 
scheduled . 
Clerk of Court 

At the contempt hearing, set 
conditions for purging contempt, 
order incarceration, revoke license, 
require work activities . 
District Court 



Child Support Enforcement 

Primary Interdependencies and Interactions 

OHS Support 
- Fiscal 
- Human Resources 
- Legal 

OHS Programs ('7): 

Other states' and 
countries' child 

support programs 
('1) 

- Children and Family Services 
- Economic Assistance 
- Medical Services 

Regional CSE 
Units 

{county) 
('2) 

I 

Child. 

County 
Social 

Services 
('3) 

Other county 
officials (*4 ): 

- County Recorders 
- Sheriffs 

Other state agencies ('BJ: 
- Attorney General's Office 
- Game and Fish 

Support 
Enforcement 

(CSE) 

- State's Attorneys 

ealth 

- Office of Management and Budget 
/; 

- Professional Boards and 
Commissions 
- Secretary of State 
- Supreme Court 
- Tax 
- Transportation 
- University system I 

• 

Credit bureaus ('9) 

Employers ('10) 

Financial institutions ('11) 

Hospitals (*12) 

Insurance companies ('13) 

Utility companies ('14) 

I 

\ 

District 
Courts, 

Clerks of 
Court 

('5) 

Primary federal agencies ('6): 

- Department of Defense 
- Internal Revenue Service 
- Office of Child Support Enforcement 
- Social Security Administration 
- State Department 

• See attached for more 
detailed information on the 
primary interdependencies. 

November 2004 



! Number/Entity 
I 1. 

•

,er states' and 
ountries' child 

support programs 

2. 
Regional CSE 

Units 
(county) 

3. 
County Social 

Services 

4 . 

• 

Other county 
officials 

I 

5. 
District Courts 
Clerks of Court 

i Primary Interdependencies and Interactions 
' • CSE sends outgoing interstate cases to other states and 

countries for appropriate services. (Usually when noncustodial parent 
resides in another state and we are not able to take appropriate action 
without another state's assistance.) 

• CSE receives incoming interstate cases from other states and 
countries for appropriate services. (Usually when noncustodial parent 
resides in North Dakota and the other state is not able to take appropriate 
action without our assistance.) 

• Eight county-administered offices which provide child support 
enforcement services, pursuant to a cooperative agreement 
between CSE and County Social Service Boards. 

• Provide local locate services. 
• Pursue establishment of paternity. 
• Pursue establishment of child support and medical support 

orders. 
• Enforce support orders. 
• Review and pursue adjustments of support orders. 
• Provide customer service. 
• Administer Regional CSE Units (directly, in Dickinson, Williston, Devils 

Lake, Grand Forks, and Jamestown). 
• TANF, Medicaid, and Foster Care cases are worked by the 

eligibility staff. 
County Recorders 
• CSE accesses real property information. 
• CSE files liens on personal property with County Recorders. 

Sheriffs 
• Serve papers relating to establishment and enforcement legal 

processes. 
• Handle forced sales of assets to collect child support. 
• Take individuals into custody on contempt of court orders for jail 

time. 

State's Attorneys 
• Upon agreement with the County Social Service Board, the host 

county State's Attorney supervises the Regional CSE Unit in 
Bismarck, Fargo, and Minot (and the attorneys in Grand Forks). 

• Pursue contempt of court proceedings and prosecute for state 
criminal nonsupport. 

District Courts 
• Issue orders to establish paternity and support. 
• Preside over contempt proceedings. 

Clerks of Court 
• Enter and maintain court order information on FACSES. 
• Initiate contempt proceedings. 
• Provide customer service. 

I 
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. Number/Entity 
6. 

rimary federal 
agencies 

• 
7. 

OHS Programs 

I Primary Interdependencies and Interactions 
Department of Defense 
• CSE accesses DOD information. 
• CSE issues income withholding orders through Defense 

Financing and Accounting Service (OFAS); OFAS withholds and 
sends money to the SOU. 

Internal Revenue Service 
• CSE accesses federal tax records. 
• Offset federal tax refunds to pay past-due child support. 

Office of Child Support Enforcement 
• The federal agency responsible for the administration of the 

Child Support Enforcement program. 
• Responsible for developing federal policy; oversight; conducting 

audits of state programs; and providing technical assistance and 
training to the state programs. 

Social Security Administration 
• Verify information for CSE. 
• CSE issues income withholding orders to SSA for withholding 

from certain benefits; SSA withholds and sends money to the 
SOU . 

State Department 
• Deny passports when there is past-due child support. 
Children and Family Services 
• CSE receives referrals from the Foster Care program. (Each time 

a child goes into a Foster Care setting, a referral is sent to CSE.) 
• Upon receipt of a referral, CSE provides all appropriate services 

on the case. 
• CSE exchanges information with the Foster Care program on 

the cases in common. 

Economic Assistance 
• CSE receives referrals from the TANF program. (When a family 

becomes eligible for TANF and certain "deprivation" reasons exist {e.g., a 
parent is absent from the home), a referral is sent to CSE.) 

• Upon receipt of a referral, CSE provides all appropriate services 
on the case. 

• CSE exchanges information with the TANF program on the 
cases in common. 

Medical Services 
• CSE receives referrals from the Medicaid program. {When a 

family becomes eligible for Medicaid and certain "deprivation" reasons exist 
{e.g., a parent is absent from the home), a referral is sent to CSE.) 

• Upon receipt of a referral, CSE provides all appropriate services 
on the case. 

• CSE exchanges information with the Medicaid program on the 
cases in common. 



i Number/Entity 
' ' 8 . 

• 
Other s_tate 
· agencies 

j Primary Interdependencies and Interactions 
1 Attorney General's Office 
• The Lottery Division offsets certain winnings to pay past-due 

child support. 

Game and Fish 
• CSE accesses Game and Fish records. 
• CSE issues recreational license suspension and reinstatement 

orders to Game and Fish; Game and Fish suspends and 
reinstates the licenses. 

Health 
• CSE accesses information from the Vital Records Division 

including birth certificates, death certificates, and, most 
commonly, Voluntary Paternity Acknowledgments (VPAs). 

• Vital Records Division is a VPA service entity; they provide the 
full range of VPA services. 

• Vital Records files, certifies, and vacates VPAs. 

Job Service 
• CSE accesses records (e.g., quarterly wage information). 
• CSE issues income withholding orders for unemployment 

benefits; JSND withholds and sends money to the SOU. 

Office of Management and Budget 
• CSE issues income withholding orders to 0MB for employee 

wages; 0MB withholds and sends money to the SDU. 

Professional Boards and Commissions 
• CSE accesses information from professional boards and 

commissions. 
• CSE issues professional and occupational license suspension 

and reinstatement orders to professional boards and 
commissions; professional boards and commissions suspend 
and reinstate the licenses. 

Secretary of State 
• CSE accesses the Secretary of State's business database. 
• CSE accesses the Secretary of State's Central Index System. 
• CSE files liens on certain personal property with the Secretary 

of State. 

Supreme Court 
• State's appellate court with the responsibility of hearing appeals 

from decisions of the district courts. 
• Responsible for administration of the court system including 

clerk of court contract with CSE. 

Tax 
• CSE accesses tax records. 
• Offset state tax refunds to pay past-due child support. 

i 

I 
j 
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. Number/Entity 
(Other state 
agencies, 

cont.) 

9. 
Credit bureaus 

10. 

• 

Employers 

11. 
Financial 

institutions 

12. 
Hospitals 

13. 
Insurance 
companies 

14. 
Utility companies 

j'Primary Interdependencies and Interactions 
Transportation 
• CSE accesses driver's license information. 
• CSE accesses motor vehicle registration information. 
• CSE issues driver's license and vehicle registration suspension 

and reinstatement orders to DOT; DOT suspends and reinstates 
the licenses and registrations. 

• CSE files vehicle liens with DOT; DOT places liens on the 
vehicles. 

University system 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

CSE issues income withholding orders to the University system 
for employee wages; the University system withholds and sends 
money to the SOU. 
CSE accesses credit bureau information. 
CSE reports unpaid child support to credit bureaus. 
CSE accesses information from all private businesses and 
government entities on employees and former employees. 
CSE issues income withholding orders to employers; employers 
withhold and send money to the SOU. 
CSE issues National Medical Support Notices (NMSNs) to 
employers; employers enroll the children in available heath 
insurance . 

• Employers report new hires to CSE within 20 days of date of 
hire. 

• Employers report lump sum payments to CSE. 
• CSE accesses financial institution records. 
• CSE issues liens and executions on financial accounts; financial 

institutions freeze the accounts, or seize the money and send to 
the SOU. 

• Birthing hospitals are the primary VPA service entity. Provide 
the full range of VPA services in the hospital, at the lime of the 
child's birth. 

• Coming soon. Child Support Lien Network (CSLN) which will 
provide matches with insurance proceeds. (Once identified, 
CSE will then be able to seize the proceeds, as appropriate.) 

• CSE accesses customer account information. 
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north dakota 
department of 
human services 

Fact Sheet 

Visitation 
December 2004 · Child Support Enforcement Program 

The Child Support Enforcement program understands that you may have issues or 
questions concerning visitation with your child. While the program does not · 
provide services relating to the establishment or enforcement of visitation, we hope 
that this fact sheet will provide you with helpful information. 

The enforcement of child support and the 
enforcement of visitation are separate 
issues. Child support and visitation are both 
considered to be rights of the child. Because 
a child is denied one right does not mean that 
the child should be denied another right. 
This means that it is not okay for a custodial• 
parent to deny visitation because the 
noncustodial parent does not pay child 
support. It also means that it is not okay for a 
noncustodial parent to not pay child support 
because the custodial parent denies 
visitation. 

If you wish to pursue a visitation issue in 
court, you have the option of either hiring 
an attorney to represent you or · 
representing yourself. If you need 
assistance with a visitation issue,. you may· 
wish to hire an attorney. If you believe you 
cannot afford to hire an attorney, you may be 
able to get legal help at a reduced cost. For 
more information on the options available, 
contact the State Bar Association of North . 
Dakota (SBANO) or visit their Web site at 
www.sband.orq (under "Resources for the Public"). 

You may also wish to represent yourself (that 
is, without an attorney's help). Self­
Represented Visitation Forms are available 
on the ND Supreme Court Web site at 
www.court.state.nd.us/court/formsNisitation/forms.htm. 
These forms and instructions are to be used 
only if there is already a court order giving you 
or the other parent visitation rights. You may 
also contact the Customer Service Unit for 
copies of the forms. (See contact information 
at the end of this sheet.) 

You may be awarded reasonable 
attorney's fees and costs. State law at 
N.D.C.C. § 14-09-24 provides that, in a court 
proceeding in which there is a dispute over 
visitation, the court shall award the 
noncustodial parent reasonable attorney's 
fees and costs if the court determines there 
has been willful and persistent denial of 
visitation rights by the custodial parent. 

Visitation may be enforced by the court 
through child support enforcement 
remedies. N.D.C.C. § 14-09-24 provides. 
that the court may use any remedy to enforce 
a visitation order that is available to enforce a 
child support order, as long as the remedy is 
appropriate for visitation enforcement. 

There are a number of rights and duties 
that may be included in the court order. 
State law at N.D.C.C. § 14-09-28 provides 
that each parent of a child has a number of 
visitation (and custody) rights and duties. 
Rights include the right to access various 
records of the child; the right to attend school 
conferences; and the right to reasonable · 
access to the child by letter, telephone, and 
electronic means. Duties include the duty to 
inform the other parent if the child has a 
serious accident or serious illness; the duty to 
immediately inform the other parent of a 

. change in home telephone number and 
address; and the duty to keep the other 
parent informed of the name and address of 
the school the child attends. With some 
exceptions, these rights and duties are to be 
included in a visitation order . 

Over➔ 
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When a child support order is being 
established or modified, the amount of 
child support may be adjusted to consider 
extended visitation. State law at N.D.C.C. 
§ 14-09-09.7(1 )(e) requires that the Child 
Support Guidelines (the administrative rules 
used to calculate the amount of child support 
to be ordered) include consideration of 
extended periods of time a minor child 
spends with the noncustodial parent. 

The guidelines address this by allowing an 
adjustment for extended visitation. For this 
purpose, extended visitation means there is a 
court order providing for visitation between 
the noncustodial parent and a child which 
exceeds 60 of 90 consecutive nights or an 
annual total of 164 nights. (N.D. Admin. 
Code N.D.C.C. § 75-02-04.1-08.1 of the 
North Dakota Child Support Guidelines.*) A 
guidelines form (Schedule D - Adjustment for 
Extended Visitation*) may be used to 
calculate the adjustment. 

Three official interpretations* regarding this 
section of the guidelines have been issued to 
address frequently asked questions: 
• IC-CO-00-07 Extended Visitation -

Applicability Determined by Visitation 
Schedule in Court Order 

• IC-CO-00-09 Split Custody and Extended 
Visitation - Extended Visitation 
Adjustment to be Completed Prior to Split 
Custody Calculation · 

• IC-CO-01-13 Adjustment for Extended 
Visitation - Number of Visitation Nights to 
be Counted in the Calculation 

* Copies of the Child Support Enforcement 
Guidelines, guidelines forms, and guidelines 
interpretations are available through the Child 
Support Enforcement Web site at 
http://www.childsupportnd.com. You may 
also request them by contacting the 
Customer Service Unit. (See contact 
information at the end of this sheet.) 

When a child support order is being 
established or modified, the amount of 
child support may be adjusted to consider 
visitation-related travel expenses. The 
guidelines also allow for a reduction of the 
child support amount due to a noncustodial 
parent's travel costs directly related to the 
purpose of visiting the child. The reduction 
must be in the best interest of the child and 
consideration must be given to the amount of 
court-ordered visitation and, when such 
history is available, actual expenses and 
practices of the parents. (N.D. Admin. Code 
§ 75-02-04.1-09(2)(i) of the North Dakota 
Child Support Guidelines.) 

Contact Information: 

Web site 
http://www.childsupportnd.com 

Customer Service Unit 
E-mail: socscs@state.nd.us 
Ph: 800-231-4255 

328-5440 (Bismarck/Mandan) 
Fax: 701-328-5425 

Regional Child Support Enforcement 
Units 

Bismarck: 
Devils Lake: 
Dickinson: 
Fargo: 
Grand Forks: 

701-222-6721 
701-662-5374 
701-227-7424 
701-241-5640 
701-787-8575 
701-252-7394 
701-857-7696 
701-577-4560 

Jamestown: 
Minot: 
Williston: 

Director, Mike Schwindt 
E-mail: soschm@state.nd.us 
Ph: 701-328-3582 

N.D. Dept. of Human Services 
Child Support Enforcement Division 

1600 E Century Avenue, Suite 7 
P.O. Box 7190 

Bismarck ND 58507-7190 
701-328-3582 or 800-231-4255 

TTY 800-366-6888 
http://www.childsupportnd.com 
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Distribution of Debtors and Arrears by Amount of Arrears Owed - December ~004 
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Child Support 
Recelva~es 

SFY 2000 to 2004 

2000 I Change I 2001 I Change I 2002 I Change I 2003 I Change I 12004 Principat 2004 P&I I Change from 2000 

IV-0 Prtnclpll Prtnclpal and Interest 
Amount Pen:ent ~l!'lount Percent 

Federal match Folter Care 2,818,181 23.- 3,475,174 20.68% 4,193,102 11.35'!1i 4,669,043 8.33% 5,058,059 5,151,469 2,141,878 0.80 2,335,268 0.83 

State match Foater Caro 3,280,097 3.181' 3,3841,519 -8.75"- 3,156,139 -4.57,. 3,011,906 -9.52'ti 2,725,168 2,742,971 -Ss.1,930 -0.17 '-537,127 -0.16 

Emergency Foster care 485,814 185.5<1% 1,387,501 74.80,i, 2,425,342 "·""' 3,118,656 19.9Mio 3,738,637 3,837,978 3,252,723 .... 3,352,oe.t 0.90 

Total Foster Care eulgntll 8,582,182 '"·""" 8,247,194 18.sai s,n4,584 10.4~ 10?97,605 8.71% 11,521,884 11,732,418 4,939,871 0.75 5,150,225 0.78 ,. 
T ANF auignod 57,258,834 9.08111 82,459,384 

, __ 
66,888,032 8.07'io 70,948,079 0.22,. 75,359:2◄1 78, 15-4,500 18,100,308 Q.32 18,~,SE!7 0.33 

Medicaid auignod _244,347 --0. 1°"! 244,105 5.35'Wi, 257,175 1.oeiw. 259,893 ··- 270,810 272,019 26,463 0.11 27,872 0.11 

Out of State and Oth1t1 assii: 10,930,856 17.~ 12,853,333 ..... 13,896,381 0.54'iio 14,072,300 7.27'6, 15,096,054 15,455,988 4,185,199 0.~ 4,525,113 0.41 

Total AuiQnod Roceivllbllt! 75,018,328 11.11, 83,~,997 8.4K 90,918,172 s.eeiw. ~.077,877 8.42" 102,2~7.969 103,814,905 27,231,841 0.30 28,598,577 0.38 

IV.Q not Auign~ 82,998,881 , ..... 85,258,048 1.~'4 66,156,871 3.39'6, ea,◄02.291 2.55'6, ?0,146,807 72,043,921 7,147,926 0.11 9,045,040 0.14 

Sub Total IV-0 ~38,015,210 O.OO'll 149,082,843 s.3:7'4 157,072,843 4.72iw. 184_,480,188 ◄.81'4 172,394,778 175,858,826 34,379,587 0.25 37,843,617 0.27 

NonlV-0 (Clerk only) 19,992,760 23.78% 24,748,191 14.~ 28,233,763 -1.26% 27,878,143 8.83°"; 30,338,519 31,042,640 10,345,759 0.52 11,049,880 0.55 

Total Receivables• I ,se 001 ezol 10.00'ii,j 173 808 8331 Cl.62'16 I 185 308 8;081 4.s1iw.i 1e3 884 111 I 8.731' I :zoe,101,◄87! 20&,101,4811 48,693,497 p.31 ◄8,693,4~7 0,31 

• Total includes intoro&l acauod 1,306,460 203.73'6, 3,966,171 3,968,171 3,988,171 3,968,171 

Interest collectod 157,083 221.57iw. 505,125.91 505,125.91 

",_ 12.Qa 5.87'Mo 12.73'4 12.73'Mo 

7112/20()4 10:18 AM 2004 6-31) ~ balanct,s and an.llysis .Jill 
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Child Support Enforcement 
Abbreviations and Definitions 

AC Action Communication 

ACF Administration for Children and Families 

AEI (Automated) Administrative Enforcement of Interstate Cases 

AF Alleged Father 

AFDC Aid to Families with Dependent Children 

AP Absent Parent 

AR Applicant/Recipient 

AT Action Transmittal 

ATM Automated Teller Machine 

AVR Automated Voice Response System 

BIA Bureau of Indian Affairs 

CCA Consumer Credit Agencies 

CCD+ Cash Concentration and Disbursement "Plus" 

CCPA Consumer Credit Protection Act 

CCWIPS Comprehensive Child Welfare Information and Payment System 

C:D CONNECT:Direct 

CEJ Continuing Exclusive Jurisdiction (to modify a support order) 

Cl Central Inquiry 

CP Custodial Parent 

CSE Child Support Enforcement 

CSEA Child Support Enforcement Agency 

CSENet Child Support Enforcement Network 

CSI (CSENet) Case Status Inquiry 

CSPIA Child Support Performance and Incentive Act of 1998 

CSPS Child Support Payment Specialist 

CSSB County Social Service Board 

CTX Corporate Trade Exchange 

DCIA Debt Collection Improvement Act 

- 1 -
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DCL Dear Colleague Letter 

DDU Direct Deposit Unit 

DHHS Department of Health and Human Services 

DHS Department of Human Services 

DIW Direct Income Withholding 

ON Document Number 

DOA Due on Arrears 

DOB Date of Birth 

DOD Department of Defense or Date of Death 

DolT Division of Information Technology 

DOS Department of State 

DOT Department of Transportation or Department of Treasury 

EDI Electronic Data Interchange 

EFT Electronic Funds Transfer 

ESKARI Earnings Systems Keyed Applications for SSN Registration Identification 

EW Eligibility Worker 

FACSES Fully Automated Child Support Enforcement System 

FBI Federal Bureau of Investigation 

FCR Federal Case Registry 

FEIN Federal Employer Identification Number 

FFCCSOA Full Faith and Credit for Child Support Orders Act 

Fl Financial Institution 

FIDM FinaRc1al Institution Data Match 

FIPS Federal Information Processing Standards 

FMS Financial Management Service 

FPLS Federal Parent Locator Service 

FSA Family Support Act 

FTI Federal Tax Intercept 

FVI Family Violence Indicator 

. 2. 
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FYI For Your Information 

GAL Guardian Ad Litem 

GT Genetic Test 

HB House Bill 

IC Informational Communication 

IHS Indian Health Service 

IM Information Memo or Information Memorandum 

IRC Internal Revenue Code 

IRS Internal Revenue Service 

IV-A Title IV-A of the Social Security Act (also known as Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)) 

tV-0 Title IV-D of the Social Security Act (also known as Child Support Enforcement) 

IV-E Title IV-E of the Social Security Act (also known as Foster Care and Adoption Assistance) 

IVR Interactive Voice Response System 

IW Income Withholding 

two Income Withholding Order 

MAO Medical Assistance Only 

MOE Maintenance of Effort 

MSFIDM Multistate Financial Institution Data Match 

MSO Monthly Support Obligation 

NACHA National Automated Clearing House Association 

NCCSD National Council of Child Support Directors 

NCCUSL National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws 

NCP Noncustodial Parent 

NCSEA National Child Support Enforcement Association 

NCSL National Council of State Legislatures 

NDM Network Data Mover 

NDNH National Directory of New Hires 

NH NewHire 

NLETS National Law Enforcement Telecommunications System 

-3-
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NMSN National Medical Support Notice 

NPRC National Personnel Records Center . 

OBRA Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 

OCSE Office of Child Support Enforcement 

OEA Office of Economic Assistance 

OPM Office of Personnel Management 

OSC Order to Show Cause 

OTSC Order To Show Cause 

OVM OfficG Vi,:;ion/MVS 

PF Putative Father 

PIQ Policy Interpretation Question 

POS Point-of-Sale 

PPD Prearranged Payment o.- Deposit 

PRWORA Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 

QMCSO Qualified Medical Child Support Order 

OW Quarterly Wage 

RCSEU Regional Child Support Enforcement Unit 

RMR Requires Manual Review 

RURESA Revised Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act 

SB Senate Bill 

SCR State Case Registry 

SDNH State Directory of New Hires 

SOU State .[1.isbursement Unit 

SEIN State Employer Identification Number 

SESA State Employment Security Agency 

SFN State Form Number 

SPLS State Parent locator Service 

SSA Social Security Administration 

SSN Social Security Number 

- 4-
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STI State Tax Intercept 

Slip Stipulation 

SWAP (see Definitions) 

TANF. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

TAT Three Affiliated Tribes 

TDD Telecommunications Device for the Deaf 

TECS Technical Eligibility Computer System 

TPL Third Party Liability 

TPQY Third Party Query 

TPR Termination of Parental Rights 

TTY Text Telephones 

UI Unemployment Insurance 

UIFSA Uniform Interstate Family Support Act 

UPA Unreimbursed Public Assistance or Uniform Parentage Act 

URESA Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act 

VA Department of Veterans Affairs 

VIN Vehicle Identification Number 

VIPRS Very Intelligent Payment Receipting System 

VPA Voluntary Paternity Acknowledgment 

- 5 -
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Absent Parent (AP) (See noncustodial parent (NCP) and obliger- the preferred terms) 

Action Communication (AC) Document issued by the State IV-D office as needed. The primary recipients 
of Action Communications are, with very few exceptions, the Regional IV-0 offices. Action Communications 
issue policy directions (policies, procedures, and forms), usually requiring action by the Regional IV-D 
offices. Manual revisions are issued through ACs. 

Action Transmittal (AT) Document issued by the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) as 
needed, which instructs state IV-D programs on the actions they must take to comply with new and 
amended federal requirements. Has basis in federal law or regulation. 

Adjudication The determination of the issues in an action by the entry of a judgment, decree, or order by a 
judge (er, in some other states, by another decision-maker such as a master or hearing officer) based on 
the evidence submitted by the parties .. 

Administration for Children and Families (ACF) The agency in the federal Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) that houses the Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE). 

Administrative Enforcement of Interstate Cases (AEI) Provision in the Personal Responsibility and Work 
Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) giving state IV-0 programs the ability to provide high-volume 
automated administrative enforcement services without establishing a full interstate IV-D case. AEI allows 
states to locate, place a lien on, and seize financial assets of delinquent noncustodial parents across state 
lines. Also sometimes referred to as Automated Administrative Enforcement of Interstate cases. 

Administrative Procedure or Process Method by which support orders are made and enforced by an . 
0

_ 

executive agency rather than by courts and judges. 

Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) Former entitlement program that made public 
assistan·ce payments en behalf of children who did not have the financial support of one or both of their 
parents by reason of death. disability, or continued absence from the home. AFDC was replaced with 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) under the Personal Responsibility ano Work Opportunity 
Rewnciliation Act {PRWORA). 

Alimony (See Spousal Support - the preferred term) 

Alleged Father (AF) The person alleged to be the father of the child but who ~,as not yet been legally 
declared to be the legal father. Also may be referred to as a putative father (PF). 

Applicant/Recipient (AR) An outdated term used to refer to the person receiving IV-D services through 
IV-D application (applicant) or through referral due to receipt of public assistance (recipient). (See Custodial 
Parent - the preferred term) 

Arrearage Past-due, ·unpaid child support owed by the noncustodial parent. Also may be'referred to as 
arrears. 

t-
Arrears Past-due, unpaid child support owed by the noncustodial parent. Also may be referred to as an 
arrearage. 

Assignment of Support Rights The legal procedure by which a person receiving public assistance agrees 
to turn over to the state any right to child support, including arrearages, paid or owed by the noncustodial 
parent in exchange for receipt of a cash assistance and other benefits. States can then use a portion of 
said child support to defray or recoup the public assistance expenditure. 

Automated Voice Response System (AVR) Telephone system that makes frequently requested 
information available to customers over touch-tone telephones. Also sometimes referred to as Interactive 
Voice Response System (IVR). 

Burden of Proof The duty of a party to produce the greater weight of evidence on a point at issue . 

. 6. 
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Case Initiation First step in the child support enforcement process. 

Case Law Law established by the history of judicial decisions in cases. Generally refers to the decisions of 
appellate courts . 

Cash Concentration and Disbursement "Plus" (CCD+) Standardized format used for Electronic Funds 
Transfer (EFT) of child support withholdings from an employee's wages or from one state to another. The 
"Plus" indicates that an addenda record carries the payment-related information. 

Central Inquiry (Cl) Process A process used for policy-related inquiries from the Regional IV-D offices to 
the State IV-D office. The goal is to ensure policy clarification, interpretation, and guidance are provided to 
Regional IV-D offices in a timely manner that is beneficial to tt>e Regional IV-D offices and to the State IV-D 
office. The process ensures inquiries are recorded, assigned, tracked, responded to, and disseminated. 

Central Registry A centralized unit, maintained by every state IV-D program, that is responsible for 
receiving, distributing, and, at times, responding to inquiries on incoming interstate IV-D cases. 

Child Support Financial support required to be paid by a noncustodial parent to help support a child. Child 
support may be ordered in any situation in which the child and both of the child's parents do not reside 
together. The term "child support" is sometimes used interchangeably with the more generic term of 
"support" which includes medical support as well as spousal support when spousal support provisions are 
ordered along with child support. 

Child Support Enforcement Network (CSENet) State-to-state telecommunications network, which 
transfers detailed information between state automated child support enforcement systems. 

Child Support Guidelines A standard method for setting child support obligations based on the income of 
the parent or parents and other factors determined by states. The Family Support Act (FSA) of 1988 
required states to use guidelines to determine the amount of support. It required that there be a rebuttable 
presumption that the amount which would result from the application of the guidelines is the correct amount 
and that the presumption could only be rebutted by a finding on the record that the application of the 
guidelines would be unjust or inappropriate in a particular case as determined under the state's criteria. 
North Dakota's guidelines are found in Administrative Rules and are based on the obliger model which 
means that only the noncustodial parent's income is considered. 

Child Support Pass-Through Provision by which a certain amount of money from a child support payment 
collected on behalf of a public assistance recipient is disbursed directly to the custodial parent. The 
Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) eliminated the $50.00 pass­
through effective October 1, 1996. A few states have elected to retain the pass-through, paying it out of 
state, rather than federal, money. North Dakota did not retain a pass-through. Also sometimes called a 
Child Support "Disregard." 

Child Support Performance and Incentive Act of 1998 (CSPIA} Federal legislation which provided relief 
from penalty for states' failures to meet automated system certification requirements; changed IV-D program 
incentives; and removed impediments to medical support enforcement by, in part, mandating the National 
Medical Support Notice (NMSN). 

Clerk of Court Only Case (See NonlV-D case) 

Complainant Person who seeks to initiate court proceedings against another person. In a civil case the 
complainant is the plaintiff; in a criminal case the complainant is the state. 

Complaint The formal written document filed in a court whereby the complainant sets forth the names of 
the parties, the allegations, and the request for relief sought. Sometimes called the initial pleading or 
petition . 

-7-
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Concurrent Jurisdiction Jurisdiction exercised simultaneously by more than one court or administrative 
agency over the same subject matter and within the same territory, with the litigant having the right to 
choose the court in which to file the action. · 

CONNECT:Direct (C:D) Compu!er network maintained by the Social Security Administration that moves 
large volumes of data from state agencies. the National Directory of New Hires (NDNH), and the Federal 
Case Registry (FCR). Formally called the Network Data Mover (NDM). 

Consumer Credit Agency (CCA) Private agency that assembles and evaluates consumer credit 
information for the purpose of furnishing consumer reports to third parties. A state IV-D program reports 
delinquencies to the agencies and also uses the agencies' informaiion for locate purposes. Also sometimes 
referred to as a credit bureau. · 

Consumer Credit Protection Act (CCPA) Federal law that limits the amount that may be withheld from 
earnings to satisfy child support obligations. States are allowed to set their own limits provided they do not 
exceed the federal limits. Regardless of the number of withholding orders that have been served, the · 
maximum that rnay be withheld for child support is: 

Without arrearage - 50% with a second family 
60% single 

With arrearage - 55% with a second family and 12+ weeks in arrears 
65% single and 12+ weeks in arrears 

In North Dakota, the maximum that may be withheld for child support is 50% of disposable income 
regardless of other factors. 

Gontinuing Exclusive Jurisdiction (CEJ) The doctrine that only one support order should be effective ··•· 
and enforceable between the same parties at any one time and that when a particular court has acquired -
jurisdiction to determine child support and custody, it retains authority to amend and modify its orders.· This 
Court of Continuing Exclusive Jurisdiction (CCEJ) continues to have jurisdiction over a support issue 
u·11til another court takes it away. The provisions of CEJ are set forth in the Uniform Interstate Family 
Support Act (UIFSA). 

C:ontromng Order The ct-ild support order to be enforced prospectively. The Uniform Interstate Family 
Support Act (UIFSA\ provides a priority scheme :o identify the controlling order. 

Cooperation As a condition of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) eligibility, the recipient is 
required to cooperate with the state IV-D program in identifying and locating the alleged father or 
noncustodial parent; establishing paternity; and establishing and enforcing child support. As a condition of 
Medicaid eligibility, with some exceptions, the recipient is required to cooperate with the state IV-D program 
in identifying and locating the alleged father or noncustodial parent; establishing paternity; and establishing 
and enforcing medical support. 

Corporate Trade Exchange (CT)() Standardized format used for electronic funds transfer (EFT) of child 
support withholdings from employees' wages. This method is preferable when processing large volumes of 
transai::tions and PRWORA requires states' automated child support enforcement systems to be capable of 
using this for6;af as well as the CCD·• format. · 

Court Order A legally binding edict issued by a court of law. Issued by a judge (or, in some other states, 
by another decision-maker such as a master or hearing officer). A court order related to child support often 
dictates how much is to be paid, how often it is to be paid, and how long it is to be paid. 

· Custodial Parent (CP) The person, generally a parent, who has primary care, custody, and control of the 
child or, if a court has made a custody determination, the person who has legal custody of the child. (See 
also Obligee) 

Dear Colleague Letter (DCL) Document issued by the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement 
(OCSE) to state IV-D directors as needed, which provides information about practices, changes in 
procedures, or other child support enforcement topics. · 
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Debit Card A card onto which support payments are loaded electronically in the same manner as a direct 
deposit. The card can be used by the custodial parent to withdraw cash at an Automated Teller Machine 
(ATM) or at a point-of-sale (POS) machine for goods, services, or cash . 

Decree The judicial decision of a litigated action, usually in "equitable" cases such as divorce (as opposed 
to cases in law in which judgments are entered). In practice, however, the terms "decree' and "judgment' 
are often used interchangeably. · 

Default The failure of a defendant to file an answer or appear in a civil case within the prescribed time after 
having been properly served with a summons and complaint. 

Defendant The person against whom a civil or criminal proceeding is begun. 

Department of Health and Human Services The federal government's principal agency for protecting the 
health of all Americans and providing essential human services, especially for those who are least able to 
help themselves. There are twelve agencies within the Department including the Administration for Children 
and Families (ACF) that houses the Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE). 

Direct Deposit A process involving the electronic funds transfer of support payments from the State 
Disbursement Unit (SOU) into the custodial parent's bank account. This is done only upon the request of 
the custodial parent. For purposes of the process if\ North Dakota, the term "bank' includes banks, credit 
unions, and savings and loan associations. Support payments may be deposited into either a checking or a 
savings account. 

Direct Deposit Unit (DOU) The unit within the State IV-D office that handles direct deposit requests. 

Direct Income Withholding (DIW) A procedure, whereby an income withholding order can be sent directly 
to the noncustodial parent's employer in another slate, without the need to use the IV-D program or court 
system in the noncustodial parent's state. The provisions of direct income withholding are set forth in the 
Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA). 

Disbursement The paying out of collected child support funds. 

Disposable Income The portion of an employee's earnings that remains after deductions required by law 
(e.g., taxes). Used to determine the amount of an employee's pay subject to a garnishment, an attachment, 
or an income withholding order. 

Disposition The court's decision of what should be done about a dispute that has been brought to its 
attention. For example, the disposition may be that child support is ordered or an obligation is modified. On 
the other hand, the disposition may be that the action is dismissed. 

Distribution The allocation of child support collected to the various types of debt, as specified in federal 
regulations. 

Earnings Systems Keyed Applications for SSN Registration Identification (ESKARI) A process within 
the Federal Case Registry (FCR) which uses certain demographic data (referred to as 'ESKARI data') to 
identify a social security number (SSN). 

Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Proc,ess by which information regarding an Electronic Funds Transfer 
(EFT) transaction is transmitted electronically along with the EFT. 

Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) Process by which money is transmitted electronically from one bank 
account to another. 

Enforcement The application of remedies to secure compliance with a child or medical support obligation 
contained in a child or spousal support order. Examples of remedies include income withholding; Consumer 
Credit Agency reporting; federal tax refund offset; liens on, and executions of, assets; license suspension, 
and passport denial. 
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Establishment The process of adjudicating paternity or obtaining a court order (or in some states, an 
administrative order) for a child support ·obligation._ 

Execution The legal process of enforcing a docketed money judgment by seizing and, if applicable, selling 
the noncustodial parent's real or personal property. In North Dakota, writs of execution for past-due support 
may be issued either judicially or administratively. 

External Locate Request Request sent to the Federal Parent Locator Service (FPLS) by the State Parent 
Locator Service (SPLS) for locate information from sources other than, or external to, the National _Directory 
of New Hires (NDNH) and the Federal Case Registry (FCR). 

External Locate Source Source for locate information from other than, or external to, the National 
Directory of New Hires (NDNH) and the Federal Case Registry (FCR). These sources include the Social 
Security Administration (SSA), Internal Revenue Service (IRS), Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), 
Department of Defense (DOD), and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). 

Family Support Act (FSA) Federal law passed in 1988, with three major mandates: (1) Immediate Wage 
[Income] Withholding, requiring that income withholding must be implemented unless the court finds that 
there is good cause not to require such withholding, or there is a written agreement between both parties 
which provides for an alternative arrangement; (2) Review and Adjustment, requiring the periodic review of 
child support orders; and (3) Guidelines for Child Support Award Amounts, requiring the use of guidelines to 
determine the amount of support for each family, unless the guidelines are rebutted by a written finding that 
applying the guidelines would be inappropriate to the case. · 

Family Violence Indicator (FVI) A designation that resides in the Federal Case Registry (FCR) placed on· 
a participant in a case or order by a state that indicates there is reason to believe that release of informatiofl 
may result in phys.cal or emotional harm to an individual. It is used to prevent disclosure of the location of a 
c\.istodial parent, alleged father, noncustodial parent, or a child believed by the state to be at risk of family 
violence. · 

Federal Case Registry (FCR) A national database of information on individuals in all IV-D cases. and all 
nonlV-D orders est8blished er modified ,Jn or after October 1, 1998. Tt,e FCR receives this case 
information on a clai:y basis from the State Case Registry (SCR) located in every state. The federal Office 
of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) maintains the FCR as part of the expanded Federal Pa;ent Locator 
Service (FPLS). 

Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) Unique nine-digit number assigned to all employers by 
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), whi_ch must be used in numerous transactions, including submitting 
data and responding to requests relevant to child support. 

Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) Code A unique code that identifies the child support 
jurisdiction (i.e., states, counties, and central registries). There are a mandatory five digits to the code which 
identify the state and county; states may use two additional digits for further identrncation of entities. In 
North Dakota,_ seven digits are used. 

· Federal Parent Locator Service (FPLS) A computerized national location network operated by the federal 
Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) which assists state IV-D programs in locating alleged fathers 
and noncustodial parents for the purposes of establishing paternity; establishing a child support obligation; 
and enforcing a child support obligation. 1n certain cases, the purposes may also include establishing and 
enforcing custody and visitation orders; processing adoption or foster care cases; and investigating parental 
kidnapping. The expanded FPLS includes the Federal Case Registry (FCR), the National Directory of New 
Hires (NDNH), and External Locate Sources. 

Federal Tax Intercept (FTI) Program (See Federal Tax Refund Offset Program) 

Federal Tax Refund Offset Program Program that collects arrearages from noncustodial parents through 
the interception of their federal income tax refund or an administrative payment such as federal retirement 
benefits. This program also incorporates the Passport Denial Program·, which denies U.S. passports at the 
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time of application when the applicant's child support debts exceed $5,000. The cooperation of state IV-D 
programs in the submittal of cases for tax interception is mandatory, while submittal of cases for 
administrative interception is optional. North Dakota does not participate in optional administrative 
interception. The Federal Tax Refund Offset Program is operated in cooperation with the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS), the U.S. Department of Treasury's Financial Management Service (FMS), the U.S. 
Department of State (DOS), and state IV-D programs. 

Financial Institution Data Match (FIDM) Process required by the Personal Responsibility and Work 
Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) in which a state IV-D program must enter into agreements with 
financial institutions doing business in their state for the purpose of securing information leading to the 
enforcement of child support orders. The state IV-D program must develop and operate, in coordination 
with financial institutions doing business in the state, a data match system in which financial institution 
account records are matched with noncustodial parents in IV-D cases. Financial institutions are required to 
encumber or surrender the assets of the delinquent noncustodial parent held by the institution in response 
to a notice of lien or levy. 

For Your Information (FYI) Document issued by economic assistance programs in the Department of 
Human Services to County Social Services, generally used to communicate information (e.g., training dates, 
brochures, surveys, etc.) rather than to address policy. 

Foster Care A program which provides financial support to a person, family, or institution that is raising a 
child or children who are not their own. Funding for placements may vary. For example, some placements 
are funded through the federal-state Foster Care program (IV-E) and others are funded through the state­
only program. 

Full Faith and Credit Doctrine under which a state must honor an order or judgment entered in another 
state. 

Full Faith and Credit for Child Support Orders Act (FFCCSOA) Federal law effective October 20, 1994, 
which requires states to enforce child support orders made by other states if: the issuing state's tribunal had 
subject matter jurisdiction to hear and resolve the matter and enter an order; the issuing state's tribunal had 
personal jurisdiction over the parties; and reasonable notice and the opportunity to be heard was given to 
the parties. FFCCSOA also limits a state's ability to modify another state's child support order in instances 
when: the state tribunal seeking to modify the order has jurisdiction to do so; and the tribunal that originally 
issued the order no longer has continuing exclusive jurisdiction (CEJ) over the order either because the 
child and the parties to the case are no longer residents of the issuing state, or the parties to the case have 
filed written consent to transfer CEJ to the tribunal seeking to make the modification. Unlike the Personal 
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA), FFCCSOA does not amend Title IV-D 
of the Social Security Act and thus does not directly change IV-D program requirements, but affects 
interstate case processing. 

Garnishment A legal proceeding under which part of a person's wages or assets are withheld for payment 
of a debt. Garnishment is a different remedy than income withholding. 

Genetic Testing Analysis of inherited factors to determine biological fatherhood. Testing usually consists 
of analyzing genetic material from mother, child, and alleged father. The results are often used in 
contested cases to determine paternity or nonpaternity. 

Good Cause A reason for which a Temp,orary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) or Medicaid recipient 
is excused from cooperating with the services of the state IV-D program, such as past physical harm caused 
by the child's other parent. It also includes situations where rape or incest resulted in the conception of the 
child and situations where the recipient is considering placing the child for adoption. In North Dakota, good 
cause is determined by referring agencies. Good cause may also be applied in foster care situations. 

Guidelines (See Child Support Guidelines) 

Home State For purposes of making a controlling order determination under the Uniform Interstate Family 
Support Act (UIFSA), the state in which a child lived with a parent, or a person acting as parent, for at least 
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six consecutive months immediately preceding the time of filing of a petition for support. However, if a child 
is !ess than six months old, the state in which the child lived from birth with a parent, or a person acting as a 
parent, is the home state. A period of temporary absence of any of them is counted as part of the six-month 
period. 

Immediate Income Withholding Requires that a noncustodial parent's income is subject to income 
withholding regardless of whether the noncustodial parent's payments are delinquent, unless statutory 
exceptions are met. In North Dakota, immediate income withholding applies io each judgment or order 
issued or modified on or after January 1, 1990. 

Income As defined in North Dakota state law, income is any form of payment, regardless of source, owed 
to a noncustodial parent, including any earned, unearned, taxable or nontaxable income; workforce safety 

· and insurance benefits; disability benefits; unemployment compensation benefits; and annuity and 
retirement benefits. Excluded for purposes of this definition are public assistance benefits administered 
under state law. All income is subject to income withholding for child support, pursuant to a child support 
order, but is protected by Consumer Credit Protection Act (CCPA) limits. 

Income Payer As defined in North Dakota state law, an income payer means any person, partnership, firm, 
corporation, limited liability company, association, political subdivision, or department or agency of the state 
or federal government owing income to a noncustodial parent and includes a noncustodial parent if the 
noncustodial parent is self-employed. 

Income Withholding (IW) Procedure by which deductions are made from income to pay a debt such as 
child support, spousal support, and dollar-specific medical support. An order for income withholding is 
aqministratively issued to an employer (in North Dakota, the term "inccme payer" is used) by the state IV-D­
P!'Ogram using a federally mandated form. Income withholding is a different remedy than garnishment. 

·, 
Incoming Interstate Case A IV-D case established by a Responding State at the request of an Initiating._ 
State. Such requests are sent to the Responding State's Central Registry using federally mandated 
interstate forms. 

Information Memo (IM) Document issued by economic assistance programs in the Department of Human 
Services to County Social Service Boards, generally used to address policy issues. 

Information Memorandum (IM) Document issued by the fed0ral Office of Child Support Enforcement 
(OCSE) which provides state IV-D programs with information on program practices that can be useful to 
program improvement. 

Informational Communication (IC) Document issued by the State IV-D office as needed. The primary 
"recipients of ICs are, with very few exceptions, the Regional IV-D offices. !Cs generally serve the following 
purposes: to issue policy clarifications and interpretations; to notify and inform the Regional IV-D offices of 
an internal State IV-D office policy that may be of interest to the Regional IV-D offices, but does not directly 
affect their work; to disseminate select revised chapters of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
(TANF), Medicaid, and Foster Care program manuals; and to issue interpretations of the Child Support 
Guidelines administrative rules. 

Initiating State The state, usually a state IV-D program, that sends a request to another state (i.e., the 
Responding State), usually a state IV-D program, in interstate child support cases. The request, which must 
be sent to the Central Registry in the Responding State, may be for a specific action or for multiple actions 
including establishment of paternity, establishment of an order, enforcement of an order, review and 
adjustment of an order, change of payee or redirection of payment, and an administrative review of an 
income tax refund offset challenge. In cases in which a state IV-D program is attempting to establish 
paternity and an initial child support order on behalf of a custodial parent, and does not have long arm 
jurisdiction, the state must file a two-state action under the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA) 
guidelines, using federally mandated interstate forms. Generally, the Initiating State is the resident state of 
the custodial parent and child. · 

Interactive Voice Response System (IVR) (See Automated Voice Response System) 
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Interstate Cases Cases in which two or more states are involved in providing some level of service on a 
case. Generally, these are cases in which the dependent child and noncustodial parent live in different 
states. 

Issuing State The state that issued the child support order. 

IV-A ("Four-A") Reference to Title IV-A of the Social Security Act covering the Temporary Assistance for 
Needy Families (TANF) program. 

IV-A Case A IV-O case in which a parent (or caretaker relative) and child are receiving public assistance 
benefits under the state's IV-A program, which is funded under Title IV-A of the Social Security Act. 
Applicants for assistance from IV-A programs are automatically referred to their state IV-D program in order 
to identify and locate the noncustodial parent; establish paternity; and establish and enforce a child support 
and medical support order. This allows states (and the federal government) to recoup or defray some of its 
public assistance expenditures with funds from the noncustodial parent. 

IV-D ("Four-D") Reference to Title IV-D of the Social Security Act, which required that each state create a 
program to locate noncustodial parents; establish paternity; establish and enforce child support obligations; 
and collect and distribute support payments. Title IV-O also established the federal Office of Child Support 
Enforcement (OCSE). 

IV-D Case A child support case where there has been a referral from Temporary Assistance for Needy 
Families (TANF), Medicaid, or Foster Care; an application from the custodial parent or noncustodial parent; 
or an interstate request from another state IV-O program. Generally; a IV-D case is composed of a 
custodial parent; a noncustodial parent or alleged father; and a child or children. 

IV-E ("Four-E") Reference to Title IV-E of the Social Security Act, which established a federal-state 
program known as Foster Care that provides financial support to a person, family, or institution that is 
raising a child or children who are not their own . 

IV-E Case A IV-O case in which the·state is. providing foster care·benefits or services unde~ Title. lV-E of the 
Social Security Act to a person, family, or institution that is raising a child or children who are not their own. 
As with other public assistance cases, recipients are referred to their state IV-O program in order to identify 
and locate the noncustodial parent; establish paternity; and establish and enforce a child support and 
medical support order. This allows the state (and the federal government) to recoup or defray some of its 
public assistance expenditures with funds from the noncustodial parent. 

Judgment The official decision or finding by a court based on the evidence submitted by the parties. 

Judicial Remedies A general designation for a court's enforcement of child support obligations. 

Jurisdiction The legal authority which a court or administrative agency has over. particular persons and 
over certain types of cases, usually in a defined geographical area. (See also Concurrent Jurisdiction, 
Personal Jurisdiction, Subject-Matter Jurisdiction) 

Legal Father A man who is recognized by law as the male parent of a child. 

Lien A claim upon a noncustodial parent's real or personal property to prevent the sale or transfer of that 
property until a debt is satisfied. 

Litigation A civil action in which a controversy is brought before the court. 

Locate Process by which information on an individual is found for the purpose of establishing paternity; 
establishing a support obligation; enforcing a support obligation; establishing or enforcing custody and 
visitation determinations; processing adoption or foster care cases; and investigating parental kidnapping. 

Locate lnfonmation Data (including social security number (SSN), date of birth (DOB), residential address, 
and employer) used for locate purposes .. · 
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Long Arm Jurisdiction Legal provision that permits one state to claim personal jurisdiction over someone 
who lives in another state." There must be some meaningful connection between the person and the state or 
district that is asserting jurisdiction in order for a court or agency to reach beyond its normal jurisdictional 
border. If not permitted, then the state must undertake a two-state action under the Uniform Interstate 
Family Support Act (UIFSA) guidelines for certain actions, such as establishing a support order. Other 
actions, such as direct income withholding, are allowed by UIFSA in such a way that neither a two-state 
action nor long arm jurisdiction is required. 

Medical Assistance Only (MAO) Form of public assistance administered by states which provides benefits 
to recipients only in the form of medical, rather than financial, assistance. For example, Medical Assistance 
Only recipients are not receiving Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF). 

Medical Support Form of support which is related to medical purposes. Medical support must be enforced 
by the IV-0 program if there is an order requiring the noncustodial parent to pay a dollar-specific amount for 
medical purposes for the child, or there is an order requiring the noncustodial" parent to provide health 
insurance coverage for the child. 

Monthly Support Obligation The amount of money a noncustodial parent is required to pay per month. 

Motion An application to the court requesting an order or rule in favor of the party that is filing the motion. 
Motions are generally made in reference to a pending action and may address a matter in the court's 
discretion or concern a point of law. · 

Multistate Employer An organization that hires and employs people in two or more states. The multistate 
employer conducts business within each state and the employees are required to pay taxes in the state · 
where they worK. As with single-state employers. multistate employers are required by law to report all riew 
hires to the State Directory of New Hires (SDNH) operated by their state government. However, unlike 
single-state employers, they have the option to report all of their new hires to the SDNH of only one stare in 
which they do business rather than to all of them, if such reports are filed electronically or magnetically . 

Multistate Financial Institution Data Match (MSFIDM) Process created by the Persona! Responsibility 
and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) by which delinquent child support noncustodial 
parents are rnatch•c!d with accounts held in Financial Institutions (Fis) that are doing business in more than 
one state and that have elected to conduct the match with the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement 
(OCSE). States submit data to OCSE on noncustodial parents and their arrearages, and indicate whether 
the data should be submitted for MSFIDM. OCSE ensures the accuracy of the data and transmits the file to 
participating multistate financial institutions. The multistate financial institutions then match the information 
against their accounts and OCSE returns matches to the appropriate states. The states may then 
undertake action to place a lien on or seize all or part of the account. 

National Automated Clearing House Associ;ition (NACHA) The association that establishes the 
standards, rules, and procedures that enable financial institutions to exchange electronic payments on a 
national basis. 

National Directory of New Hires (NDNH) A national database containing new hire (NH) data from every 
state's State Directory of New Hires (SON Hi and federal agencies; unemployment insurance (UI) data from 
State Employment Security Agencies (SESAs); and quarterly wage (QW) data from SESAs and federal 
agencies. The federal Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) maintains the NDNH as part of the 
expanded Federal Parent Locator Service (FPLS). 

National Law Enforcement Telecommunications System (NLETS) A source of information to the State 
Parent Locator Service (SPLS) that provides driver's license information for an individual anywhere in the 
country. Vehicle information is also provided. 

National Medical Support Notice (NMSN) A federally mandated form which is administratively issued by 
state IV-0 programs to employers to enforce an order requiring the noncustodial parent to provide health 
insurance coverage for the child . 
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National Personnel Records Center (NPRC) Part of the National Archives and Records Administration's 
system of record storage facilities. The NPRC receives and stores both federal military and civilian 
personnel records . 

Network Data Mover (NDM) (See CONNECT:Direct) 

New Hire (NH) Data Data on a new employee that employers must submit within 20 days of hire to the 
State Directory of New Hires (SDNH). Minimum information must include the employee's name, address, 
and social security number (SSN), as well as the employer's name, address, and Federal Employer 
Identification Number (FEIN). Some states may require or request additional data, or may have shorter 
reporting timeframe requirements. Multistate employers have the option of reporting all of their newly hired 
employees to only one state in which they do business. This data is then submitted to the National 
Directory of New Hires (NDNH), where it is compared against child support order information contained in 
the Federal Case Registry (FCR). Federal agencies report this data directly to the NDNH. Also sometimes 
known as "W4 data," after the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) form which contains the mandatory data 
elements and which is often used by employers to report new hires. 

New Hire Reporting Program Program mandated by the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) that requires that all employers report newly hired employees to the State 
Directory of New Hires (SDNH) in their state. Multistate employers have the option of reporting all of their 
newly hired employees to only one state in which they do business. This data is then submitted to the 
National Directory of New Hires (NDNH), where it is compared against child support order information 
contained in the Federal Case Registry (FCR). Some data is also made available to states to find new hires 
that have been receiving unemployment insurance or other public benefits for which they may no longer be 
eligible, helping states to reduce waste and fraud, and to increase collections on defaulted student loans 
and Department of Education grant overpayments. 

NonAFDC Case (See NonTANF Case) 

Noncustodial Parent (NCP) The parent who does not have primary care, custody, and control of the child 
or, if a court has made a custody determination,_ the parent who does not have legal custody of the child. 

NonlV-A Case (See NonTANF Case) 

NonlV-D Case A case with a child support order that is not receiving IV-O services; that is, there is no open 
IV-O case. 

NonlV-D Order An order in a nonlV-O case. NonlV-O orders which were established or modified in the 
state on or after October 1, 1998, must be included in the State Case Registry (SCR) for transmission to the 
Federal Case Registry (FCR). In North Dakota, payments on nonlV-O orders must be made to the State 
Disbursement Unit (SOU). 

NonTANF Case A IV-O case in which the parent (or caretaker relative) and child are not receiving 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF). Also known as a nonlV-A case. 

Obligated A term meaning that a noncustodial parent is required to meet the terms of a court or 
administrative order. 

Obligation Refers to what the noncustod_ial parent is required to do to meet the terms of a court or 
administrative order. Can take the form of child support, medical support, or spousal support. An obligation 
usually refers to a recurring, ongoing term, not a onetime debt. 

Obligee The person to whom a child support obligation is owed, generally the custodial parent. May also 
be an entity to which a child support obligation is owed. 

Obligor The person who is obliged to pay child support, generally the noncustodial parent. 
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Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) The federal agency responsible for the administration of 
the child support program. Created by Title IV-D of the Social Security Act in 1975, OCSE is responsiole for 
the development of child support policy; oversight, evaluation, and audits of state IV-D programs; ancf" 
providing technical assistance and training to the state IV-D programs. OCSE operates the Federal Parent 
Locator Service (FPLS), which includes the National Directory of New Hires (NDNH) and the Federal Case 
Registry (FCR). OCSE is part of the Administration for Children and Families (ACF), which is within the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). 

Office of Personnel Management (OPM) The Federal Government's human resources agency. 

Offset Amount of money intercepted from a noncustodial parent's state or federal income tax refund, or 
from an administrative payment such as federal retirement benefits, in order to satisfy a child support debt. 
In North Dakota, it may also refer to the amount of money intercepted from a noncustodial parent's lottery. 
winnings. 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (OBRA '93) · Federal legislation that contained provisions 
intended to remove some of the impediments to the ability of state IV-D programs to secure and enforce 
health insurance coverage for children. These provisions included prohibiting discriminatory health 
insurance coverage practices (e.g., mandating that insurance providers and employers offer dependent 
health coverage to children even if the child is not in the custody of the employee), creating Qualified 
Medical Child Support Orders (QMCSOs), and allowing employers to deduct the cost of health insurance 
premiums irom the noncustodial parent's income. 

Order Direction of a magistrate, judge, or properly empowered staff of an administrative agency: 

Order/Notice to Withhold Child Support The federally mandated form which is administratively issued by 
state IV-D programs to employers for income withholding. · 

Order to Show Cause (OSC or OTSC) A court order d:recting a person to appear and bring forth any 
evidence as to why there should not be a finding of contempt of court and why remedies stated in the order 
should not be confirmed or execLlted. 

Order to Show Cause (OSC or OTSC) Hearing A court hearing in which the judge or referee receives any 
evidence as to why the person served with the Order to Show Cause should not be fourid in contempt of 
court and why remedies stated in the order should not be confirmed or executed. 

Outgoing Interstate Case An Initiating State's IV-D case in which a Responding State has established a 
IV-D case at the Initiating State's request by sending the request to the Responding State's Central Registry 
using federally mandated interstate forms. · 

Passport Denial Program Program created by the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) that is operated under the auspices of the Federal Tax Refund Offset 
Program. Under the program, noncustodial parents with child support arrearages that exceed $5,000 who 
have been submitted to the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) for federal tax refund offset 
are forwarded to the federal Department of State (DOS), which "flags" the noncustodial parent's name and 
refuses to issue a passport in the event a passport application is received. After the noncustodial parent 
makes satisfactory arrangements to pay the arrears, the state IV-D program can decertify the noncustodial 
parent with OCSE, which then requests t~at the DOS remove the noncustodial parent irom the program. 

Pass-Through (See Child Support Pass-Through) 

Paternity Legal determination of fatherhood. If a child has been born out of wedlock, paternity must be 
established before child support or medical support can be ordered. 

Payee Person or organization in whose name child support money is paid . 

Payer or Payor Person who makes a payment, usually a noncustodial parent or someone acting on his or 
her behalf (e.g., an employer), or a custodial parent who is repaying a receivable. 
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Personal Jurisdiction The legal authority which a court or administrative agency has to bring a person into 
its legal process; jurisdiction over a defendant's personal rights, rather than merely over property interests. 

Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 (PRWORA) Federal 
legislation that provides a number of requirements for employers, public licensing agencies, and financial 
institutions, as well as state and federal child support agencies, to assist in the location of noncustodial 
parents and the establishment, enforcement, and collection of child support. This legislation created the 
New Hire Reporting program and the State and Federal Case Registries. Otherwise known as Welfare 
Reform. 

Petitioner The party seeking relief by a petition. 

Plaintiff A person who brings an action; the party who complains or sues in a civil case. 

Pleadings Statements or allegations, presented in logical and legal form, which constitute a plaintiff's 
cause of action or a defendant's grounds of defense. 

Policy Interpretation Question (PIQ) An official reply by the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement 
(OCSE) to an inquiry submitted by a state IV-D program concerning application of policy. Although 
questions often arise from a specific practice or situation, the responses are official statements of OCSE 
policy on the issue. 

Prearranged Payment or Deposit (PPD) The format used for transmitting payments electronically to the 
custodial parent's bank account. 

Private Case (See NonlV-D case) 

Proactive Matching Process in which child support case data newly submitted to the Federal Case ... 
Registry (FCR) is automatically compared with previous submissions, as well as with the employment data­
in the National Directory of New Hires (NDNH). The resulting information is then returned to the appropriate 
state(s) for processing. 

Proceeding The conduct of business before a judge, (or, in some other states, by another decision-maker 
such as a master or hearing officer) based on the evidence submitted by the parties. 

Pro Se Appearing for one's self in a legal action. 

Public Assistance Benefits granted from state or federal programs to aid eligible recipients ( eligibility 
requirements vary among particular programs). Applicants for certain types of public assistance are 
automatically referred to their state IV-D program and may be required to cooperate with all or some 
services. This allows the state to recoup or defray some of its public assistance expenditures with funds 
from the noncustodial parent. 

Putative Father (PF) (See Alleged Father) 

Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) An order, decree, or judgment, including approval of a 
settlement agreement, issued by a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction that provides for 
medical support for a child of a participan\ under a group health plan or provides for health benefit coverage 
to such child. 

Quarterly Wage (QW) Data Data on all employees that must be submitted by employers on a quarterly 
basis to the State Employment Security Agency (SESA) in the state in which they operate. This data is then 
submitted to the National Directory of New Hires (NDNH). The data is then compared against child support 
order information contained in the Federal Case Registry (FCR). Federal agencies report this data directly 
to the NDNH. In North Dakota, the SESA also reports this data to the state IV-D program . 
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Quasi-Judicial A framework or procedure under the auspices of a state's judicial branch in which court 
officers other than judges process, establish, enforce and modify support orders, usually subject to judicial 
review. A court officer may be a magistrate, clerk, master, court examiner, or referee. He or she may" or 
may not have to be an attorney, depending on the state's law. 

Recipient A person or organization that receives support payments, Temporary Assistance for Needy_ 
Families (TANF) payments, or Medicaid benefits, 

Reciprocity A relationship in which one state grants certain privileges to other states on the condition that 
they receive the same privileges. 

Referral Request sent to a state IV-D program from another state program requesting that a IV-D case be 
established. In North Dakota, referrals are received on behalf of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
(TANF) recipients, Medicaid recipients, and Foster Care children. 

Regional Child Support Enforcement Unit "(RCSEU) North Dakota county-administered offices which 
provide' IV-D services. Each RCSEU serves multiple counties. Also referred to as a Regional IV-D office. 

Regional IV-0 Office (See Regional Child Support Enforcement Unit (RCSEU)) 

Respondent The party answering a petition or motion. 

Responding State The state, usually a state IV-D program, that receives a request from another state (i.e., 
the Initiating State), usually a state IV-D program, in interstate child support case&. The request, which must 
be sent to the Responding State's Central Registry, may be for a specific action or for multiple actions 
including establishment of paternity, establishment of an order, enforcement of an order, review and 
adjustment of an order, change of payee or redirection of payment, and an administrative review of an 
income tax refund offset challenge. Two-state actions must be filed under the Uniform Interstate Family 
Support Act (UIFSA) guidelines, using federally mandated interstate forms. Generally, the Responding 
State is the resident-state of the noncustodial parent. 

Review and Adjustment Process in which current financial information is obtained from the noncustodial 
parent and applied to the Child Support Guidelines to determine whether an adjustment of the child support 
amount should be pursued. 

Revised Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (RURESA) Significantly revised, in 1968, the 
Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (URESA), which set forth reciprocal laws concerning 
establishing, enforcing, and modifying support obligations in interstate cases. Has now been superseded by 
the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA). 

Service by Publication Service of process accomplished by publishing a notice in a newspaper or by 
posting on a bulletin board of a courthouse or other public facility, after a court determines that other means 
of service are impractical or have been unsuccessful. This procedure is not legal in every state. In North 
Dakota, service by publication is permitted in certain situations; state-specific requirements are found in 
Court Rules - Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Service of Process The delivery of a writ or summons, in a manner provided by state-specific 
requirements, to a party for the purpose of obtaining jurisdiction over that party. In North Dakota, state­
specific requirements are found in Court Rules - Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Spousal Support Court ordered support of a spouse or ex-spouse. Is also sometimes referred to as 
alimony, although that is not the preferred term. 

Standardized Data Elements Data elements that must be included in each child support case record that 
is transmitted to the Federal Case Registry (FCR). 

State Case Registry (SCR) A database maintained by each state that contains information on individuals 
in all IV-D cases, and all nonlV-D orders established or modified after October 1, 1998. Information 
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submitted to the SCR is transmitted to the Federal Case Registry (FCR), where it is compared to cases 
submitted to the FCR by other states, as well as the employment data in the National Directory of New Hires 
(NDNH). Any matches found are returned to the appropriate state(s) for processing . 

State Directory of New Hires (SDNH) A database maintained by each state that contains information 
regarding newly hired employees for the respective state. The data is then transmitted to the National 
Directory of New Hires (NDNH), where it is compared to the employment data from other states as well as 
child support data in the Federal Case Registry (FCR). Any matches found are returned to the appropriate 
state(s) for processing. In most states, the SDNH is contained in the State Parent Locator Service (SPLS) 
that is part of each state IV-D program; in others, it is operated by the State Employment Security Agency 
(SESA). In North Dakota, the SDNH is part of the state IV-D program. 

State Disbursement Unit (SOU) The single site in each state where child support payments are 
processed. Pursuant to the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA), 
each state must have an SDU to process all payments made on a IV-D case and all payments made on a 
nonlV-D case that come through income withholding. In North Dakota, state law requires that all child 
support payments, including nonlV-D payments not made through income withholding, be made to the SOU. 

State Employment Security Agency (SESA) Agencies in each state that process unemployment 
insurance claims. These agencies are also repositories of quarterly wage data (information on all 
employees submitted by employers) which they submit to the National Directory of New Hires (NDNH) along 
with the unemployment insurance claim data. In North Dakota, this wage and unemployment data is also 
reported to the state IV-D program. In some states, the SESA also operates the State Directory of New 
Hires (SDNH), which contains data submitted by employers on newly hired employees. Data submitted to 
the NDNH is then compared against child support order information contained in the Federal Case Registry 
(FCR). North Dakota's SESA is Job Service North Dakota. The state IV-D program, and not Job Service 
North Dakota, operates the SDNH. · 

State IV-0 Agency The agency established and designated to be the single and separate organizational 
unit to administer the IV-D program in each state. In North Dakota, this agency is the Child Support 
Enforcement Division within the Department of Human Services. (See also State IV-D office) 

State IV-D Office The Child Support Enforcement Division within the Department of Human Services. This 
office is the agency established and designated to be the single and separate organizational unit to 
administer the IV-D program in North Dakota. (See also State IV-D Agency) 

State IV-D Program A state's Child Support Enforcement program. 

State Parent Locator Service (SPLS) A unit within the state IV-D program, the purpose of which is to 
locate information on individuals in order to establish paternity, establish a support obligation, and enforce a 
support obligation. In addition, it acts as the conduit to request and receive information from the Federal 
Parent Locator Service (FPLS) for those purposes as well as, in certain cases, others including establishing 
and enforcing custody and visitation orders: investigating parental kidnapping; and processing adoption or 
foster care cases. 

State Tax Intercept (STI) Program (See State Tax Offset Program) 

State Tax Offset Program Program that collects arrearages from noncustodial parents through the 
interception of their state income tax refund. In North Dakota, the State Tax Offset Program is operated in 
cooperation with the Office of State Tax Commissioner. 

Stipulation (Stip) An agreement by the parties made in a judicial or administrative proceeding. 

Subject-Matter Jurisdiction Jurisdiction over the nature of the case and the type of relief sought; the 
extent to which a court or administrative agency" can rule on the conduct of persons or the status of things. 

Subpoena A process issued by a court compelling a witness to appear at a judicial proceeding. 
Sometimes the process will also direct the witness to bring documentary evidence to the court (also known 
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as a subpoena duces tecum). The state IV-D program may also issue ·administrative subpoenas for the 
production of books, records, or papers when providing services on a IV-D case. .. 

Summons A notice to a defendant that an action against him or her has been commenced in the court 
issuing the summons and that a judgment will be taken against him or her if the complaint is not answered 
within a certain time. 

Support Order A judgment, decree, or order, whether temporary, final, or subject to modification, issued by 
a court (or in some other states, by an administrative agency of competent jurisdiction) for the support and 
maintenance of a child. This includes a child who has attained the age of majority under the law of the 
issuing state, or the parent with whom the child is living. Supper! orders can incorporate the provision of 
monetary child support, medical support, and spousal support; health insurance coverage; payment of 
arrearages; reimbursement of costs and fees, interest and penalties; and other forms of relief. 

SWAP Funding method, effective January 1, 1998, which fundamental!;• changed the manner in which 
economic assistance programs were funded in North Dakota. Under SWAP, counties are not responsible to 
pay any share of the grant costs associated with economic assistance programs. The nonfederal share of 
those grant costs are paid entirely by the state. In exchange for eliminating the counties' obligation to 
provide funding for the grant costs, the counties are responsible for the local administrative costs of the 
economic assistance programs (including costs for the state IV-D program). (SWAP is not an acronym.) 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Time-limited public assistance payments made to 
eligible families, based on Title IV-A of the Social Security Act. TANF replaced Aid to Families with 
Dependent Children (AFDC, otherwise known as welfare) when the Personal Responsibility and Work 
Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) was signed into law in 1996. The program provides parents with 
job preparation, work, and support services to help them become self-sufficient. Applicants for TANF 
benefits are automatically referred to their state IV-D program in order to establish paternity and establish 
and enforce child support for their children from .the noncustodial parent. This allows the state to recoup or 
defray some of its public assistance expenditures with funds from the noncustodial parent. 

Third Party Liability (TPL) Third Party Liability (TPL) The legal obligation of third parties. i.e., certain 
individuals, entities, or programs, to pay all or part of the expenditures for medical assistance. The Medicaid 
program by !aw is intended to be the payer of last resort; that is, all other available third party resources 
must meet their legal obligation to pay claims before the Medicaid program pays for the care of an individual 
eligible for Medicaid. 

Tribunal The court, administrative agency, or quasi-judicial agency authorized to establish or modify 
support orders or to determine parentage. In North Dakota, only courts are authorized to do so. 

Two-State Action Action a state must file under the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA) 
guidelines when it does not have long arm jurisdiction (i.e., cannot legally claim personal jurisdiction over a 
noncustodial parent who lives in another state). This is usually in cases where a state is trying to establish 
an initial child support order on behalf of a resident custodial parent. Some actions, such as direct income 
withholding, do not require a two-state action even if the initiating state does not have long arm jurisdiction; 
direct income withholding is permitted under UIFSA. 

Unclaimed Funds Support payment that cannot be disbursed because the identity of the payer is 
unknown, or the address of the payee is ~nknown. 

Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claim Data Data on unemployment insurance applicants and claimants 
submitted by State Employment Security Agencies (SESAs) on a quarterly basis to the National Directory of 
New Hires (NDNH). This data is then compared against child support order information contained in the 
Federal Case Registry (FCR). In North Dakota, the SESA also reports this data to the siate IV-D program. 

Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA) Laws enacted at the state level to provide mechanisms 
for establishing and enforcing child support obligations in interstate cases. Based on model legislation that 
was drafted by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws (NCCUSL) to revise and 
replace the Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (URE SA). The provisions of UIFSA supersede 
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those of URESA, although some URESA provisions may remain in effect (some states have rescinded all of 
URESA, while others have left in place those provisions not specifically superseded by UIFSA). In North 
Dakota, URESA was repealed in whole. The Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation 
Act (PRWORA) mandated that all states adopt UIFSA without modification by the state. In North Dakota, 
UIFSA became effective August 1, 1995. 

Uniform Parentage Act (UPA) Laws enacted at the state level to provide mechanisms for establishing 
paternity. Based on model legislation that was drafted by the National Conference of Commissioners on 
Uniform State Laws (NCCUSL). States may adopt all or portions of the UPA, but are not required to do 
either. In North Dakota, the UPA was adopted in 1975 and it has been revised since that time. 

Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (URESA) Law first promulgated in 1950 which 
provided a mechanism for establishing, enforcing, and modifying support obligations in interstate cases. 
Was revised by the Revised Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (RURESA). Has now been 
superseded by the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA). 

Unreimbursed Public Assistance (UPA) Money paid in the form of public assistance (for example, 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) or older Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) 
expenditures) which has not yet been recovered by retaining assigned child support. 

Wage Withholding (See Income Withholding - the preferred term) 
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15-39.1-30. Confidentiality of records. 

All records relating to the retirement benefits of a member or a beneficiary under this chapter 
are confidential and are not public records. The information and records may be disclosed, under 
rules adopted by the board, only to: 

1. A person to whom the teacher has given written consent to have the information disclosed. 

2. A person legally representing the teacher, upon proper proof of representation, and unless 
the teacher specifically withholds consent. 

3. A person authorized by a court order. 

4. A member's participating employer, limited to information concerning the member's years 
of service credit, years of age, employer and employee contribution amounts, and salary. The 
board may share other types of information as needed by the employer to validate the employer's 
compliance with existing state or federal law. Any information provided to the member's 
participating employer under this subsection must remain confidential except as provided in 
subsection 6. 

5. The administrative staff of the public employees retirement system for purposes relating to 
membership and benefits determination. 

6. State or federal agencies for the purpose of validating member eligibility or employer 
compliance with existing state or federal law. 

7. Member interest groups approved by the board, limited to information concerning the 
member's death. 

Source: S.L. 1987, ch. 224, § 1; 2001, ch. 169, § 5. 
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Thank you again for allowing Supportkids Inc. the opportunity to testify on this important 
bill. Eric Rosenkoetter, General Counsel for Governmental Affairs with Supportkids, will 
be in Bismarck next Wednesday, March 9, 2005. Please schedule the continued 
hearing on HB 1172 at any time on Wednesday, March 9th

. 

Again, thank you for your cooperation with this matter. Supportkids greatly appreciates 
the courtesy you have extended and looks forward to testifying before your Committee. 

Sincerely, 

Paul Sanderson 
Lobbyist for Supportkids, Inc. 

Cc: Eric Rosenkoetter 
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SUMMARY OF SUPPORTKIDS' TESTIMONY 
IN OPPOSITION TO HOUSE BILL 1172 

SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
SENATOR JUDY LEE, CHAIR 

MARCH 9, 2005 

• PRIVATE CHILD SUPPORT COLLECTION AGENCIES HAVE 
NO OBJECTION TO BEING LICENSED IF EITHER THE 
CUSTODIAL PARENT OR NON-CUSTODIAL PARENT 
RESIDE IN NORTH DAKOTA. 

• CLIENTS SHOULD NOT BE ABLE TO TERMINATE THEIR 
CONTRACT AT WILL- THEY SHOULD BE ABLE TO 
TERMINATE: 

o WITHIN 15 DAYS OF SIGNING THE CONTRACT; 
o AFTER 12 CONSECUTIVE MONTHS WITHOUT 

PAYMENT; 
o IF THE STATE CHILD SUPPORT AGENCY BEGINS 

COLLECTING FOR THEM. 

• PRIVATE AGENCIES SHOULD HAVE ALL COLLECTIONS 
SENT TO THE STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT, AND THE 
STATE CHILD SUPPORT AGENCY SHOULD SEND 
PAYEMENTS TO WHATEVER ADDRESS SPECIFIED BY 
THE CUSTODIAL PARENT. 

• IF THE STATE CAN'T COLLECT CURRENT SUPPORT FOR 
PARENTS, THE PARENTS SHOULD HAVE THE RIGHT TO 
HIRE A PRIVATE AGENCY TO COLLECT THEIR CURRENT 
SUPPORT. THERE IS NO LAW THAT PREVENTS A 
CUSTODIAL PARENT FROM SPENDING CHILD SUPPORT 
AS THEY SEE FIT IF THEY BELIEVE THAT IT IS IN THEIR 
CHILD'S BEST INTEREST . 



• 

I-

HOUSE BILL 1172 
TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF SUPPORTKIDS, INC. 

SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
SENATOR JUDY LEE, CHAIR 

MARCH 9, 2005 

Madam Chair, honorable members of the Human Services committee, I am Eric 
Rosenkoetter, and I am here to speak on behalf of Supportkids, Inc., in 
opposition to Section 1 of House Bill 1172. 

INTRODUCTION 

As a brief introduction, I am Executive Counsel for Supportkids and have spent 
the past ten years, or about half of my legal career, practicing in the area of child 
support. Before joining Supportkids several years ago, I worked for the state of 
Missouri in various capacities, including serving as Managing Litigation Attorney 
for the state's Division of Child Support Enforcement. I also had the privilege of 
presiding over many thousands of administrative child support hearings. 

Supportkids, Inc., is a private child support enforcement agency that collects 
child support in each of the fifty states. The fundamental reason our company 
was founded in 1991 is that we recognized the unfortunate fact that government 
child support programs will never have the funding necessary to collect all_ of the 
child support that is due to parents. Nationally, unpaid child support totals 
over $95,000,000,000 (ninety-five billion dollars). Unpaid child support in 
North Dakota alone totals over $152,000,000 (one hundred and fifty-two 
million dollars). We believe that custodial parents deserve to have other 
options, beyond just the government, when seeking assistance in collecting child 
support. Virtually all of our clients tried collecting through government child 
support agencies before turning to us. 

BACKGROUND 

Supportkids has an extremely collaborative and cooperative relationship with the 
Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement as well as the majority of state child 
support agencies. Our procedures in those cooperative states are fairly 
straightforward. 

Typically, a custodial parent will come to us after not having any success for a 
number of years trying to collect through his or her state agency. In over 90% of 
our cases, the whereabouts of the non-custodial parent are unknown, 
which is why the state was unable to collect. We put considerable resources 
into locating the missing parent, and if we are successful, we instruct the obliger, 
or his employer to send payments to the state disbursement unit for proper 
accounting and disbursement. The disbursement unit follows the distribution 
rules and applies the amounts Supportkids has collected first to current support, 
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then to arrears, and keeps any portion that is assigned to the state. Portions not 
assigned to the state are then sent to Supportkids, at our clients' requests, where 
we deduct our fee and forward the rest to our client. The fee which is retained by 
Supportkids is applied against a contract balance which our client requested we 
collect. 

This procedure works very efficiently, and most state child support agencies 
realize that by virtue of this cooperative relationship, they are able to get credit 
for Supportkids' collections for federal accounting purposes since all payments 
are made through the state's disbursement unit. Ultimately, that qualifies their 
agency for more federal incentive dollars. 

Unfortunately, uncooperative states like North Dakota, which are a distinct 
minority, refuse to allow the state disbursement unit to send payments directly to 
private agencies. In some cases that makes collecting our fee less efficient and 
more costly. Often, in many of these cases, the private agency must ask the 
client to close their case with the state agency and then asks the obligor or 
employer send payments directly to the private agency. The private agency must 
then provide the state agency with an affidavit of payments so the state can 
make sure its records reflect all payments. That, of course, involves more cost to 
both the private agency and the state agency . 

LICENSING 

Since the early 1990s, only six states have passed laws specifically regulating 
private agencies. In three of those states, the economic restrictions contained in 
the bills have since prevented any private agencies from offering services in 
those states, leaving parents with few options when the government can't collect 
for them. Only one state, Texas, passed a law which contains substantive 
consumer protection provisions, and that bill was supported by private collection 
agencies. 

Supportk1ds has absolutely no objection to a bill requiring it to be licensed 
in North Dakota if either the custodial parent or the non-custodial parent 
resides in the state. We also support relevant consumer protection provisions. 

TERMINATION 

The North Dakota Child Support Enforcement Division ("Division") argues it is 
often difficult for parents to get out of a contract. Indeed, that is true to some 
extent with all contracts which, by definition, confer obligations and 
responsibilities on both parties to the contract. Most, if not all, private agencies 
allow a client to terminate the contact within one or two weeks of signing the 
contract or if twelve consecutive months go by without a collection. 
However, to allow a parent to terminate a contact at any time allows them 
to receive the benefit of services without the obligation to pay the 
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contracted fee. We expend thousands of dollars on many cases by the time the 
obligor has been located and the first payment secured. To allow a client to 
escape paying any fee for those services is patently inequitable and without 
precedent. 

REDIRECTION OF PAYMENTS 

The Division is quite correct in stating that child support should first be applied to 
current support and then any remainder to arrears. It then argues that because 
some company's contracts provide that all support collect will be applied to an 
arrearage balance specified in the contract, it would be illegal for the state to 
redirect payments to private agencies as it would be a violation of the distribution 
laws. That is a simple misconception, as is the assertion that redirection may 
cause private agencies to receive support assigned to the state. 

If private agencies have all collections sent to the state disbursement, the 
disbursement unit will properly account for those funds by applying them first to 
current support then to arrears, and will keep for the state any assigned support. 
It is an automated process, and this proper accounting will occur regardless of 
whether the payments are then disbursed to the obligee or the obligee's 
collection agency. The internal accounting private agencies use to determine the 
balance remaining on their contract has no impact on this whatsoever. The 
state's payment records, naturally, will reflect the same accounting and 
distribution regardless of the address lo which payments are sent. 

The Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement has issued numerous 
policy documents recommending that state child support agencies send 
payments to whatever address specified by a custodial parent. I have 
attached excerpts from some of the policy documents. 

CURRENT SUPPORT 

The Division states that "as a matter of public policy, attorneys are not allowed to 
charge contingency fees for the collection of a current monthly support obligation. 
This bill would apply that policy consistently to private collection agencies as 
well." Although the Division provides no authority for this "public policy", 
presumably ii is referring to the restriction on contingency fees contained in Rule 
1.5(d)(1) of the North Dakota Rules of Professional Conduct. However, the 
actual public policy for Rule 1.5(d)(1) would dictate the opposite conclusion. 

Rule 1.5(d) states that "A lawyer shall not enter into an arrangement for, charge, 
or collect: ... (1) any fee in a domestic relation matter, the payment or amount of 
which is contingent upon the securing of a divorce or upon the amount of alimony 
or support, or property settlement in lieu thereof ... " 
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Alone, this is arguably ambiguous as to whether a contingency fee is actually 
prohibited in the setting of an amount of support or, rather, in the collection of 
support. Fortunately, the comments to Rule 1.5 of the American Bar 
Association's Model Rules of Professional Conduct, which in this case North 
Dakota adopted verbatim, provide clarification. "This provision does not preclude 
a contract for a contingent fee for legal representation in connection with the 
recovery of post-judgment balances due under support, alimony or other financial 
offers because such contracts do not implicate the same policy concerns." 

The policy concern, which has been cited by virtually every state which has 
addressed the issue, is in preventing the encouragement of divorce and the 
hindrance of reconciliation which could result if attorneys were given financial 
interest in property settlements. As stated in the Model Rules' comments, that 
policy concern is not an issue post-judgment, and would likewise not be a 
concern either in regard to collection of past-due support or current support. 

The Division correctly states "the right to child support belongs to the children 
and cannot be waived or negotiated by the parents." Indeed, that is the law in 
most states. However, it is a misapplication of that law to argue that that premise 
prevents parents from paying for support services with current support. Indeed, 
some state child support agencies charge a fee which is taken from current 
support. All of the cases dealing with waiver or negotiation of child support relate 
only to the custodial parent agreeing with the non-custodial parent to accept less 
than the court-ordered amount. Such "agreements" can sometimes make later 
enforcement of the full amount difficult due to equitable theories such as estoppel 
or waiver by acquiescence. The Division's premise has absolutely no 
applicability in the present instance since the custodial parent is, in fact, 
attempting to collect the full amount from the non-custodial parent. The obliger is 
not "getting a break." The Division's argument fails because what the Division is 
really doing is telling a custodial parent what he or she can, or can't, purchase 
with the child support. · 

Custodial parents are charged with making decisions how best to apply child 
support received to serve the best interests of their children. A parent may 
choose to have their child reside in a better home, and therefore spend more of 
the current support on rent or a mortgage. A parent may want a child to receive 
better grades in school and therefore spend some current support on a private 
tutor rather than rely solely on the classroom education. A custodial parent may 
do this because he or she believes it to be in the child's best interest. Likewise, 
if a parent has had no success getting support collected through the North 
Dakota child support agency, that parent has the sole discretion in 
deciding whether to use current support to pay for a collection agency to 
bring funds into the household, if they believe it is in the child's best 
interest. 
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CONCLUSION 

Section 1 of House Bill 1172 limits the collection options of parents who have had 
no success trying to get their child support collected through their state child 
support agency. In effect, the bill assumes parents aren't smart enough to 
decide what is best for their children and dictates how they must spend their child 
support. It is not within the province of a state child support agency to impose 
such mandates upon responsible custodial parents. 

Is a legislative solutions needed at this time? Probably not. As I have discussed, 
the North Dakota Child Support Enforcement Division's legal arguments have 
been misapplied to the facts, which I believe simply reflects a lack of 
understanding as to how private agencies do business. I am aware of the 
criticisms lodged against private agencies by the Division. However, it is my firm 
belief that if the Division has any criticism of the business practices of private 
agencies, those problems can undoubtedly be resolved simply through 
meaningful communication and negotiation. In fact, I have attached several 
letters I sent, e-mailed and faxed to the Division's Director, Mike Schwindt, in 
January and March 2003. In those letters I openly offer to address any concerns 
Mr. Schwindt has with private agencies. All of my letters went unanswered. I 
believe that a more businesslike approach for the Division would be for it to 
discuss its problems with the private agencies before trying to add yet another 
new law to the books. 

Accordingly, I respectfully suggest this honorable committee adopt one of two 
amendments we have prepared. The first simply deletes Section 1, based upon 
the belief that the Division's concerns can be addressed in a non-legislative 
fashion or, alternatively, that we can work with the Division between now and 
next session to build a better bill that protects consumers without limiting their 
collection options. 

The second proposed amendment requires that private agencies be licensed if 
either the custodial parent or non-custodial parent reside in North Dakota. 
Collections must be sent through the state disbursement unit, and the Division 
will send the payments to whatever address the custodial parent specifies. 
Clients can terminate the contract within 15 days of signing, if 12 consecutive 
months pass without a collection or if the Division begins collecting on their 
behalf. Fees, of course, may not be taken on collections effectuated by the 
Division. 

Madam Chair, honorable members of the Committee, this concludes my 
testimony and I will be very pleased to answer any questions . 
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,. EXCERPTS FROM FEDERAL POLICY DOCUMENTS 

• 

"While the nation's child support program has become 
much more effective at collecting child support in recent 

. years, too many children still do not receive the support 
that they need and deserve ... We recognize that .private 
agencies are a good option for some parents ... " 

"We want to make clear that, for those who wish to hire 
a private agency to assist them in collecting child 
support, state child support agencies should cooperate 
with the private collectors that parents have hired ... We 
are clarifying that federal law allows the states to send 
the parents' child support payments to them in care of 
their private collection agencies."2 

"OCSE strongly believes that improved customer 
service, including greater responsiveness to the 
reasonable needs and desires of the custodial parents 
that we serve, is vital to the continued support for and 
success of the IV-0 program. In our view, it is good 
customer service and good public policy for a state to 
send child support payments to the custodial parent at 
the address that he/she requests. No one is in a better 
position to determine where the custodial parent should 
receive child support payments than the custodial 
parent him/herself."3 

1 
Quote from United States Depanment of Health & Human Services Secretary Tommy G. Thompson, in 

HHS News Release dated December 19, 2002. 
2 

Quote from HHS Assistant Secretary for Children and Families Wade F. Hom, in HHS News Release 
dated December 19, 2002. 
3 

Quote from Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement Commissioner Sherri Z. Heller, in OCSE policy 
document DCL-02-35. 



LETTERS, E-MAILS & FAXES 
FROM SUPPORTKIDS 

TO 
NORTH DAKOTA CHILD SUPPORT DIRECTOR 

MIKE SCHWINDT 



State of North Dakota 
Child Support Enforcement 
Attn: Mike Schwindt, Director 
1929 North Washington 
P.O. Box 7190 
Bismarck, ND 58507-7190 

Re: Customer Service & Cooperation 

Dear Mr. Schwindt: 

As you may know, Supportkids, Inc. is a private child support enforcement agency which 
operates in each of the fifty states. We were founded in 1991 by Casey Hoffman, former 
IV-D director for the state of Texas. Our Chief Operations Officer is Kathy Kerr, former 
IV-D director for the state of New Hampshire. Supportkids is the largest private child 
support enforcement agency in the nation and has grown consistently over the past eleven 
years. We continue to seek greater interface between the public and private sectors. 

By way of brief introduction, I_ am Chief Compliance Officer for Supportkids and, as 
such, my responsibilities include fostering cooperative relationships with state IV-D 
agencies and responding to miscommunications which occasionally occur at the state or 
county level. About half of my legal career has been in public service, with four years as 
.accllild support administrative hearing officer, several years as a IV-D regional managing 

"attorney and most recently as counsel for the Missouri Senate. I mention this background 
J.11)]y to let you know that I am a bit familiar with IV-D issues . 

.I offerthis letter for two reasons. First, I offer my services to you at any time you have 
<j_ll~tions, concerns or comments regarding our business. Second, your agency adopted a 
policy in August 2002 to refuse our requests for pay histories and our clients' requests for 
change of address. At that time, there was little guidance from OCSE defining 
recommended relationships between IV-D agencies and private child support 
enforcement agencies ("PCSEAs"). However, in light ofrecent memoranda issued by the 
Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement, I very respectfully suggest that now may 
be an appropriate time to reexamine that policy. This suggestion is offered in the spirit of 
"family-friendliness and customer satisfaction" espoused by Commissioner Heller in 
DCL-02-35. 

Regarding pay histories, IM-02-09 encourages IV-D agencies and PCSEAs to "foster an 
environment of cooperation" and the "mutual exchange of important case information" 
such as pay histories. 

SuProRTK10s, 1Nc. P.O. Box 18988 AusT1N, TX 78760 

PHONE (512) 437-6000 FAX (512) 437-6030 WWW.SUPP0RTKIDS.COM 
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Regarding requests for change of address, DCL-02-35 provides: 

OCSE strongly believes that improved customer service, including greater 
responsiveness to the reasonable needs and desires of the custodial parents 
that we serve, is vital to the continued support for and success of the IV-D 
program. In our view, it is good customer service and good public policy 
for a state to send child support payments to the custodial parent at the 
address that he/she requests. No one is in a better position to determine 
where the custodial parent should receive child support payments than the 
custodial parent him/herself. 

PIQ-02-02 addresses concerns of IV-D agencies regarding change of address issues and 
provides: "In sum, state IV-D programs can send payments in the custodial parent's 
name to the address that he/she provides, unless otherwise prohibited by state law. States 
may not refuse to honor a custodial parent's request that payments be sent to a specific 
address on the basis that federal statute or regulations preclude such actions." 

I believe that cooperation between us works to everyone's benefit, and I would welcome 
the opportunity to discuss your thoughts on these issues, at your convenience . 

Sincerely, 

0-
Eric Rosenkoetter 
Chief Compliance Officer 
(512) 437-6133 
eric.rosenkoetter@supportkids.com 
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Child Support Enforcement 
Attn: Mike Schwindt, Director 
1929North Washington 
P.O. Box 7190 
Bismarck, ND 58507-7190 

Re: Cooperation 

Dear Mr. Schwindt: 

As you may know, Supportkids, Inc. is a private child support enforcement agency which 
operates in each of the fifty states. We were founded in 1991 by Casey Hoffrnan, past 
president of the Massachusetts Bar Association and former IV-D director for the state of 
Texas. Our Chief Operating Officer is Kathy Kerr, former IV-D director for the state of 
New Hampshire. Supportkids is the largest private child support enforcement agency in 
the nation and has grown consistently over the past twelve years. We continue to seek 
greater interface between the public and private sectors and are a founding member of the 
Child Support Enforcement Council (http://www.csecouncil.org), an industry council 
dedicated to educating the public and private sectors regarding private child support 
enforcement agencies and developing and maintaining industry standards. 

By way of brief introduction, I am Chief Compliance Officer for Supportkids and, as 
such, my responsibilities include fostering cooperative relationships with state IV-D 
agencies and responding to miscommunications which occasionally occur at the state or 
county level. About half of my legal career has been in public service, having spent four 
years presiding over administrative child support hearings, several years serving as a 
JV-D regional managing attorney and most recently serving as counsel for the Missouri 
Senate. I mention this background only to let you know that I am a bit familiar with 
IV-D issues. 

I offer this letter for two reasons. First, I offer my services to you at any time you have 
questions, concerns or comments regarding our business. Second, your agency expressed 
a policy to us in August 2002 which was to refuse our clients' reqJJ~sts for .change of 
address. At that time, there was little guidance fromOCSE defining recommended 
relationships between IV-D agencies and private child support enforcement agencies. 
However, in light of recent memoranda issued by the Federal Office of Child Support 
Enforcement, I very respectfully suggest that now may be an appropriate time for us to 
consider a more cooperative relationship. This suggestion is offered in the spirit of 
"family-friendliness and customer satisfaction" espoused by Commissioner Heller in 
DCL-02-35 . 

SuPPORTKrns. 1Nc. P.O. Box 18988 AusTJN. TX 78760 
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Regarding requests for change of address, DCL-02-35 provides: 

OCSE strongly believes that improved customer service, including greater 
responsiveness to the reasonable needs and desires of the custodial parents 
that we s~rve, is vital to the continued support for and success of the IV-D 
program. In our view, it is good customer service and good public policy 
for a state to send child support payments to the custodial parent at the 
address that he/she requests. No one is in a better position to determine 
where the custodial parent should receive child support payments than the 
custodial parent him/herself. 

This view was reiterated, at length, by Dr. Wade Hom, Assistant Secretary for 
Children and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, on 
February 4, 2003, at the NCSEA Conference in Washington, D.C. 

If private agencies can collect child support which is otherwise not collectible, and those 
collections are accounted for through your disbursement unit, it would undoubtedly be a 
win-win situation for everyone. 

I am very hopeful that after your agency has had an opportunity to reflect on these issues, 
it will consider joining the majority of states which have chosen to work cooperatively 
with private agencies. 

I would welcom.e the opportunity to discuss your thoughts on these issues, at your 
convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
Chief Compliance Officer 
(512) 437-6 l 33 
eric.rosenkoetter@supportkids.com 



• CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT 

lob! Start time 

Send Conf1rmat1on Report 

ID: 5124376030 

Usage Phone Number or ID Pages Mode 

19 Mar'03 12:51PM Page 

Status 

100 3/19 12:50PM 0'47" 917013286575. 

Type 

Send. 3/ 3 EC144 Completed 

Total: 0'47" 

• 

• 

Pages sent: 3 Pages printed: 0 

supnort •: . :_ r,.,..C>IILl'l,..,...,,EXPU!n 
P.O. Box 49459 

Austin, TX 78765 
Phone (512) 437-6133 

Fax (512) 437-7400 

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL 

To: Mtkc Schwiru!l Fax: OOJJ 328-6575 

From: Eric !losu.~ocuer Date March 19,:003 

Re: Coop~r~uon Pages: 

CC: 

□-
c~- [Jp-,Co<,oneri 

□--
OP-..-,.:.,,, 

7 



Page 1 of 1 

Eric Rosenkoetter 

-~om;--~~~ ;:~e~~oe~~; 

Sent: Monday, March 03, 2003 12:25 PM 

To: 'Mike Schwindt (soschm@state.nd.us)' 

Subject: FW: My Letter of Janaury 3, 2003 

Dear Mr. Schwindt: 

I anticipate being in the office the majority of this week if you or your staff would be available to discuss the potential of a 
cooperative relationship between our agencies. 

I am very hopeful that after your agency has had an opportunity to reflect on the issues described in my letter. it will 
consider Joining the majority of states which have chosen to work cooperatively with private agencies. If there is a chance 
that private agencies may be able to collect child support which was otherwise not collectible. and those collections are 
accounted for through your disbursement unit, it would undoubtedly be a win-win situation for everyone. 

I thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
Chief Compliance Officer 
Supportkids, Inc. 
(512) 437-6133 

•--Original Message····­From: Eric Rosenkoetter 
Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2003 9:12 AM 
To: 'soschm@state.nd.us' 
Subject: My Letter of Janaury 3, 2003 

Dear Mr. Schwindt: 

I hope by now you have received my letter of January 3, 2003, which discussed various cooperation issues and briefly 
touched on the various documents recently released by OCSE addressing those issues. 

At your convenience, I would like to discuss your thoughts on these matters. Please let me know if there is any time in the 
next several weeks when you would be available for a telephone call. 

Thank you very much for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
Chief Compliance Officer 
Supportkids, Inc. 
(512) 437-6133 

2/17/2005 
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Eric Rosenkoe_tt~r ..... . 

rom: Eric Rosenkoetter 

Sent: Wednesday, March 19, 2003 12:34 PM 

To: 'Mike Schwindt (soschm@state.nd.us)' 

Subject: Cooperation 

Dear Mr. Schwindt: 

As you may know, Supportkids, Inc. is a private child support enforcement agency which operates in each of 
the fifty states. We were founded in 1991 by Casey Hoffman, past president of the Massachusetts Bar 
Association and former IV-D director for the state of Texas. Our Chief Operating Officer is Kathy Kerr, former 
IV-D director for the state of New Hampshire. Supportkids is the largest private child support enforcement 
agency in the nation and has grown consistently over the past twelve years. We continue to seek greater 
interface between the public and private sectors and are a founding member of the Child Support Enforcement 
Council (l:ttp:. ''-'-''" .,scco:H:11;: i !.,:irg), an industry council dedicated to educating the public and private sectors 
regarding private child support enforcement agencies and developing and maintaining industry standards. 

By way of brief introduction, I am Chief Compliance Officer for Supportkids and, as such, my responsibilities 
include fostering cooperative relationships with state IV-D agencies and responding to miscommunications 
which occasionally occur at the state or county level. About half of my legal career has been in public service, 
having spent four years presiding over administrative child support hearings, several years serving as a IV-D 

•

gional managing attorney and most recently serving as counsel for the Missouri Senate. I mention this 
ckground only to let you know that I am a bit familiar with IV-D issues. 

I offer this letter for two reasons. First, I offer my services to you at any time you have questions, concerns or 
comments regarding our business. Second, your agency expressed a policy to us in August 2002 which was to 
refuse our clients' requests for change of address. At that time, there was little guidance from OCSE defining 
recommended relationships between IV-D agencies and private child support enforcement agencies. However, 
in light of recent memoranda issued by the Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement, I very respectfully 
suggest that now may be an appropriate time for us to consider a more cooperative relationship. This 
suggestion is offered in the spirit of "family-friendliness and customer satisfaction" espoused by Commissioner 
Heller in DCL-02-35. 

Regarding requests for change of address, DCL-02-35 provides: 

OCSE strongly believes that improved customer service, including greater responsiveness to the 
reasonable needs and desires of the custodial parents that we serve, is vital to the continued 
support for and success of the IV-D program. In our view, it is good customer service and good 
public policy for a state to send child support payments to the custodial parent at the address that 
he/she requests. No one is in a better position to determine where the custodial parent should 
receive child support payments than the custodial parent him/herself. 

This view was reiterated, at length, by Dr. Wade Hom, Assistant Secretary for Children and Families, 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, on February 4, 2003, at the NCSEA Conference in 
Washington, D.C . 

• private agencies can collect child support which is otherwise not collectible, and those collections are 
accounted for through your disbursement unit, it would undoubtedly be a win-win situation for everyone. 

2/17/2005 
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.~. very hopeful that after your agency has had an opportunity to reflect on these issues, it will consider 
, ing the majority of states which have chosen to work cooperatively with private agencies. 

I would welcome the opportunity to discuss your thoughts on these issues, at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Rosenkoetter 
Chief Compliance Officer 
Supportkids, Inc. 
(512) 437-6133 

• 
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TESTIMONY 
HOUSE Bill 1172- DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
JUDY LEE, CHAIRMAN 

FEBRUARY 28, 2005 

· Chairman Lee, members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am James 

Fleming, Deputy Director and General Counsel of the State Child Support 

Enforcement Division of the Department of Human Services. I am here to ask for 

your favorable consideration of Engrossed House Bill 1172. 

Section One addresses private collection agencies who attempt to enforce child 

support obligations for a fee charged to the family. As this industry grows, we 

also see a national trend for state legislatures to pass laws ensuring that the 

families are protected. The intent of the proposed new section is not to prohibit 

these companies from operating in North Dakota, but to protect consumers and 

ensure that the private collection agencies' activities do not interfere with the 

efforts of government child support enforcement programs. 

The proposed section confirms that these agencies are subject to North Dakota 

law just like collection agencies that collect other debts and must obtain a license 

from the Department of Financial Institutions. In addition, due to the uniqueness 

of child support debts and the fact that the child support enforcement program is 

frequently enforcing the same debt at the same time, some additional provisions 

are proposed. 

In legislative hearings for many years, the child support enforcement program 

and the Legislative Assembly have discussed that 1) child support payments 

should first be applied to the amount due in the current month before being 

applied to any arrears, 2) the right to current child support belongs to the children 

and cannot be waived or negotiated by the parents, and 3) all child support 

payments must be paid through the State Disbursement Unit (SOU) for proper 

recording and disbursement. 
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As a matter of public policy, attorneys are not allowed to charge contingency fees 

for the collection of a current monthly child support obligation. This bill would 

apply that policy consistently to private collection agencies as well. To avoid this 

public policy and state laws requiring that current child support be paid before 

arrears, we are aware that some agencies' contracts with families specifically 

provide that any collections received will first be applied to arrears. This denies 

children the current support they need and violates the distribution priority 

established by the Legislature. The bill would make it even more clear that such 

a practice is prohibited. 

The bill would also ensure that all payments are properly processed through the 

SDU. Right now, we know that many private collection agencies do not inform us 

of payments that have been received and, as a result, the state's official payment 

records continue to show the obligor as delinquent even when money has been 

collected from the obligor or the obligor's employer by the private collection 

agency. In those cases, either the obligor is denied credit because the payment 

was not made through the SDU as required by state law and the court order, or 

else a worker in the SDU has to spend hours to "fix" the payment records to 

reflect a payment that was received by the private collection agency but not 

processed through the SDU. This situation can be avoided easily if the private 

collection agency turns over all collections to the SDU for proper recording and 

disbursement. If a collection agency does not comply.with the new section, the 

obligor is not entitled to credit for the collection but has a claim against the 

agency for three times the amount withheld by the agency. 

Some private collection agencies regularly ask us to redirect child support 

disbursements to the agency instead of sending the money directly to the family. 

Unless this bill is passed, we cannot do that because we know that many 

standard contracts allow the agency to retain a percentage of a current child 

• support payment. To redirect the disbursement to the agency on behalf of the 
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family would assist in the distribution of child support that is contrary to state 

law. If we are able to program our system in the future to disburse payments of 

current child support to the families and unassigned arrears to a private 

collection agency, this bill gives the Department discretion to adopt rules 

allowing for payments to be redirected. This ensures that the children receive the 

current support they need, that any child support collections on assigned arrears 

are properly retained by the State rather than paid to the private collection 

agency, and that the State's payment records are accurate. In the meantime, the 

private collection agencies are free to collect their fees from the family. 

Finally, we are aware that some agencies' standard contracts make it very 

difficult for a family to terminate its contract with the agency. The bill would 

protect families by allowing them to terminate an agreement on thirty days' notice 

without a cancellation fee. 

• The bill as amended does not limit the contingency fee that a private collection 

agency may charge for the collection of arreas, nor is the agency prohibited from 

being paid for work performed up to the date the contract is terminated. 

• 

Section Two proposes to make the mailing of notices of arrears or scheduling of 

contempt hearings optional rather than mandatory for the clerks of court. Under 

current law, whenever one payment is missed, the clerk is required to mail a 

notice of arrears or schedule a contempt hearing. The fact that one payment is 

missed does not necessarily mean an obligor is deliberately violating the court 

order. For example, an obligor may change jobs and assume that the new 

employer's payroll cycle will "take care of it," when in fact the payment is not 

withheld by the employer and paid through the SOU until the next month. 

Because current law requires the clerk to act even when one payment is missed, 

a lot of time on the part of judges, clerks, state's attorneys, and parents is spent 

on contempt hearings that are unnecessary. When hearings for 20 or 30 obligors 

are scheduled at one time, it is difficult to separate those who are truly in 
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contempt of court from those who have simply been careless in making sure their 

payments are made on time. This law will give the clerks of court the discretion 

to refrain from taking any action unless requested by the family or the child 

support enforcement program. It is our hope that making contempt proceedings 

more selective will also make those proceedings more effective. 

Section Three amends current law in anticipation of a possible amendment to the 

federal regulations that define "reasonable cost" for health insurance. Currently, 

unless insurance coverage is available to the family for no or nominal cost, an 

obligor is required to carry insurance if insurance is available on a group basis or 

through the obligor's employer or union even if the coverage costs several 

hundred dollars per month. If the federal regulation is changed, this amendment 

will allow the Department of Human Services to establish a different definition by 

administrative rule rather than wait to implement any new definition until 2007. 

• Section Four proposes to extend the deadline for bringing contempt of court 

proceedings against an income payer from one hundred and eighty days to one 

year. This would give the child support enforcement program more time to 

complete settlement negotiations with an income payer. 

Section Five authorizes the Department to retain any child support collections 

that we are unable to disburse within three years. Currently, these payments are 

deposited with the Unclaimed Property Division. At that point, the deposits in 

IV-D cases are considered by the federal government to be revenue to the State 

from operation of the child support enforcement program and the federal 

government wants its share of those deposits from the reimbursement it provides 

for our program's operations. For example, if a total of $30,000 in payments in 

IV-D cases is deposited with the Unclaimed Property Division, there is a $19,800 

deduction from the federal funds received by the Department of Human Services. 

This provision does not involve a lot of money, and as the fiscal note indicates, 

the amount that is deposited in this fund would get smaller and smaller now that 
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we have gone to almost exclusively an electronic payment process . 

Nevertheless, if the Department is going to incur the cost of these unclaimed 

payments, we propose that the funds be used for outreach projects, a process 

Massachusetts enacted with the concurrence of custodial parents, that might not 

otherwise be a funding priority rather than deposited with the Unclaimed Property 

Division. 

Section Six pertains to arrears management. As a result of legislation that was 

passed in the last two legislative sessions, the official payment records that we 

maintain are much more accurate regarding the judgment interest that is owed in 

each case. Unfortunately, with judgment interest at 12% per year on over $200 

million in child support arrears owed in North Dakota, another $2 million in 

interest is added to that balance every month. This makes it even more important 

that we take a practical and realistic approach to how we manage this arrears 

balance. 

The committee may remember that the Senate has passed Senate Bill 2302, which 

would change the statewide judgment interest rate from 12% per year to a 

variable rate that is set on an annual basis at 2% above the prime interest rate, 

rounded up to the nearest whole number. 

Now that our payment records contain more accurate information, the next step 

is to look at ways to use the accrual of judgment interest as an incentive for 

obligors to pay their child support arrears. This provision will give the child 

support enforcement program the ability to initiate an amnesty program and enter 

into payment plans with obligors that suspend the accrual of judgment interest as 

long as the obligor makes the payments required in the payment plan. In short, 

we would have additional ability to work with obligors, if they are willing to work 

with us. 
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The second part of Section Six provides guidance on distribution of child support 

payments when the custodial parent is deceased. Our program has existed for 

long enough that we are dealing with more parents, both obligors and obligees, 

who have died. This proposed new subsection would allow the state's payment 

records to be updated to reflect a new payee without requiring the obligee's 

family or heirs to go back to court, unless one of the children is a minor. 

Sections Seven, Eight, Ten, Eleven, and Thirteen resolve inconsistencies in 

current law regarding the interaction between the child support enforcement 

program and public retirement plans. Federal law requires that our program 

attach "public and private retirement funds" to satisfy a child support obligation. 

Again, as our program ages, more and more obligors are reaching retirement age 

and receive retirement benefits instead of other income. The first step in 

attaching retirement funds is to know who the retirees are. Sections seven, ten, 

and thirteen amend current law to clarify that public retirement plans, like other 

government agencies and private retirement plans, should respond to the child 

support enforcement program's requests for information about retirees. Section 

eight, as the next step, resolves a conflict in state law and reiterates that public 

retirement funds may be attached through income withholding or other legal 

process for collection of child support. Finally, section eleven authorizes the 

child support enforcement program to issue domestic relations orders (QDROs) 

to private and public retirement funds. We have worked with the agencies that 

operate these public retirement plans and understand that they do not object to 

these provisions. 

Section Nine identifies the proper court in which to pursue penalties for failing to 

report a newly hired employee when none of the employees has a current child 

support order. 

Section Twelve extends the sunset on the current statute allowing the state child 

support enforcement program to enter into cooperative agreements to be a 
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service provider to the regional child support enforcement units or an Indian 

tribe. This section was enacted last session as a way to improve the delivery of 

child support enforcement services through centralization of functions and also 

to improve the services provided to tribal children. However, no such 

agreements have been entered up to this point, which we believe is due in part to 

the fact that the expiration date on the current statute makes it difficult to plan for 

the long term. The original bill removed the expiration date; the bill was amended 

in the House to extend the continuing appropriation for another two years. 

Madame Chairman, this concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer 

any questions the committee may have. 
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Attached please find Supportkids' revised amendments to Reengrossed House Bill No. 
1172. I apologize for the oversight on amending the wrong version of the bill. 

We again want to thank the Committee for allowing us the opportunity to testify this 
afternoon. We appreciated the lively and healthy debate on the issue of private child 
support collection. The result of which was to focus the Committee on the heart of the 
issue, redirection of support payments. Regarding this issue, the Department has offered 
no substantive reason for refusing to honor the express intentions of the custodial parent 
except that they believe it is the best policy for all of the support to go to the parent. That 
is a flawed argument if, in fact, private agencies are considered an important option for 
parents, since private agencies are not able to perform this work without charging a fee. 

Though the Division is attempting to promote its own policy on this subject, truly it is the 
North Dakota Legislative Assembly and the Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement 
that should be determining policy. The Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement, 
which has studied this issue on a nation-wide scale, has stated "that it is good customer 
service and good public policy for a state to send child support payments to the 
custodial parent at the address that he/she requests. No one is in a better position 
to determine where the custodial parent should receive child support payments than 
the custodial parent him/herself." 

Supportkids and the parents it serves respectfully suggest that this is an appropriate policy 
for the State of North Dakota. Please feel free to either contact me or Mr. Rosenkoetter if 
you have any questions. Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

-pc-()/ 
Paul Sanderson 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1172 

Page 1, line 17, replace"," with"." and remove "if the"; 

Page 1, remove lines 18 through 20; 

Page 1, line 21, replace":" with "impose a fee or charqe for any child support collected 

primarily throuqh the efforts of a qovernmental aqency." 

Page 1, remove lines 22 through 24; 

Page 2, remove lines 1 and 2; 

Page 2, line 8, replace "may not" with "shall"; 

Page 2, line 9, replace "unless specifically permitted by rules adopted by the 

department of human" with "upon written request of the obliqee. and the obliqee 

may revoke the request for redirection of payments at any time."; 

Page 2, remove line 10; 

Page 2, line 12, remove "three times"; 

Page 2, line 13, remove "or five hundred dollars,"; 

Page 2, line 14, remove "whichever is qreater."; 

Page 2, line 18, replace "upon thirty days' notice" with ": a. Within 15 days of siqninq 

the contract; b. After twelve consecutive months in which the collection aqency 

fails to make a collection: or c. If the qovernment child support aqency beqins 

collectinq on behalf of the child support creditor, provided such collections are 

primarily the result of the qovernment aqency's efforts." 

Renumber accordingly 



• 

• 

• 

PROPOSED TESTIMONY ON HOUSE BILL 1172 

Chairperson Lee and 
Members of the Senate Human Services Committee 

My name is Paul Sanderson and I represent Supportkids, Inc., the nation's oldest and 
largest private child support collection company. On behalf of Supportkids, our existing 
North Dakota clients and those North Dakotans who might wish to use our child support 
enforcement services in the future, we urge you and the other members of the Human 
Services Committee to oppose certain provisions in HB 1172. 

The most recent figures indicate there is roughly $95 billion in unpaid child support in 
this country, with about $200 million of that attributable to North Dakota. The 
fundamental reason Supportkids was founded in 1991 is that it recognized the 
unfortunate fact that government child support programs will never have the funding 
necessary to collect all of the child support that is due to parents. Supportkids, Inc. is a 
private child support enforcement agency that operates in each of the fifty states. We 
believe that custodial parents deserve to have other options, beyond just the 
government, when seeking assistance in collecting child support. We have served over 
100,000 parents nationwide and have collected in excess of $200 million on their behalf. 
This illustrates the fact that private child support enforcement is an important and 
necessary part of the effort to help families collect the support they are owed. Virtually 
all of our clients tried collecting through government child support agencies before 
turning to us . 

Unfortunately, we are unable to support Section 1 of HB 1172 for the following reasons: 

1) Section 1, subsections 2b and 2c, provide there can be no fee assessed for 
collecting current support for parents. However, collecting current support, as 
well as past-due support, is exactly why parents hire us and is what they expect 
us to do. To legislate that we may only charge a fee for the work we put into 
collecting past-due support but cannot charge a fee for the work we put into 
collecting current support makes no sense and is unfair to parents who must 
have help collecting current support. Parents should have the absolute right to 
hire Supportkids to collect whatever child support is due them, regardless of 
whether it is designated as past-due or current support. Illinois passed similar 
legislation last year, and now not a single private agency can afford to offer 
services to Illinois parents who most need help - those with minor children who 
are not receiving their current support. 

2) Section 1, subsection 3, requires that all support collected by private agencies 
must be sent to and disbursed by the state disbursement unit. We agree with 
that principle, provided the state disbursement unit honors our clients' requests 
that the money be disbursed to the private agency so fees can be deducted. The 
Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement has encouraged state agencies to 
obey client's requests for re-direction of payments as a matter of good customer 
service. Unfortunately, North Dakota is one of the few states that refuses to do 
so and simply ignores direct requests from North Dakota clients. If North 
Dakota's child support program would offer our clients the courtesy of re-directing 
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payments at their request (as do almost all states), the North Dakota state child 
support enforcement program would also be eligible for more federal incentive 
dollars. 

3) Section 1, Subsection 5, provides that our clients may cancel their contract at 
any time, for any reason, without consequence, upon thirty days' notice. This 
provision is manifestly unjust. As a private enforcement agency, we often invest 
thousands of dollars into cases in an effort to locate missing parents and getting 
them to pay. To allow any consumer to enjoy the benefit of a service and then 
completely avoid any responsibility to pay the fee is unprecedented and 
unreasonable. 

4) HB 1172 goes against the spirit of the policy issued by the Federal Office of Child 
Support Enforcement that encourages states to cooperate with private 
enforcement agencies that have been hired by custodial parents to help collect 
child support. Federal policy directives issued in December 2002 and, most 
recently, in the National Child Support Enforcement Strategic Plan for FY 2005-
2009, specifically call for the collaboration between government and private child 
support enforcement agencies and cooperation in working together in partnership 
to achieve identified enforcement results throughout the United States. 

Legislation similar to HB 1172 was proposed last session in California. As Governor 
Schwarzenegger stated in his Veto Message on SB339: 

While I support ensuring parents are not taken advantage of in 
securing child support payments, this bill will have the effect of 
severely limiting a consumer's choice to go to a private collection 
agency when government efforts to collect the owed child support 
falter. . .Private child support collection agencies are valuable 
participants along with government efforts to collect child support 
and offer consumers a choice . .. Federal review of the subject, as 
well as the California Performance Review, have identified the need 
for private agencies in child support collections." 

HB 1172, in its current form, is harsh and punitive and will only have the effect of 
eliminating the ability of North Dakota's custodial parents from obtaining private 
sector enforcement assistance. 

We would, of course, be very pleased to work with the sponsors of HB 1172 and 
the members of the Human Services Committee to develop a bill that protects 
consumers and yet mutually benefits both the state child support program and 
private enforcement agencies that are providing and valuable and much needed 
services. 

Respectfully, 

Paul Sanderson 
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Proposed Amendments to Reengrossed House Bill 1172 
March 14, 2005 

Page 1, line 6, remove "subsection 5 of section 14-09-25," 

Page 3, remove lines 13 through 29 

Page 4, line 2, after "program" insert an underscored comma 

Page 4, line 3, after "plan" insert and underscored comma 

Page 4, line 18, replace "are" with "is" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Research Points: HB 1172 

Bank Data Match: 
The bank and the data match center can exchange information in two ways. 

1. A bank may receive a list and match its customers against it. If a match is 
found, the bank may then report back to the match center. 

2. A bank may send its complete customer list to the match center, including 
only names and addresses. No account information is exchanged. 

Section 2-last known address 
ND Rule of Civil Procedure 5(b) covers Service. Under this rule, mailing notice to a last 

known address is sufficient. Additionally, under 14-09-08.1 (2), it is the duty of the party subject 
to a child support order to provide any current address information or changes, among other 
things. 

Page 4, line 4: "Commercially Reasonable" 
Commercially reasonable is a term of art addressed by the UCC. It is basically a fact 

based test. In a recent ND Supreme Court case, Oliver-Mercer Electric Cooperative v. Davis, 
2004 ND 86, a "commercially reasonable" sale or action must be reasonable in its method, 
manner, time, place, and terms. Given the subjectivity of the term, it is the job of the fact finder 
(jury) to decide whether or not an action is "commercially reasonable." Evidence of whether or 
not an action was commercially reasonable may include fair market value, which depends on 
appraisals, stipulations, market conditions, subsequent sales, and testimony of a purchaser. 

Affected Sections of the NDCC: 
15-39.1-30 addresses the Teacher's Retirement Fund and confidentiality of records. 
28-22-19 addresses civil judicial procedure and its exemptions. 
35-15-06 addresses miner's liens and foreclosure. 
50-09-08.5 addresses aid to dependent children. 

15-39.1-12.2 Teacher's Retirement 
Benefit payment to alternate payee under domestic relations order 

39-03.1-14.2 Highway Patrolmen's Retirement System 
Benefit payment to alternate payee under domestic relations order 

54-52-17 .6 Public Employees Retirement System 
Benefit payment to alternate payee under domestic relations order 

54-52.2-03.3 Deferred Compensation Plan for Public Employees 
Benefit payment to alternate payee under domestic relations order 

These sections apply to qualified domestic relations orders for state employees. 

Example oflanguage in each statute: 
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The board or a vendor contracted for by the board shall apportion a participating 
member's account in the deferred compensation plan under this chapter in 
accordance with the applicable requirements of any qualified domestic relations 
order. The board shall review a domestic relations order submitted to the board to 
determine if the domestic relations order is qualified under this section and pursuant 
to the plan document established by the board for determining the qualified status of 
domestic relations orders and administering distributions under the qualified orders. 
A "qualified domestic relations order" for purposes of this section means any 
judgment, decree, or order, including approval of a property settlement agreement, 
which relates to the provision of child support, spousal support, or marital property 
rights to a spouse, former spouse, child, or other dependent of a participating 
member, is made pursuant to a North Dakota domestic relations law, and which 
creates or recognizes the existence of an alternate payee's right to, or assigns to an 
alternate payee the right to, receive all or a part of the benefits payable to the 
participating member. A qualified domestic relations order may not require the 
board to provide any type or form of benefit, or any option, not otherwise provided 
under this chapter, or to provide increased benefits. A qualified domestic relations 
order must specify: 
a. The name and the last-known mailing address of the participating member and 

the name and mailing address of each alternate payee covered by the order; 
b. The amount or percentage of the participating member's benefits to be paid by 

the plan to each alternate payee; 
c. That the alternate payee must take a lump sum payment of the benefits 

allocated to the alternate payee within one hundred twenty days of the later of 
the board's acceptance of the qualified domestic relations order or the entry of 
the order by the court; and 

d. Each plan to which the order applies. 



Lee, Judy E. 

maryanne_best@childsupportoptions.org 
Monday, March 07, 2005 9:26 PM 
Lee, Judy E. 
Opposition to HB 1172 

■ 

Dear Members of the Senate Committee on Human Services: 

On behalf of the members of the National Coalition for Child Support Options (NCCSO), I am 
writing to urge you to VOTE AGAINST HB 1172! 

The NCCSO is a national organization of thousands of custodial parents who are owed child 
support and who believe parents should have effective options available to them for the 
collection of child support, including private child support enforcement agencies. 

If this bill is allowed to become law, it will TAKE AWAY RIGHTS of custodial parents in 
North Dakota who need help from private child support enforcement agencies. 

The sponsors of HB 1172 will claim that they are really "helping" custodial parents by 
imposing stiff controls on private child support enforcement agencies. However, NCCSO IS 
NOT AWARE OF A SINGLE COMPLAINT IN THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA REGARDING PRIVATE CHILD 
SUPPORT COLLECTION AGENCIES. 

Unfortunately, the provisions in Section 1.of HB1172 are so harsh and extreme that private 
child support agencies will no longer be able to offer services to families in North 
Dakota. 

It is amazing to our organization that, with $152 million in uncollected child support 
owed in North Dakota, the government child support agency,is seeking to eliminate the 

ly alternative to their own services---that offered by p,:"ivate agencies. 

ere are 16,716 open child support cases in North Dakota on which not a single penny is 
collected! 

With this record, it is clear that the North Dakota child support agency cannot collect 
support for everyone who needs it. This is why many custodial parents are choosing to 
hire private child support enforcements agencies and collectors. Parents owed child 
support must continue to have this option and that is why HB 1172 should not be voted out 
of conunittee without Section 1 being removed. 

The NCCSO believes that North Dakota's custodial parents who are owed child support NEED 
MORE OPTIONS, not fewer. We urge you to please VOTE "NO" ON HB 1172. 

If you would like to know more about our concerns with HB1172 and how it hurts our 
families, please feel free to contact me. 

Mary Anne Best 
NCCSO National Coordinator 
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Lee, Judy E. 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

David Conder [david@childsupportrecovery.com] 

Tuesday, March 08, 2005 7:04 AM 

Lee, Judy E. 

Subject: HB 1172 

March 8, 2005 

Members of the Senate Human Services Committee: 

Page I of2 

3/t<f /o<' 

I am writing on behalf of the Child Support Enforcement Council ("CSEC") to express our association's 
opposition to Section 1 of HB 1172. 

As background, the Child Support Enforcement Council is a professional association of the leading 
providers of private child support enforcement services in the United States. Our members are 
responsible for an estimated $250 million in child support collections (representing about 95 percent of 
all collections made by private agencies) for custodial parents who hire our agencies. CSEC has been 
working closely with the Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement to promote a better 
understanding of the important role of private agencies in helping to solve the national epidemic of 
unpaid child support, which currently totals almost $100 billion. In fact, encouraging cooperation by 
state child support enforcement agencies with private child support collections agencies is part of the 
National Child Support Enforcement Strategic Plan recently adopted by the Federal Office of Child 

• Support Enforcement. ·· · 

In recent years private child support enforcement agencies have become a growing option for custodial 
parents who, for whatever reason, cannot get their child support collected by their state child support 
program. As in all the states, North Dakota has a significant number of parents who cannot be 
effectively assisted by the state program. 

CSEC supports reasonable regulation of private child support enforcement agencies. However, CSEC 
opposes legislation that has the effect of restricting parents' rights to collect support using a private 
child support agency. IfHB 1172 is passed with Section I as it is presently written, your constituents 
will not have the option of hiring private agencies to collect their support. If that happens, where else 
will they be able to get help? 

The following provisions in Section I ofHB 1172 are opposed by CSEC: 
• The prohibition against collecting current support suggests the Division does not think 

parents are smart enough to decide what is in their child's best interest. If tbe state is not 
able to collect the current support, who are they to limit a parent's other enforcement 
options? 

• The unilateral contract termination provision will allow parents to receive tbe benefit of 
services from private agencies, while avoiding responsibility for paying any fees. In what 
other business relationship is a unilateral termination of a contract, without cause, 
permitted? If this provision is enacted, it will establish an extremely bad precedence for 
business in North Dakota. 

• Federal policy recommends state child support agencies send payments to any address 
specified by a parent, including that of a private agency. 

3/8/2005 
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CSEC agrees, however, that fees should never be taken on collections achieved by the state child 
support program and we also agree that payments should be processed through the state disbursement 
unit, so long as the state agency will allow the payments to be re-directed to private agencies for 
deduction of fees if so requested by a custodial parent. CSEC supports an amendment that would retain 
these provisions. 

I welcome the opportunity to discuss these issues with you at your convenience, and will provide any 
additional information that may be helpful to you in understanding our concerns with HB 1172. 

Sincerely, 

David Conder 
President, Child Support Enforcement Council 
P.O. Box 547 
Elkhart, IN 46517 
(866) 357-2732 
www.csecouncil.org 

3/8/2005 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 

Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

March 31, 2005 

Page##, after line##, insert the following: 

"SECTION 1. Two new subsections to section 14-09-09.10 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are created and enacted as follows: 

"Arrears registry" means the registry maintained under section 6 of this Act." 

"Monthly support obligation" means an amount of child support ordered by a 
court or administrative tribunal in a proceedinq to establish or modify a child 
support obliqation, includinq amounts that are deferred for payment at a later 
date. "Monthly support obligation" is defined without reqard to any amount of 
child support that an obligor is required to pay to avoid beinq held in contempt of 
court. If an amount of past-due support has been ordered as a lump sum rather 
than determined on a monthly basis. "monthly support obliqation" means one 
hundred sixty-eiqht dollars. 

SECTION 2. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. 

2. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 28-21-05, if a judgment ha:; 
been docketed under :;cction 14 08.1 05 in an amount greater than :;ix 
time:; the monthly child :;upport obligation and the judgment debtor is---flet 
current in a court c:;tabli::;hcd plan to repay the unpaid child :;upport 
judgment is listed on the arrears registry as defined in section 
14-09-09.10, or if the judqment debtor meets criteria established by the 
secretary of the United States department of health and human services 
that apply when a financial institution is doing business in two or more 
states, the department of human services may issue an execution, against 
the property of the judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which 
the property may be found. 
A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need 
not be docketed and the writ may 8l'l'lw. be issued in a form prescribed by 
the department of human services. A writ issued under this section must 
be accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 that has been certified under section 14-08.1-08. 
&. The ::;cal of the court; 
Ir. The ::;ub::;cription of the clcrl{ of that court; 
e, The attc:;tation in the name of the judge of the court that entered 

the judgment; 
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Eh A ::;totement of the court:; ond co untie::; to which the judgment ho:; 
been tron::;cribed; ond 
If the writ i::; i:;::;ued to o ::;heriff of o county other thon the county in 
which the judgment i::; docketed, o dote ond time of docl<eting in 
thot ::;heriff::; county. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When o po::;t due child 
::;upport obligation i::; ot leo::;t ::;ix time::; the monthly child ::;upport obligation ond 
tAe an obligor is not current in o court e::;tobli::;hcd pion to repoy the po::;t due 
support listed on the arrears reqistry as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public 
authority may establish a lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. 
The amount of a lien under this chapter includes any past-due support that is 
owed when the lien is perfected and any past-due support that accrues after the 
lien is perfected. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from liability. A person in possession of, or 
obligated with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, 
surrenders the property or di::;chorge::; the obligation to the public authority. 
complies with section 35-34-12, or otherwise acts in good faith to comply with the 
requirements in this chapter. is immune from suit or any liability to the obligor or 
other per::;on ori::;ing from the ::;urrendcr or payment under any federal or state 
law. The court shall award reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any 
person who commences an action that is subsequently dismissed by reason of 
the immunity granted by this section. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 35-34 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Effect of liens. Except as otherwise provided in this section. a lien perfected 
under this chapter encumbers the property and requires the person in possession of the 
property to retain the property until the lien is satisfied or released by the public 
authority. The property may be transferred if necessary to satisfy a riqht of setoff under 
section 35-34-05 or to honor a lien with hiqher priority under section 35-34-07. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears registry. The state case reqistry maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reqistry of any obliqor who owes past-due support in 
an amount qreater than two times the obliqor's current or most recent monthly support 
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obliqation as defined in section 14-09-09.10 or two thousand dollars, whichever is less . 
As used in this chapter, "arrears reqistry" means the reqistry maintained under this 
section. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 
a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply 

with a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 
b. An obliger who is in arrear::; in child ::;upport in ::in amount greater 

than three time::; the obligor'::; current or mo::;t recent monthly child 
::;upport obligation or five thou::;::ind dollar::;, whichever i::; le::;::; listed 
on the arrears registry; or 

c. An obliger who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan 
that has been negotiated between the obligor and the state agency 
under this section or in exchanqe for the state aqencv refraininq 
from takinq an enforcement action against the obliqor. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obligor who owe::; p::i::;t due child ::;upport in ::in amount greater 
than twenty five thou::;::ind dollar::; is listed on the arrears reqistry, including 
the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, occupation, 
photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and ages of the 
children for whom support is owed, and any other information that would 
assist in locating the person. 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section One 

• Creates a definition of "arrears registry" to implement the other amendments 
• Creates a definition of "monthly support obligation." This definition is needed to 

ensure all appropriate cases with arrears are subject to income withholding, 
credit bureau reporting, liens, and seizure. If the arrears have been ordered as 
one lump sum, we cannot issue an income withholding order because the 
amount due under section 14-09-09.30 currently needs to be based on the 
current or most recent monthly support obligation. Credit bureau reporting in 
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chapter 50-09 has the same problem because we need to identify how many 
months the obligor is behind. 

Administrative liens (section 35-34-02) and seizures (28-21-05.2) can only be 
used when the amount of arrears is "at least six times the monthly child support 
obligation." For lump-sum cases and those that are "arrears only," there is no 
monthly support obligation and these tools cannot be used. 

Without this language, we will continue to miss out on potential arrears 
collections in these cases; in most of them, there will probably be no collection at 
all and the federal performance measures will be adversely impacted. 

Section Two 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to administrative executions and authorizes 
the Department to participate in a federal process that may be created in the 
coming months. 

• Allows executions to be issued with the payment ledger attached rather than 
sending the ledger to the clerk for docketing before the writ is issued. 

Section Three 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to child support liens. 
• When a third party contacts the child support agency to know how much of the 

property is subject to the lien, the lien will include all arrears owed on that date. 

Section Four 

• Clarifies the existing immunity for third parties who honor our liens or similar liens 
from other state child support enforcement agencies. 

Section Five 

• Clarifies that the effect of a lien is to prohibit subsequent transfers of the 
property. This is a problem with current law and the change is needed to ensure 
federal requirements are fulfilled. The federal office of child support enforcement 
describes the mandated process as "freeze and seize." The asset is frozen 
through a lien and if that does not result in cooperation, the asset is seized. 
Unfortunately, current North Dakota law is unclear whether a lien "freezes" the 
asset. As a result, in many cases, the person holding the asset for an obligor 
does not freeze the asset and the notice of lien provided to the obligor is actually 
a warning to reclaim and dispose of the asset before the lien can be enforced. 

The new language clarifies the original intent of the Department in the 1997 
welfare reform legislation that a lien "freezes" the asset unless there is already a 
lien in place with a higher priority. Without this language, we will be left with the 
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choice of wasting time issuing ineffective liens or immediately seizing the 
property without giving the obligor a chance to voluntarily cooperate. 

Section Six 

• Provides that an arrears registry is created of all obligors who owe at least two 
months' of arrears or $2,000, whichever is greater. This concept will allow the 
child support enforcement program to get involved sooner before an obligor gets 
too far behind and can't catch up. It also provides a consistent trigger for arrears 
collection tools. According to the federal office of child support enforcement, the 
best way to manage arrears is to avoid them in the first place by responding 
quickly when orders are set too high or when current support is not paid. 

Section Seven 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to license suspension. 
• Allows the child support enforcement program to use one payment plan for 

license suspension, interest amnesty, and other collection activities. 

Section Eiqht 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to public disclosure 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 

Page ##, after line ##, insert the following: 

Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

April 6, 2005 

SECTION A. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support deduction order. 
L The state aqencv. directly or throuqh aqents or child support aqencies, 

mav issue an order requirinq an income paver to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from the portion of any lump sum payment to an 
obliqor that has been withheld under section 14-09-09.34. 

2. The state aqencv. directly or throuqh aqents or child support aqencies, 
mav issue an order requirinq a financial institution to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from any account of the obliqor maintained in the 
financial institution. 

3. The state aqencv shall serve the order on the income payer or financial 
institution in the manner provided for service of a summons in a civil action 
or in anv other manner aqreed to bv the income payer or financial 
institution. The state aqencv shall serve a copy of the order upon the 
obliqor by first-class mail to the obliqor's last-known address, alonq with a 
notice of the obliqor's riqht to claim that the property is exempt from leqal 
process under section 28-22-02, the riqht to request an informal review by 
the state aqencv within ten days of the date of the notice, and the riqht of 
the obliqor and anv other aqqrieved person to a review bv a court under 
section 50-09-14. If an informal review is requested under this subsection, 
the time for requestinq a review by a court under section 50-09-14 does 
not expire until thirty days after the informal review is completed. 

4. The income payer or financial institution shall deduct the amount identified 
in the order or the balance of the account, whichever is less, and transmit 
the funds to the state disbursement unit within seven business days of the 
date the order is served. 

5. An order issued under this section has priority over anv other leqal 
process aqainst the same account, except to the extent necessary to 
satisfy· anv riqht of setoff which exists in connection with an account, 
payment orders that were made bv the obliqor before the financial 
institution was served with the order. or other obliqations of the obliqor 
based upon written aqreements or instruments made or issued bv the 
obliqor before the financial institution was served with the order. 

6. An income paver or financial institution may also withhold and retain an 
additional sum of three dollars from the obliqor's account or from the 
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7. 

amount retained under section 14-09-09.34 to cover expenses involved in 
transmittinr:i payment. 
An income paver or financial institution receivino an order under this 
section is subject to the same duties and liabilities as an income paver 
under section 14-09-09.3 unless the context indicates otherwise and is 
immune from suit or liability for complyino with an order under this 
section." 

SECTION B. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Protest period. Except as authorized bv the oblioor, the state ar:iencv shall hold 
any funds collected under section 28-21-05.2 or section A of this Act and mav not 
consider the funds as a collection of child support until the time has expired for 
reouestino a review bv a court under section 50-09-14 or the conclusion of the review, 
whichever is later. 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section A 

• Creates a process similar to income withholding and writs of execution for 
property in the hands of third parties (i.e. a payer of a lump-sum or a financial 
institution) without requiring the involvement of the clerk of court to docket the 
arrears or the sheriff to personally serve the order. 

• When the order is served on the payer, a copy is also provided to the obligor. 
• The child support enforcement program is required to provide notice to the 

obligor of the right to claim exemptions and the right of the obligor or any other 
aggrieved person (such as a joint owner) to a court hearing within 30 days. 

Section B 

• The child support enforcement program is prohibited from distributing the money 
collected under an administrative execution or deduction order until the obligor 
has had an opportunity to have the action reviewed by a court. 



• 

• 

• 

Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

April 7, 2005 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL 1172 

Page##, after line##, insert the following: 

"SECTION 1. Two new subsections to section 14-09-09.10 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are created and enacted as follows: 

"Arrears reqistry" means the reqistry maintained under section 6 of this Act." 

"Monthly support obligation" means an amount of child support ordered by a 
court or administrative tribunal in a proceedinq to establish or modify a child 
support obliqation, includinq amounts that are deferred for payment at a later 
date. "Monthly support obligation" is defined without reqard to any amount of 
child support that an obliqor is required to pay to avoid beinq held in contempt of 
court. If an amount of past-due support has been ordered as a lump sum rather 
than determined on a monthly basis, "monthly support obliqation" means one 
hundred sixty-eiqht dollars. 

SECTION 2. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 28-21-05, if a judgment has 
been docketed under section 14 08.1 05 in an amount greater than :;ix 
time:; the monthly child support obligation and the judgment debtor is-Rat 
current in a court established plan to repay the unpaid child support 
judgment is listed on the arrears reqistry as defined in section 
14-09-09.10, or if the judgment debtor meets criteria established by the 
secretary of the United States department of health and human services 
that apply when a financial institution is doing business in two or more 
states, the department of human services may issue an execution, against 
the property of the judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which 
the property may be found. 
A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need · 
not be docketed and the writ may 0fl'liF. be issued in a form prescribed by 
the department of human services. A writ issued under this section must 
be accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 that has been certified under section 14-08.1-08. 
&.- The seal of the court; 
tr. The subscription of the clcrl( of that court; 
e; The attestation in the name of the judge of the court that entered 

the judgment; 
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A statement of the court:; and counties to which the judgment ha:; 
been transcribed; and 
If the writ i:; i:;:;ucd to a :;he riff of a county other than the county in 
which the judgment i:; docketed, a date and time of docketing in 
that :;hcriff:; county. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When a pa:;t due child 
:;upport obligation i:; at lca:;t :;ix time:; the monthly child support obligation and 
tRe an obligor is not current in a court established plan to repay the pa:;t due 
support listed on the arrears registry as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public 
authority may establish a lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. 
The amount of a lien under this chapter includes any past-due support that is 
owed when the lien is perfected and any past-due support that accrues after the 
lien is perfected. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from liability. A person in possession of, or 
obligated with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, 
surrenders the property or di:;chargc:; the obligation to the public authority, 
complies with section 35-34-12. or otherwise acts in good faith to comply with the 
requirements in this chapter. is immune from suit or any liability to the obligor or 
other person ari:;ing from the surrender or payment under any federal or state 
law. The court shall award reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any 
person who commences an action that is subsequently dismissed by reason of 
the immunity granted by this section. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 35-34 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Effect of liens. Except as otherwise provided in this section. a lien perfected 
under this chapter encumbers the property and requires the person in possession of the 
property to retain the property until the lien is satisfied or released by the public 
authority. The property may be transferred if necessary to satisfy a right of setoff under 
section 35-34-05 or to honor a lien with hiqher priority under section 35-34-07. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears registry. The state case reqistry maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reqistry of any obliqor who owes past-due support in 
an amount qreater than two times the obliqor's current or most recent monthly support 
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obliqation as defined in section 14-09-09.1 O or two thousand dollars, whichever is less . 
As used in this chapter, "arrears registry" means the reqistry maintained under this 
section. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 
a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply 

with a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 
b. An obligor who is in orrc.:ir:.; in child :.;upport in on amount greater 

than three time:.; the obligor':.; current or mo:.;t recent monthly child 
:.;upport obligation or five thou:.;ond dollar:.;, whichever i:.; le:.;:.; listed 
on the arrears registry; or 

c. An obligor who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan 
that has been negotiated between the obligor and the state agency 
under this section or in exchange for the state agency refraininq 
from takinq an enforcement action aqainst the obliqor. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obligor who is listed on the arrears reqistry and owes past-due 
child support in an amount greater than twenty five ten thousand dollars, 
including the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, 
occupation, photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and 
ages of the children for whom support is owed, and any other information 
that would assist in locating the person. 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section One 

• Creates a definition of "arrears registry" to implement the other amendments 
• Creates a definition of "monthly support obligation." This definition is needed to 

ensure all appropriate cases with arrears are subject to income withholding, 
credit bureau reporting, liens, and seizure. Under current law, if the arrears have 
been ordered as one lump sum, we cannot issue an income withholding order 
because the amount due under section 14-09-09.30 currently needs to be based 
on the current or most recent monthly support obligation. Credit bureau reporting 
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in chapter 50-09 has the same problem because we need to identify how many 
months the obligor is behind. 

Under current law, administrative liens (section 35-34-02) and seizures 
(28-21-05.2) can only be used when the amount of arrears is "at least six times 
the monthly child support obligation." For lump-sum cases and those that are 
"arrears only," there is no monthly support obligation and these tools cannot be 
used. 

Without this language, we will continue to miss out on potential arrears 
collections in these cases; in most of them, there will probably be no collection at 
all and the federal performance measures will be adversely impacted. 

Section Two 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to administrative executions and authorizes 
the Department to participate in a federal process that may be created in the 
coming months. 

• Allows executions to be issued with the payment ledger attached rather than 
sending the ledger to the clerk for docketing before the writ is issued. 

Section Three 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to child support liens. 
• When a third party contacts the child support agency to know how much of the 

property is subject to the lien, the lien will include all arrears owed on that date. 

Section Four 

• Clarifies the existing immunity for third parties who honor our liens or similar liens 
from other state child support enforcement agencies. 

Section Five 

• Clarifies that the effect of a lien is to prohibit subsequent transfers of the 
property. This is a problem with current law and the change is needed to ensure 
federal requirements are fulfilled. The federal office of child support enforcement 
describes the mandated process as "freeze and seize." The asset is frozen 
through a lien and if that does not result in cooperation, the asset is seized. 
Unfortunately, current North Dakota law is unclear whether a lien "freezes" the 
asset. As a result, in many cases, the person holding the asset for an obligor 
does not freeze the asset and the notice of lien provided to the obligor is actually 
a warning to reclaim and dispose of the asset before the lien can be enforced . 

The new language clarifies the original intent of the Department in the 1997 
welfare reform legislation that a lien "freezes" the asset unless there is already a 
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lien in place with a higher priority. Without this language, we will be left with the 
choice of wasting time issuing ineffective liens or immediately seizing the 
property without giving the obligor a chance to voluntarily cooperate. 

Section Six 

• Provides that an arrears registry is created of all obligors who owe at least two 
months' of arrears or $2,000, whichever is greater. This concept will allow the 
child support enforcement program to get involved sooner before an obligor gets 
too far behind and can't catch up. It also provides a consistent trigger for arrears 
collection tools. According to the federal office of child support enforcement, the 
best way to manage arrears is to avoid them in the first place by responding 
quickly when orders are set too high or when current support is not paid. 

Section Seven 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to license suspension. 
• Allows the child support enforcement program to use one payment plan for 

license suspension, interest amnesty, and other collection activities. 

Section Eiqht 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to public disclosure but requires a higher 
level of arrearage before public disclosure is authorized . 
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I 
Prepared by the North Dakota 

Department of Human Services 
April 7, 2005 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL 1172 

Page##, after line##, insert the following: 

"SECTION 1. Two new subsections to section 14-09-09.10 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are created and enacted as follows: 

"Arrears reqistrv" means the reqistry maintained under section 6 of this Act." 

"Monthly support obliqation" means an amount of child support ordered by a 
court or administrative tribunal in a proceeding to establish or modify a child 
support obliqation. includinq amounts that are deferred for payment at a later 
date. "Monthly support obliqation" is defined without regard to any amount of 
child support that an obligor is required to pay to avoid being held in contempt of 
court. If an amount of past-due support has been ordered as a lump sum rather 
than determined on a monthly basis. "monthly support obliqation" means one 
hundred sixty-eiqht dollars. 

SECTION 2. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. 

2. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 28-21-05, if a judgment has 
been docl<ctcd under section 14 08.1 05 in an amount greater than six 
times the monthly child support obligation and the judgment debtor is-flat 
current in o court established pion to repay the unpaid child support 
judgA1ent is listed on the arrears reqistry as defined in section 
14-09-09.10, or if the judgment debtor meets criteria established by the 
secretary of the United States department of health and human services 
that apply when a financial institution is doing business in two or more 
states, the department of human services may issue an execution, against 
the property of the judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which 
the property may be found. 
A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need 
not be docketed and the writ may emit; be issued in a form prescribed by 
the department of human services. A writ issued under this section must 
be accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 that has been certified under section 14-08.1-08. 
a-c The seal of the court; 
&. The subscription of the clerk of that court; 
ec The attestation in the name of the judge of the court that entered 

the judgment; 
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A :;t::itement of the court:; ::ind countie:; to which the judgment h::i:; 
been tr::in::cribed; ::ind 
If the writ i:; i:;:;ued to ::i ::heriff of ::i county other th::in the county in 
which the judgment i:; docketed, ::i d::ite ::ind time of docketing in 
th::it :;heriff:; county. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When ::i p::i:;t due child 
:;upport oblig::ition i:; ::it le::i:;t :;ix time:; the monthly child :;upport oblig::ition ::ind 
#le an obligor is not current in ::i court e:;t::ibli::hed pl::in to rep::iy the p::i:;t due 
support listed on the arrears registry as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public 
authority may establish a lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. 
The amount of a lien under this chapter includes any past-due support that is 
owed when the lien is perfected and any past-due support that accrues after the 
lien is perfected. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from liability. A person in possession of, or 
obligated with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, 
surrenders the property or di:;ch::irge:; the oblig::ition to the public ::iuthority, 
complies with section 35-34-12, or otherwise acts in good faith to comply with the 
requirements in this chapter, is immune from suit or any liability to the obligor or 
other per:;on ::iri::ing from the :;urrender or p::iyment under any federal or state 
law. The court shall award reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any 
person who commences an action that is subsequently dismissed by reason of 
the immunity granted by this section. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 35-34 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Effect of liens. Except as otherwise provided in this section. a lien perfected 
under this chapter encumbers the property and requires the person in possession of the 
property to retain the property until the lien is satisfied or released by the public 
authority. The property may be transferred if necessary to satisfy a riqht of setoff under 
section 35-34-05 or to honor a lien with higher priority under section 35-34-07. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears registry. The state case registry maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reqistry of any obliqor who owes past-due support in 
an amount qreater than two times the obliqor's current or most recent monthly support 
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obligation as defined in section 14-09-09.10 or two thousand dollars, whichever is less . 
As used in this chapter, "arrears registry" means the reqistry maintained under this 
section. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 
a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply 

with a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 
b. An obligor who is in arrear::; in child ::;upport in an amount greater 

thon three time::; the obligor'::; current or mo::;t recent monthly child 
::;upport obligation or five thou::;and dollar::;, whichever i::; le::;::; listed 
on the arrears reqistry; or 

c. An obligor who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan 
that has been negotiated between the obligor and the state agency 
under this section or in exchange for the state aqency refraining 
from takinq an enforcement action aqainst the obligor. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obligor who is listed on the arrears reqistry and owes past-due 
child support in an amount greater than twenty five ten thousand dollars, 
including the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, 
occupation, photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and 
ages of the children for whom support is owed, and any other information 
that would assist in locating the person. 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section One 

• Creates a definition of "arrears registry" to implement the other amendments 
• Creates a definition of "monthly support obligation." This definition is needed to 

ensure all appropriate cases with arrears are subject to income withholding, 
credit bureau reporting, liens, and seizure. Under current law, if the arrears have 
been ordered as one lump sum, we cannot issue an income withholding order 
because the amount due under section 14-09-09.30 currently needs to be based 
on the current or most recent monthly support obligation. Credit bureau reporting 
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in chapter 50-09 has the same problem because we need to identify how many 
months the obligor is behind. 

Under current law, administrative liens (section 35-34-02) and seizures 
(28-21-05.2) can only be used when the amount of arrears is "at least six times 
the monthly child support obligation." For lump-sum cases and those that are 
"arrears only," there is no monthly support obligation and these tools cannot be 
used. 

Without this language, we will continue to miss out on potential arrears 
collections in these cases; in most of them, there will probably be no collection at 
all and the federal performance measures will be adversely impacted. 

Section Two 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to administrative executions and authorizes 
the Department to participate in a federal process that may be created in the 
coming months. 

• Allows executions to be issued with the payment ledger attached rather than 
sending the ledger to the clerk for docketing before the writ is issued. 

Section Three 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to child support liens. 
• When a third party contacts the child support agency to know how much of the 

property is subject to the lien, the lien will include all arrears owed on that date. 

Section Four 

• Clarifies the existing immunity for third parties who honor our liens or similar liens 
from other state child support enforcement agencies. 

Section Five 

• Clarifies that the effect of a lien is to prohibit subsequent transfers of the 
property. This is a problem with current law and the change is needed to ensure 
federal requirements are fulfilled. The federal office of child support enforcement 
describes the mandated process as "freeze and seize." The asset is frozen 
through a lien and if that does not result in cooperation, the asset is seized. 
Unfortunately, current North Dakota law is unclear whether a lien "freezes" the 
asset. As a result, in many cases, the person holding the asset for an obligor 
does not freeze the asset and the notice of lien provided to the obligor is actually 
a warning to reclaim and dispose of the asset before the lien can be enforced . 

The new language clarifies the original intent of the Department in the 1997 
welfare reform legislation that a lien "freezes" the asset unless there is already a 
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lien in place with a higher priority. Without this language, we will be left with the 
choice of wasting time issuing ineffective liens or immediately seizing the 
property without giving the obligor a chance to voluntarily cooperate. 

Section Six 

• Provides that an arrears registry is created of all obligors who owe at least two 
months' of arrears or $2,000, whichever is greater. This concept will allow the 
child support enforcement program to get involved sooner before an obligor gets 
too far behind and can't catch up. It also provides a consistent trigger for arrears 
collection tools. According to the federal office of child support enforcement, the 
best way to manage arrears is to avoid them in the first place by responding 
quickly when orders are set too high or when current support is not paid. 

Section Seven 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to license suspension. 
• Allows the child support enforcement program to use one payment plan for 

license suspension, interest amnesty, and other collection activities. 

Section Eiqht 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to public disclosure but requires a higher 
level of arrearage before public disclosure is authorized . 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 

Department of Human Services 
pril 7, 2005 

VERSION2B 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL 1172 

. Page ##-, after line ##-, insert the following: 

"SECTION 1. Two new subsections to section 14-09-09.1 O of the North Dakota 
Century Code are created and enacted as follows: 

"Arrears reqistrv" means the reqistrv maintained under section 6 of this Act." 

"Monthly support obliqation" means an amount of child support ordered by a 
court or administrative tribunal in a proceedinq to establish or modify a child 
support obliqation, includinq amounts that are deferred for payment at a later. 
date. "Monthly support obliqation" is defined without reqard to any amount of 
child support that an obliqor is required to pay to avoid beinq held in contempt of 
court. If an amount of past-due support has been ordered as a lump sum rather 
than determined on a monthly basis, "monthly support obliqation" means one 
hundred sixtv-eiqht dollars. 

SECTION 2. Subsections 1 and 2 of section 28-21-05.2 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 28-21-05, if a judgment h::is 
been dockotod undor soction 11 08.1 05 in an amount greater th::in six 
times tho monthly child eupport obligation and the judgment debtor is-flat 
current in ::i court established pl::in to repay tho unpaid child support · 
judgment is listed on the arrears reqistrv as defined in section 
14-09-09.1 O. or if the judqment debtor meets criteria established by the 
secretary of the United States department of health and human services 
that apply when a financial institution is doinq business in two or more 
states, the department of human services may issue an execution, against 
the property of the judgment debtor, to the sheriff of any county in which 
the property may be found. 

2. A writ of execution issued by the department of human services must be 
issued as provided in section 28-21-06, except the past-due support need 
not be docketed and the writ may emiF. be issued in a form prescribed by 
the department of human services. A writ issued under this section must 
be accompanied by a copy of the payment records maintained under 
section 50-09-02.1 that has been certified under section 14-08.1-08. 
a- The seal of the court; 
a., The subscription of tho clerk of that court; 
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&.- The 3ttest::ition in the n3me of the judgo of the court th3t entered 
the judgment; · 

€h- /\ st3tement of tho courts 3nd counties to which the judgment h3s 
been tr3nscribed; and 

e, If the writ is issued to a sheriff of a county other than the county in 
which the judgment is docketed, 3 date and time of docketing in 

.. that shoriff's county. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-02. Lien for past-due child support. When 3 past-due child 
support obligation is ::it least six timos the monthly child support oblig::ition 3nd 
the an obligor is not current in 3 court-established pl::in to rop3y the p3st due 
support listed on the arrears reqistrv as defined in section 14-09-09.10, the public 
authority may establish a lien on personal property as provided in this chapter. 
Except for liens under section 35-34-05, the amount of a lien under this chapter 
includes any past-due support that is owed when the lien is perfected and any 
past-due support that accrues after the lien is perfected. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-05. Account lien. 
1. In the case of an account maintained in a financial institution, the public 

authority may establish a lien on the account by serving a notice oflien 
upon the financial institution in the manner provided for service of a 
summons in a civil action or in any other manner aqreed to by the financial 
institution. The notice must be in a form prescribed by the public authority 
and contain the name, social security number, or other taxpayer 
identification number and last-known address of the obligor, the .amount of 
past-due support for which a lien is claimed, and any other information 
required by the public authority. The notice of lien must state that the child 
support obligation is past due and that a copy of the notice of lien has 
been served on the obliger by first-class mail at the obligor's last-known 
address. 

2. Upon service of the notice of lien on a financial institution in accordance 
with this section, the lien attaches to accounts of the obligor maintained in 
the financial institution, except to the extent necess::iry to and freezes all 
subsequent withdrawals from the account except for funds in excess of 
the amount of past-due support for which a lien is claimed under this 
section and as provided in subsection 3. 

3. Notwithstandinq a freeze on an account under subsection 2, the financial 
institution may satisfy any right of setoff which exists in connection with an 
account, payment orders that were made by the obligor before the 
financial institution was served with notice of lien, or other obligations of 
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the obliger based upon written agreements or instruments made or issued 
by the obliger before the financial institution was served with notice of lien. 

~ 4. A lien under this section is perfected when the financial institution is 
served with notice of the lien. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 35-34-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

35-34-09. Immunity from liability. A person in possession of, or 
obligated with respect to, property, who, upon demand of the public authority, 
surrenders the property or discharge:: tho obligation to the public authority. 
complies with section 35-34-12. or otherwise acts in Qood faith to comply with the 
requirements in this chapter, is immune from suit or any liability to tho obliger or 
other pereon arising from the surrender or payment under any federal or state 
law. The court shall award reasonable attorney's fees and costs against any 
person who commences an action that is subsequently dismissed by reason of 
the immunity granted by this section. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
· is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support arrears reaistrv. The state case reqistrv maintained under 
section 50-09-02.4 must include a reqistrv of any obliqor who owes past-due support in 
an amount qreater than two times the obliqor's current or most recerit monthly support 
obliqation as defined in section 14-09-09.1 0 or two thousand dollars, whichever is less. 
As used in this chapter. "arrears reqistrv" means the reaistrv maintained under this 
section. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 50-09-08.6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The state agency, directly or through agents and child support agencies, 
may withhold, restrict, or suspend one or more licenses issued to: 
a. A person who has failed, after receiving proper notice, to comply 

with a subpoena relating to a paternity or child support matter; 
b. An obliger who is in ::irrears in child support in :m amount greater 

than three times the obliger's current or most recent monthly child 
e:upport oblig::ition or five thoue:and dollars, whichevor ie: loe:s listed 
on the arrears reqistrv; or 

c. An obliger who is not in compliance with an existing payment plan 
that has been negotiated between the obliger and the state agency 
under this section or in exchanqe for the state aqency refraininq 
from takinq an enforcement action aqainst the obliqor. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 50-09-32 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1. To the extent permitted by federal law, the state agency may disclose 
information to the public about a parent whose location is unknown or 
about an obliger who is listed on the arrears repistrv and owes past-due 
child support in an amount greater than twenty five ten thousand dollars, 
including the person's name, last-known address, date of birth, 
occupation, photograph, amount of child support owed, the number and 
ages of the children for whom support is owed, and any other information 
that would assist in locating the person. 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section One 

• Creates a definition of "arrears registry" to implement the other amendments 
• Creates a definition of "monthly support obligation." This definition is needed to 

ensure all appropriate cases with arrears are subject to income withholding, 
credit bureau reporting, liens, and seizure. Under current law, if the arrears have 
been ordered as one lump sum, we cannot issue an income withholding order 
because the amount due under section 14-09-09.30 currently needs to be based 
on the current or most recent monthly support obligation. Credit bureau reporting 
in chapter 50-09 has the same problem because we need to identify how many 
months the obliger is behind. 

· Under current law, administrative liens (section 35-34-02) and seizures 
(28-21-05.2) can only be used when the amount of arrears is "at least six times 
the monthly child support obligation." For lump-sum cases and those that are 
"arrears only," there is no monthly support obligation and these tools cannot be 
used. · 

Without this language, we will continue to miss out on potential arrears 
collections in these cases; in most of them, there will probably be no collection at 
all and the federal performance measures will be adversely impacted. 

Section Two 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to administrative executions and authorizes 
the Department to participate in a federal process that may be created in the 
coming months. 

• Allows executions to be issued with the payment ledger attached rather than 
sending the ledger to the clerk for docketing before the writ is issued. 

Section Three 
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• Applies the arrears registry concept to child support liens . 
• When a third party contacts the child support agency to know how much of the 

property is subject to the lien, the lien will include all arrears owed on that date 
(except for account liens, which are limited to the amount specified in the notice 
of lien). 

Section Four 

• Allows a financial institution to choose to receive lien documents through a more 
convenient means than certified mail or personal service .. 

• Clarifies that the effect of an account lien is to prohibit subsequent transfers of 
the property. This is a problem with current law and the change is needed to 
ensure federal requirements are fulfilled. The federal office of child support 
enforcement describes the mandated process as "freeze and seize." The asset 
is frozen through a lien and if that does not result in cooperation, the asset is 
seized. Unfortunately, current North Dakota law is unclear whether a lien 
"freezes" the asset. As a result, in many cases, the person holding the asset for 
an obligor does not freeze the asset and the notice of lien provided to the obligor 
is actually a warning to reclaim and dispose of the asset before the lien can be 
enforced. 

The new language clarifies the original intent of the Department in the 1997 
welfare reform legislation that a lien "freezes" the asset unless there is already a 
lien in place with a higher priority. Without this language, we will be left with the 
choice of wasting time issuing ineffective liens or immediately seizing the 
property without giving the obligor a chance to voluntarily cooperate. 

Section Five 

• Clarifies the existing immunity for third parties who honor our. liens or similar liens 
from other state child support enforcement agencies. 

Section Six 

• Provides that an arrears registry is created of all obligors who owe at least two 
months' of arrears or $2,000, whichever is greater. This concept will allow the 
child support enforcement program to get involved sooner before an obligor gets 
too far behind and can't catch up. It also provides a consistent trigger for arrears 
collection tools. According to the federal office of child support enforcement, the 
best way to manage arrears is to avoid them in the first place by responding 
quickly when orders are set too high or when current support is not paid. 

Section Seven 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to license suspension . 



• Allows the child · support enforcement program to use one payment plan for 
license suspension, interest amnesty, and other collection activities. 

Section Eii:iht 

• Applies the arrears registry concept to public disclosure but requires a higher 
level of arrearage before public disclosure is authorized. 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

April 11 , 2005 
Version 1A 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HB 1172 

Page##, after line##, insert the following: 

"SECTION A. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Child support deduction order. 
~ The state agency, directly or through aqents or child support aqencies, 

may issue an order requirinq an income payer to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from the portion of any lump sum payment to an 
obliger that has been withheld under section 14-09-09.34. 

2. The state agency, directly or through aqents or child support aqencies, 
may issue an order requirinq a financial institution to deduct the amount 
identified in the order from any account of the obliqor maintained in the 
financial institution. 

3. The state agency shall serve the order on the income payer or financial 
institution in the manner provided for service of a summons in a civil action 
or in any other manner aqreed to by the income payer or financial 
institution. The state agency shall serve a copy of the order upon the 
obliger by first-class mail to the obliqor's last-known address, along with a 
notice of the obliger's riqht to claim that the property is exempt from leqal 
process under section 28-22-02, the right to request an informal review by 
the state aqencv within ten days of the date of the notice, and the riqht of 
the obliger and any other aqqrieved person to a review by a court under 
section 50-09-14. If an informal review is requested under this subsection, 
the time for requesting a review by a court under section 50-09-14 does 
not expire until thirty days after the informal review is completed. 

4. The income payer or financial institution shall deduct the amount identified 
in the order or the balance of the account, whichever is less, and transmit 
the funds to the state disbursement unit within seven business days of the 
date the order is served. 

5. An order issued under this section has priority over any other legal 
process against the same account, except to the extent necessary to 
satisfy any riqht of setoff which exists in connection with an account, 
payment orders that were made by the obliqor before the financial 
institution was served with the order, or other obliqations of the obliqor 
based upon written aqreements or instruments made or issued by the 
obliger before the financial institution was served with the order. 

6. An income paver or financial institution may also withhold and retain an 
additional sum of three dollars from the obliqor's account or from the 
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7. 

amount retained under section 14-09-09.34 to cover expenses involved in 
transmittinq payment. 
An income payer or financial"institution receivinq an order under this 
section is subject to the same duties and liabilities as an income payer 
under section 14-09-09.3 unless the context indicates otherwise and is 
immune from suit or liability for complying with an order under this 
section." 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section A 

• Creates a process similar to income withholding and writs of execution for 
property in the hands of third parties (i.e. a payer of a lump-sum or a financial 
institution) without requiring the involvement of the clerk of court to docket the 
arrears or the sheriff to personally serve the order. 

• When the order is served on the payer, a copy is also provided to the obligor. 
• The child support enforcement program is required to provide notice to the 

obligor of the right to claim exemptions and the right of the obligor or any other 
aggrieved person (such as a joint owner) to a court hearing within 30 days . 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of Human Services 

April 11, 2005 
Version 1B 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HB 1172 

Page##, after line##, insert the following: 

"SECTION B. A new section to chapter 50-09 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Protest period. Except as authorized by the obliqor, the state aqency shall hold 
any funds collected under section 28-21-05.2 or section A of this Act and may not 
disburse the funds as a collection of child support until the time has expired for 
requestinq a review by a court under section 50-09-14 or the conclusion of the review, 
whichever is later. Interest does not accrue under section 28-20-34 after the funds are 
received by the state agency." 

Renumber accordingly 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Section B 

• The child support enforcement program is prohibited from distributing the money 
collected under an administrative execution or deduction order until the obligor 
has had an opportunity to have the action reviewed by a court. Judgment 
interest no longer accrues after the payment is received, even though the 
payment is held and not immediately disbursed . 


